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August 20, 1996 e

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Mr. Thomas E. Williams, 111

and Ms. Sonja Jones

Florida Public Service Commission
Bureau of Service Evaluation

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Dear Mr. Williams and Ms, Jones:

Transmitted herewith on behalf of A.R.C. Networks, Inc. (*ARC") are an original and six
copies of additional financial documents that you requested for ARC's pending Application for a
Certification of Public Convenience and Necessity to provide altemative local exchange
telecommunications service. See Docket No. 960792-TX.

ARC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Consolidated Technology Group, * td.
(“Consolidated™). Enclosed please find the following financial documents:

(n Consolidated's most recent Form 10-K, as filed with the SEC:
(2) Consolidated’s most recent Form 10-Q, as filed with the SEC; and
(3)  ARC's projected profit and loss statements.

Also enclosed is a letter from Lewis S. Schiller, Chairman of Consolidated, dated August
20, 1946, regardine ~ Gsolidated’s commitment to financially supporting its subsidiaries, such
as ARC. This lett.  Jong with the enclosed financial documents, should satisfy the questions
you raised in your fa., dated A ugust 5, 1996.
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Mr. Williams and Ms. Jones
August 20, 1996
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Please date-stamp the “Receipt” copy of this filing and return it in the enclosed, self-
addressed, stamped envelope. If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact the

undersigned.

Respectfully submitted, /
“apl /
§ d P
/ /%t~ /(2( o K
Glenh S. Richards
Kevin M. Walsh
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Consolidated Technology Grouj) Ltd.

160 Broadway, New York, New York 10038
& 212.233.4500 @ 212.233.502)

August 20, 1996

To whom it may concern,

With respect to the spplication by Arc Networks, Inc. (“Arc”) for a certificate of public convenicnce and
necessity in the Stats of Florida.

Consolidated Technology Group Lid. (“COTG") is the parent company to Arc and had annual revenuc in
excess of $110.0 million for 1995 and as of March 31, 1996, had cash and cash equivalents in cxcoss of
1.5 million. COTG fully supports its operating subsidiaries and would seek to assure you that Arc is in a

posilion to meet.
If you have any questions, pleasc contact me at the above number
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©  UNITED STATES
" SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE .OMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
[¥] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF TEE

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 ([Fee Required)
For the fiscal year ended December 21, 1995

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OF 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1534 [No Fee Reguired]
For the transition period from to

Commission file Number 0-4186

CONSOLIDATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

New York 13-194816%
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.5. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
160 Broadway, New York, NY 10038
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (212) 233-4500
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Outstanding shares as of April 10, 1996
Common Stock, par value

¢l per share 35.290,450
-ndicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports
Tejuirec to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
%34 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
reJistrant was reguired to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
suzh filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes_X_ No

-ndicate by a check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to Item
.7 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to
e best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
Statements incorporated by reference in Part II1 of this Form 10-K or any

amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]
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PART 1
Itefh 1. Business
Incroduction

~onsclidated Technoleogy Group Ltd. {the "Company" or "Consolidated”), through
-=s wholly-owned or controlled subsidiaries, is engaged in various businesses,
most of which are service related. Consolidated's principal source of revenue
£or the year ended December 31, 1995 was generated by its con:iract engineering
and medical diagnostics subsidiaries representing 57% and 25% respectively of
-gtal revenue. The principal source of revenue for the year ended December 31,
1954 and the fiscal years ended July 31, 1994 and 1993, was generated by its
contract engineering subsidiaries representing 66%, 65% and 16% respectively
of total revenue, which are operated by Trans Global Services, Inc. ("Trans
Glecbal"). Trans Global provides engineers, designers and technical personnel
on a temporary basis pursuant to contracts with major corporations. In
September 1994 and October 1994, the Company, through wholly-owned
subsidiaries, acquired nine magnetic resonance imaging centers and one
multi-modality diagnostic center and International Magnetic Imaging, Inc.
("IMI"), which manages the cperaticns of the Centers, and the assets of J.
Sternberg and §. Schulman M.D. Corp., ("MD Corp."), which provides the
services of radiologists to the Centers. References in this Report to
"International Magnetic Imaging, Inc." or "IMI" refer collectively toc the
business operated by the Centers, IMI and MD Corp.

The Company also manufactures and sells electro-mechanical and electro-optical
products by Sequential Electronic Systems, Inc, ("Sequential") and avionics
eguipment and specialized vending machines by S-Tech, Inc. ("S-Tech").
Additionally, the Company manufactures and sells professicnal audio
loudspeakers by WWR Technology, Inc. ("WWR"). Through ARC Networks, Inc.
("ARC Networks"), which was acquired in December 1993, the Company offers a
range cf telecommunications services to meet the requirements of its

cus:tomers ARC Networks has a naticnal contract with Teleport Communications
roup, Inc “TCG") pursuant to which i1t may resell local loop telephone
rvice cffered by TCG. In June 1954, the Company also acquired Creative
Socio-Medics Corp. ("CSM"), which, together with Carte Medical Corporation,
wnose name was changed to CSM Corp. ("CSMC") and in February 1996 CSMC's name
<as changed to Netsmart Technclogies, Inc., offers computerized health
-nieormacion systems and related services to specialty care health
irzanications, such as substance abuse (drug and alcohol), mental retardation,
tsrchiatric and rehabilitaticn treatment facilities, and entitlement programs
:n the United States. Through 3D Technology, Inc., which was acquired in
=arly 19%3, and Computer Design Services, Inc. ("CDS*"), which was acquired in
.Zvember 1994, the Company markets and sells three dimensional imaging
zrzducts of both software and hardware and provides related services.
-cnsolidated 1s engaged in negotiations to acquire other businesses which it
ne_1eves will be compatible with its present businesses, however, no assurance
car. be given tlat such acquisitions will be consummated or that they will be
zrciitable to Consolid: 4.

-cnsolidated provides iLs subs .diaries with management, marketing, accounting,
aministrative support and financing. Consolidated's revenue and net loss
¢Zlect the consclidated revenue and results of operations of its

ubsidiaries.
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set forth below is a des Liption of Consolidated's * .ncipal subsidiaries.
Consolidated owns a majority or controlling interest in each of its
subsidiaries, either directly or through one or more subsidiaries. In certain
of zhe subsidiaries, the managemen: of the subsidiary owns an interest, which
does not exceed 20% in any subsidiary. In other subsidiaries, non-affiliated
inveéstors own a portion of the stock. Such investors include DLB, Inc.
("DLB"), a corporation controlled by the wife of Lewis S. Schiller, chairman
and chief executive officer of Consolidated. Mr. Schiller disclaims any
beneficial interest in DLBE or any of the securities owned by DLB.
Consolidated owns 49.6% of the common stock of Netsmart Technologies, Inc..
formerly Carte Medical Corporation, which has filed a registration statement
with respect to a proposed initial public offering of its stock,

CONTRACT ENGINEERING SERVICES

Since May 1995, the principal business of Trans Glocbal Services, Inc. ("TGS")
has been contract engineering service, In performing such services, TGS,
through its two subsidiaries, Avionics Research Holdings, Inc. ("Holdinge”),
and Resource Management International, Inc. ("RMI"), addresses the current
trend of major corporations in "downsizing" and "outsourcing” by providing
engineers, designers and technical personnel on a temporary c._atract
assignment basls pursuant to contracts with major corporations. The engagement
ma; relate to a specific project or may cover an extended period based on the
client's regquirements. TGS believes that the market for outsourcing services
such as those offered by TGS results from the trend in employment practices L
major corporations in the aerospace, electronics, energy, engineering and
telecommunications industries to reduce their permanent employee staff and to
supplement their staff with temporary personnel on an as-needed basis. TGS
seeks tc offer its clients a cost-effective means of work force flexibility
and the elimination of the inconvenience associated with the employment of
temporary personnel, such as advertising, initial interviewing, fringe
benefits and record keeping. Although the employees provided by TGS are on
temporary contract assignment, they work with the client's permanent
emcloyees; however, they receive different compensation and benefits than
permanent emplovees.

owiding its services, TGS engages the employees, pays the payroll and
ec costs, including FICA, worker's compensation and similar Federal and
manriated insurance and related payments. TGS charges its clients for
ces pased upon the hourly payroll cost of the personnel. Each temporary
yee submits to TGS a weekly time sheet with work hours approved by the
L. The employee 1s paid on the basis of such hours, and the client is

or those hours at agreed upon billing rates.

i
o
H

©3- alsc offers its clients a range of integrated logistical Support services
-In are performed at TGS's facilities. These services, which are ancillary
a project, include the management of technical documents involving
-€Tnnical writing preparation of engineering reports, parts provisioning
zccuments and tes.L equip™ support documents, establishing maintenance
ncepts and procedures, . prov:ding manpower and personnel support. In
‘orming these services, iGS hires the necessary employees for its own
==ount and would work with the client in developing and preparing the
=otumentation. The payment would be made pursuant to a purchase order form the
c.ient on a project basis and not as a percentage of the cost of the
=Ti-oyees. To date, the integrated logistics support business has not
Jenerated more than nominal revenue, and no assurance can be given that TGS
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will generate any signi. :ant revenue or profit fr« such services. TGS's
strategy has been directed at increasing its customer base and providinc
addiricnal services, such as integrated logistics suppor:t, tC its exist:inc
cuscomer base. TGS beliewves that the key to profitability is to provide a
range of services to an increased customer base. In this connection, TGS i1s
increasing its marketing effort both through its own personnel and in

marketing efforts with cther companies that offer complementary services.

TGS Services Corp.. & wholly-owned subsidiary of TGS ("TGSC") was formed in
January 1995 to hold the stock of Holdings and RMI, which perform the same
services for their clients. Prior to January 1995, the stock of Holdings and
1 was held by SIS Capital Corp. ("SISC"), which is a wholly-owned subsidiarv
of the Company. Holdings was formed to acquire the stock of two related
companies, Avionics Research Corporation of New York and Avionics Research
Corp. of Florida (collectively, "Avionics”) in December 1993 as well as the
stock of a third company engaged in an unrelated business which is not
conducted by Avionics. Holdings engages in business only through Avionics.

TGS's largest clients for 1995 were Northrop Grumman Corporation, The Boeing
Corporation and Lockheed Ft. Wcrth Company which accounted for revenues of S1¢

&

million, $2 million and $6 million respectively or 54% of the total revenue cf
TGS.

Avionics' largest clients for both 1994 and 1993 were Northrop Grumman
Corporation and Martin Marietta Corp., which accounted for approximately $14.5
million and $2.0 million, respectively, which represented approximately 57%
and 8% of the Company's revenue for the vear ended December 31, 1994, and
approximately $9 million and $3 million, respectively, which represented
approximately 65% and 22% of Avionics' revenue for the year ended December 31,

1583,

RMI was formed in 1994 to acquire assets of Job Shop Technical Services, Inc.
("Jcb Shop") in November 1994. RMI conducts business under the name The RMI
sup. During 1994, six clients of RMI and Job Shop accounted for aggregate
sznues of 322 million, or approximately 90% of their combined revenue for
r. The Boeing Company and Lockheed Ft. Worth Company, which accounted
revenues cf S1C million and $7.5 mi_lion, or 22% and 17% of such combined
senue for 1994, were the only clients which accounted for wore than 10% of
..... r combined revenue. Four cther clients, three of which are in the
cerospace industry, accounted for aggregate revenue of $14.7 million, or 51%
¢ zne combined revenue of RMI and Job Shop for 1994.

-
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TZ3 1s a Delaware corporation, ircorporated in September 1993. TGS was formed
under the name Concept Technologies Group, Inc., and, in March 1996, its
~porate name was changed tec Trans Global Services, Inc. Its executive

Iices are located at 1770 Motor Parkway, Hauppauge, New York 11788,

.ephone (516) 582-9000. TGS 1s a holding company. All business activities
are conducted by its operating subsidiaries, Avionics and RMI. Reference to
T35 includes all of its subsidiaries, unless the context indicated otherwise,
arns includes the business of Avionics and RMI prior to their acquisition by
T33. Avionics has been in the contract engineering business since its
organization in .954, an- «MI commenced such business in November 1994, with
the acquisition of asset from Jib Shop.

-
-
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In May 1995, TGS acquired all of the issued and outstanding stock of TGSC,
wnich was then known as Trans Global Services, Inc., in exchange for a
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controlling interest in T . During 1995, TGS sold = stock of WWR
Technology, Inc. ("WWR") to an affiliated party.

Markets and Marketing

The market for TGS's services is comprised of major corporations in such
industries as aerospace, electronics, energy, engineering, computer services
and telecommunications, where "downsizing" and "outsourcing" have become an
increasingly important method of cost reduction. Typically, a client enters
into an agreement with one cr a small number cof companies to serve as employer
of record for its temporary staff, and its agreements are terminable by the

client without significant notice.

TGS maintains a computerized data base of technical personnel based upon their
gqualifications and experience. The data base, which contains mcre than 100, 00C
names, is generated through emplovees previously employed by TGS, referrals
and responses to advertisements placed by TGS in a variety of local media,
including newspapers, yellow pages, magazines and trade publications. Part of
ics responsibilities for any engagement is the recruitment and initial
interviewing of potential employees, with the client conducting any final
interviews it deems necessary. The majority of work performed by TGS's
employees is performed at the client's premises and under the client's
direction, although TGS is the employer of record.

TGS markets its services to potential clients through its officers, management
and recruitment personnel who seek to provide potential clients with a program
designed to meet the client's specific requirements. The marketing effort
utilizes referrals from other clients, sales calls, mailings and
telemarketing. TGS also conducts an ongoing program to survey and evaluate the
clientzs' needs and satisfacrion with the TGS's services, which it uses as part
of 1ts marketing effort.

~lthough TGS has eight offices, including its main office in Long Island, New
York, throughout the United States, there are no limited geographic markets
for the Company's services. TGS has in the past established cffices in new
locaticons when it receives a contract in the area and it cannot effectively
ser race such contract from its existing cffices. TGS intends to continue to
establish new cffices as necessary tc mee: the needs of its customers.

~ zlzent «~ill utilize contract engineering services such as those provided by
TGE when 1t requires a person with specific technical knowledge or
capapilities which are not available from the client's permanent staff or to
c.pciement i1ts permanent staff for specific project or to meet peek load

reguirements. When the client requires personnel, it provides TGS with a
gstailed job description. TGS then conducts an electronic search in its
ccmouterized resume data base for candidates matching the job description.

=, addition, each branch office maintains a file of active local resumes for
candidates available for assignment in the vicinity of the branch office. The
inc:ividuals are then contacted by telephone by TGS's recruiters, who interview
nterested candiiates. If ~he candidate 1s acceptable to TGS and interested in
-%% position, TGS refers e candidate toc the client. An employment agreement
-¢ execucted by the emplc, @ with TGS prior to the commencement of employment.

TG; serves primarily Ehe_ae:ospace and electronics industries as well as the
-€-=communications, banking and computer science industries and public
uUti-ities along with numerous manufacturing companies. TGS is expanding its
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effort to address the g 2ral trend of "downsizing ind "outsourcing” by majo:
corporations on a national basis. To meet this goal, TGS has commenced a
nafional sales campaign addressing a broad spectrum of Fortune 500 companies,
offering a managed staffing service to those companies in the process of
downsizing and outsourcing specific funciions. Since companies engaged in
downsizing seek toc focus on 1ts core business needs with its in-house staf®.
TGS seeks to identify and address the needs of a specific task or department
not part of the core business for which outsourcing would be an appropriate
method of addressing the needs. In addressing these needs, TGS has conducted
marketing efforts with Manpower Intermational, Inc., TAD Resources
International, Inc. and Olsten Corporation. TGS's contracts are generally
terminable by the client on short notice, generally 30 days.

Competitcion

The business of providing employees on either a permanent or temporary basis
is highly competitive and is typically local in nature. TGS competes with
numerous technical service organizations, a number of which are better
capitalized, better known, have more extensive industry contracts and conduct
extensive advertising campaigns aimed at both employers and job applicants.
TGS believes that the ability to demonstrate a pattern of providing reliable
gualified employees is an important aspect of developing new business and
retaining existing business.

Government Regulations

The technical services industry, in which TGS is engaged, does not require
licensing as a personnel or similar agency. However, as a provider of
personnel for other corporaticns, it is subject to Federal and state
regulations concerning the employment relationship, including those relating
to wages and hours and unemployment compensation. It also maintains 401 (k)
plans for its employees and is subject to regulations concerning such plans.

es not have contracts with the government agencies. Contracts with its
s, including major defense contractors, are based on hourly billing
for each technical discipline. The contracts are not subject to

¥

otiation or cancellation for the ccnvenience of the government. However,
anpower needs of each of its clients are based on the client's own
rements and the clients needs are aZfected by any modification in the
t's requirements, including reductions in staffing resulting from
llation or medification of government contracts. ;

* December 31, 1995, TGS had 1008 emplovees., of which 970 were contract

ce employees who performed services on the client's premises and 38 were
ive and administrative. Each of TGS's cffices is staffed by recruiters
ales manacers. Each contract service employee enters into a contract with
hich sets forth ' client for whom and the facility at which the
vices are to be per. med ard the rate of pay. If an employee ceases to be
Juired by TGS's client. for any reason, TGS has no further obligation to the
bloyee. Although assignments can be for as short as 90 days, in some cases,
-t has been for several years. The average assignment is in the range of six
t¢ nine months. TGS's employees are not represented by a labor union, and TGS
believes that its employee relations are good.TGS does not have any rights to
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any patents or other prop etary technology develope Yy its employees. Under
its agreement with the client, all of such rights are retained by the clienc.
in addirion, the client typically reguires the employee to Sign its standard
agreement dealing with confidentiality and rights to proprietary developmen:cs.

MEDICAL DIAGNOSTICS

On September 30, 1994, Consolidated, through wholly-owned subsidiaries,
acquired eight magnetic resonance imaging ("MRI") centers and one
multi-modality diagnostic center and in January 1955, it acquired a ninth MRI
Center, (collectively, the "Centers").

Magnecic resonance imaging ("MRI") systems enhance the diagnosis of risease
and medical disorders, frequently eliminating the need for exploratory surgery
and often reducing the amount and cost of care required to evaluate and treat
a patient. Since its introduction in the early 1980's, the use of MRI has
experienced rapid growth due to the technology's ability to provide anatomical
images of exceptional contrast and detail without the use of radiation or
x-ray based technologies. MRI employs high-strength magnetic. fields, high
freguency radio waves and high-speed computers to process data. In addicion,
the develcpment of pharmaceutical contrast agents, software advancements and
new hardware peripherals continue to expand the clinical applications and
throughput efficiency of MRI technology.

MRI, which does not utilize x-ray or other radiation based technologies,
employs high-strength magnetic fields, high frequency radic waves and
high-speed computers to obtain clear, multi-planar images of the body's
incernal tissues without exploratory surgery or biopsy. In addition, MRI is
able toc image a multi-planar slice of the body at any angle. These images are
thern displayed on £ilm or on the video screen of an MRI system's conscle in
the form cf a multi-planar image of the organ or tissue. This information can
be stocred on magnetic media for future access, or "printec¢® on film for
interpretation by a physician and retention in the patient's files, enabling
hea_:l care professionals to study the patient's internal conditions in

deza:zl The superiority of MRI image guality compared to other imaging
m-2a..ties generally makes possible a more accurate diagnosis and often
reluce: the amount and cost of care needed toc evaluate and treat a patient.
Tnz majcr components of an MRI system are (I) a large, cylindrical magnet,
~. razZ:io wave equipment, and (iii' a computer for data storage and image
CrIca285:109 During an MRI study, a patient lies on a table which is then

intoc the magnet. Although patients have historically spent 30 to 45
inside the magnet during which time images of multiple planes are

new software applications allow patients to spend significantly less
s1de the magnet. Additional zime& 15 required for computer processing
mages .
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Juzpatient Services and Customer Base

acr. Center is a fixed te, outpatient facility that is designed, eguipped
nZ stafled to provide ysicians and healch care providers with high guality
F. services that histor.cally were available only at teaching hospitals. The
gm;any schedules patjents, prepares all patient billing and is responsible

I em

¥ the collection of all charges. The Company is also responsible for
-jied_admlnxstrat1ye and record-keeping functions. The Company typically
a-Zs its Centers with technical and administrative support personnel who

t re
-
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assist physicians in ob Lining MRI diagnostic scan: The Centers are designecd
to offer a pleasant environment where patients are not subjected to the
agfission complexities and institutional atmosphere of most hospitals.

Many physicians and other health care providers who have a need for MRI
services and equipment do not have the ability or desire to own their own
eguipment. As a result, such providers use outpatient MRI facilities such as
the Centers for the following reasons, among others: (I) ability to receive
comprehensive MRI services, including qualified technologists, eguipment
maintenance, insurance and egquipment upgrades; (ii) desire to cbtain quick
access to MRI services; (iii) lack of sufficient scan volume to justify the
capital cost of purchasing an MRI unit; (iv) desire to use an MRI unit to
become familiar with MRI technology; (v) lack of financial capability teo
purchase an MRI unit, and (vi) inability to obtain required regulatory
approval to purchase or coperate an MRI unit.

In addition, many health care providers with sufficient patient utilization
and resources to justify in-house MRI unit ownership prefer to use independen:
facilities such as IMI's Centers in order to: (i) cbtain the use of an MRI
system without capital investment; (ii) eliminate the need to recruit, train
and manage qualified technologists; (iii) retain the flexibility to take
advantage of all technological developments; (iv) avoid future uncertainty as
to reimbursement policies, and (v) provide additional imaging services when
patient demand exceeds in-house capacity.

Set forth below is information relating to IMI's Centers.

Month and Year

Center Location Service commenced
Pine Island Plantation, FL December 19B6
North Miami Beach North Miami Beach, FL January 1988
Beca Raton Boca Raton, FL November 1988
South Dade Miami, FL December 1989
Carland Oakland Park, FL January 19590
San Juarn San Juan, PR October 1980
;s rLinguon Arlington, Vi December 1950
Fansas Zity Overland Park, KS October 1991
Trlandc Orlando, FL September 19592

-~ addizion, IMI coperates Physicians Outpatient Diagnostic Center, Ltd., a

T--ti-modality diagnostic center, located in Plantation, Florida.

Tne decision to refer a patient to one of IMI's facilities generally begins

: the treating physician, HMO/PPO or other health care provider. IMI is
responsible for patient scheduling and billing the patient or third party

r directly. IMI also arranges for board-certified radiologists to

rpret IMI's scans and returns the test results to the referring physician.
is not itself engaged in the practice of medicine.

Y e
1 W
%O 3y

zach Center generally - @ full-time staff of seven to eleven employees,
trrically consisting o. I[RI technicians, file clerks, a marketing
Tepresentative, a transcriptionist, one or more receptionists and a center
igministrator. IMI's Centers are open at such hours as are appropriate for
-ne local medical community. Most are open from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. each
weekday, and many of the Centers offer extended evening and weekend hours.
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Each Center 1is supervised ' a center administrator. <ach Center charges
patients a fee for providing MRI studies on a per procedure or per scudy
basis. IMI pays radiologists providing diagnostic readings of a Center's MR
scans.

IMI nlarkets its services through open houses, lectures, symposia, direct mail
and individual visits to area Physicians. Each Center uses one or more
marketing representatives, the Center's administrator and certain radiologists
who interpret IMI's scans to marker its services to the local medical
community, while IMI's national accounts manager focuses on managed care
providers and third party payors.

The profitabilicy of IMI is based substantially on the degree to which IMI can
utilize its equipment. IMI believes that a typical center must generally
average eleven to thirteen scans per day before its revenue exceeds its
expenses and that, as new referring physicians and other customers become
familiar with MRI technology and its applications, their rate of usage
generally increases. However, to the extent that competitive pressures and
third party reimbursement rates have a downward effect on IMI's revenue, the
number of daily scans necessary to operate profitably will have to increase.

~vernment Regulations

The operation of MRI centers is subject to numerous government regulations on
both a Federal and state level. Since IMI provides services to patients on
Medicare and Medicaid, it is subject to numerous regulations affecting such
seérvices. In addition, each state has its own regulations which may impact
IMI's operations, including regulations dealing with the corporate practice of
medicine, the referral of patients and the requirements for a certificate of
neec. IMI believes that it is in compliance in all material respects with
applicable regulations and that the acquisition by IMI of the Centers was made
in compliance with applicable laws.

-ompezitian

The heal:h care industry, including the market for MRI diagnostic imaging
3€rveces, it= highly competitive and IMI anticipates that compecition,
sarticularly for patient referrals, will intensify in substantially all of the
2f7"as in which the Centers are located. IMI competes with othir MRI centers
i wsll as regiznal hospitals and medical centers which also offer such
erv-ces. To a lesser extent, IMI competes with mobile MRI service
foviders. Because of the cost of €quipping and staffing an MRI center, MRI
S rarely offered bv a sole practitiocner or by a small group practice or by a
&rZ< group practice that does no: have a substantial demand for such

ervices Each of IMI's Centers is dependent upon referrals from local

fYEitians as well as from health maintenance organizations and other

o.ders. IMI believes that hospitals arc its most significant competitors
©d4ve certain competitive advantages, including their established community
°sition, physician loyalty and convenience for physicians making rounds at

7€ hospitals. Competition is based upon such factors as the reputation of

as Center and reliability of the Physicians who read the MRI scans, the fees
narged, the Cen'er's par’ cipation in an insurance or health plan which

JVers the patient, the lity to offer up-to-date MRI equipment, the
“hveénlence to the patien. in terms of both proximity to the patient and thr
JUTE of service. MRI believes that its services are competitive with the
-fered by others in the area serviced by its Centers. ’

ooy
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Employees

As ©of December 31, 1995, IMI hagd 1€5 emcloyees, 128 of whom were invelved :in
Center operations, 12 of whom were involved in sales and marketing, 12 cf whom
were executive and managemen:t and 13 of whom were involved in billing and
other administrative activities. None of IMI's employees are represented bv a
labor organization, and IMI believes that its employee ralations are gocd.

ELECTRO-MECHANICAL AND ELECTRO-OPTICAL PRODUCTS MANUFACTURING

Sequential Electronic Systems, Inc.

Sequential is engaged in the manufacture and marketing of wvarious
electro-mechanical and electro-optical products. The principal products
manufactured by Sequential are cptical encoders, encoded motors and limat

programmers.

Cptical Encoders - Optical encoders are utilized in almost every manufacturing
process where measurement is required as a part of the manufacturing process.
Optical shaft angle encoders, like those produced by SES, are the types of
encoders used in such manufacturing processes. SES furniazhes encoders toc the
military for such applications as the launch systems for the Patriot Missile
Defense System used in "Desert Storm". SES also furnishes encoders used in
the latest state of the art NEXRAD weather system. High resolution encoders
are also used as part of a telemetric tracking antenna for the National
Aercnautics and Space Administration ("NASA").

Encoded Motors - Encoded motors are used as a cape drive motor for use in
state of the art instrumentation tape recorders. These recorders are used by
the government in anti-submarine warfare detection systems and are utilized an
seismic measurement recordings as well as other classified applications where
the data reproduction is extremely critical.

Limit Programmers - Limit programmers are utilized to replace mechanical CAM
seguencing systems for the manufacture of various consumer products.

- =Tech, Inec.

£-Tech, Inc. ("5-Tech”) is a design and manufacturing facility which has two
unigue and specialized product lines which consist of, specialized vending
machines and avionics equipment. Specialized vending is used to describe a
wending product which includes sophisticated electronic circuitry and or
computer software. The vending products presently being manufactured under
contract include prepaid telephone debit card machines, bill payment centers,

:nformazion kiosks and stamp machines.

~vionics Equipment - The Avionics equipment manufactured by S-Tech consists
crimarily of various cockpit instruments and oil pressure transmitters. The
majority of thrse producrs require a guaiified product list designation
‘"QPL"). The JYPL list* -nsists of gualified products, with a limited number
of approved sources, w. 'h are purchased by the Department of Defense,
contractors and subcontractors. In many instances this QPL designation places
the company in highly advantageous competitive position as it pertains to
government contracts by limiting the number of qualified bidders. 1In
addition, S-Tech responds to "build-to-print" solicitations which are subject
Lo competitive bidding. These products are manufactured in accordance with
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drawings and data package »>rovided by the Departmen 3f Defense or other
procuring agencies.

Specialized vending machines - In the vending line S-Tech designs,
manufaccures and markets stamp machines and stamp booklet machines, token
vending machines and is designing and marketing vending machines for other
specialty uses, including a pre-paid telephone calling card. The Prepaid _
Telephone Calling Card Vending Machines are presently in production. S-Tech :s
under contract to manufacture a Self Service Bill Payment Machine for
Consoclidated Edison of New York and an Information Kiosk, as a subcontrac:tor

ro Cbjectsoft Corporation, for the City of New York.

As a manufacturer of products purchased by the Department of Defense or its
contractors, S-Tech is subject to the provisions of the procurement
regulations of the Department of Defense. These regulations generally provide
the government with the right tc terminate the contract for the convenience of
the Department of Defense, and, in certain cases may include provisions for
renegotiation. The Department of Defense also has regulations pursuant to
which the Department may inspect a COnNtractor's or subcontractor's
manufacturing facilities. Such an inspector is present at S-Tech's facility
on a regular basis. In addition, certain products may be subject to expor:
restrictions, which require cobtaining a permit before making any sales to
non-United States purchasers.

AUDICO VISUAL MANUFACTJURING AND SERVICES
WWE Technology, Inc.

WWR Technology, Inc. ("WWR") was acquired in May 1995 in connection with the
acquisition of Trans Global Services, Inc. WWR was originally incorporated in
1992 for the purpose of acguiring the professional products business segment
of the Klipsch(tm) loudspeaker line from Klipsch and Associates, Inc. ("KA").
WwF accuired the inventor)y, tooling, eguipment and certain licenses from KA as
part of such purchase. The predecessor tc KA was founded in the mid 1940's by

Paul w. #lipsch and has established 1tself as a leader in loudspeaker design
ne -nnovaticn. KA's primary market tracitionally has been rhe home high

£:de’_ >z _oudspeaker business. Concurren:ly, it has developed a reputation as
& manufacturer of rugged, well designed loudspeakers for the professional,
ccmmercial and theater sound markets. The acquisition of the Klipschitm)
be_.eves, recognizable brand names in the industry. RAfrer WWR's acquisition
< tne ¥Ylipschitm) professional loudspeaker line from KA, KA continued to
manufacture products and provide other related services to WWR pursuant to a
manuiacturing agreement between WWR and KA. In August 1994, WWR entered into
& .=ase Ior a manufacturing facility in Hope, Arkansas and between August and
ZZicper 1994 moved all of its manufacturing and related services into the
new.y leased facility. In connection with the completion of this move, the
manufacturing agreement with KA was terminated; however' KA continues to
succly certain component parts to WWR.

The nature of WWR's bus. 88 is to market and sell loudspeakers and related
prcoucts to the professic..al aucio market., The professional audio market is
deliined as any application for loudspeakers other than those used for home and
automotive entertainment purposes. Generally, this is a definition of the
difference between "home entertainment" and commercial sound reproduction. As
part of the future development of commercial sound reproduction, WWR believes
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that the application of Jitally controlled and pr. 2:ssed signals to contreol
and enhance the performance of professional loudspeakers will become a
sighificant factor in the marketplace. WWR believes it has access toc the
resources needed, on an as-needed contractual basis with orig:nal equipmen:
manufacturers, to successfully develop these products although there can be no

assurance that it will be able to do so.

Sales, Markets and Marketing

Products are sold through a network of domestic and international independen:
manufacturers' representatives who are compensated on a commiss:on basis to
retailers, distributors, sound contractors installers and occas:ionally o end
users. WWR assumed the responsibility for international sales f£rom KA in the
spring of 1993, and such sales currently constitute a significant portion of
WWR's total sales. For the 1Z months ended December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995
international sales constituted approximately 20%, 23% and 25% of total sales.
respectively. International sales are made tc appcinted distributors in
individual countries and the distributors resell and service the produc:s
within their respective countries.

The Markets for the products include, but are not limited to: contractor
installation of sound systems, paging systems, musical instrument sound
re-enforcement, public address, concert sound, fixed installation, touring
sound, theater and sound re-enforcement. End users of the products include:
churches, synagogues, stadiums, concert halls, restaurants, schools, musical
performers, movie theaters and all other applications where information and/or
entertainment is presented to the public in a commercial venue.

The contractor installation market is comprised of customers of WWR. These
customers bid on installation of audic systems based on specifications
provided by acoustical consultants in the process of designing or renovating
commercial properties, restaurants, nightclubs, churches, concert halls,
stadiums and other similar buildings. The requirements for each project vary
according to the need and purpose of the facility and the sound systems and
the types of loudspeakers range from small speakers for simple paging systems
tc very large speakers for concert halls. theaters or stadiums. WWR sees this
market as having significant growth potential for its products and has
geveloped and continues to develop products targeted to the various needs of
n1s market.

The musical instrument marke: include retail sale of products to professional
anc amateur musicians. Loudspeakers : his market have two general purposes:
' the reproduction of amplified or electronic instruments, and (2) the
re-enforcement of voice and acoustic instruments. A portion of WWR's product
--ne 1s targeted specifically to this product and the product line for this

market has been expanded by WWR with new loudspeakers introduced in 1994 and
p.ans to continue to introduce additional new products in 1995,

The motion picture theater market has improved over the past few years as a
result of the increase in the number of motion pictures including digital film
scund tracks. Digital based sound reprcduction systems were subsequently
inzroduced in notion p .ure theaters and while there has been little new
censtruction of movie taters the current trend is to upgrade the sound
reproduction systems in curren. theaters. WWR is upgrading its motion picture
product line to meet the neede of this market. The concert and touring sound
rket is comprised of two segments: (1) the tours of the "big" name
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entertainers handled by m »>r international touring . ind companies, and (2)
the smaller regional or national sound companies that provide services to
lessér known performers and events. While there are sign:ficant sales in the
major international touring sound companies market as a whole, the loudspeaker
porction i1s dominated by the proprietary enclosure (cabine:t) designs of the
large touring sound companies using the raw frame components made by original
eguipment manufacturers ("OEMs"), including WWR. WWR has a nuiwer of raw
frame component drivers that have significant potential in this market.
Success in this portion of the market must be viewed as a marketing tool; by
having its products selected for use on major tours, WWR has the opportunity
to be associated with the success of the tour and/or the artist. The smaller
regional touring companies represent a greater opportunity for WWR as these
customers are not as likely to be building their own enclosures and,
therefore, purchase whole speaker systems.

New products

WWE 15 engaged in market research to determine the specific needs of the end
user so as to develop new market oriented produccs. Two new trapezoidal
shaped loudspeakers have been introduced for use in various commercial
apriications. Currently under developmen: are the following: a new line of
loudspeakers designed for the musical instrument market, twc new medium format
(s1ze) horns for use in fixed installations and updating of the motion picture
product line utilizing newly developed components. A line of loudspeakers
designed for the musical instrument market were put into production and became
available for purchase in October 1994 and it is expected that the new
construction techniques and materials for this line of loudspeakers will
enacle WWE to achieve higher gross profit margins.

Competition

Thne industry 1s comprised of a large number of competing manufacturers, the
majcrity of which are of little overall impact in the market. Generally, the
gma_ler firms specialize in selected portions of the market as opposed to
cffsring a wide array of products. However, there are two dominant
competitors 1n the overall professicnal loudspeaker industry - Harmon
in naz:onal Industries, Inc. (Harmon) which owns a number of product lines
tnT.uzing JBL and Mark IV industries, Inc. which owns Electro Voice (EV),
-==- Lansing (Altec! and University Sound (Univers:ty). Other competitors
no.<3e, put are not limited to, Bose Corporation, Peavey Electronics, Inc.,
~-#e Sound, Inc., Meyer Sound Laporatories, Inc. and Eastern Acoustic Works,
WwFk provides high quality products for all segments of the market but,
the relatively smaller size of the product line offered by WWR, it is
le to compete with JBL and EV on a model by model basis. It is the plan
tc continue niche markecing, while expanding is product offerings as
-ness conditions allow. WWR's general pricing policy and distribution is
-ffer i1ts high guality products at competitive prices and to limit the
Siftribution of Klipsch(tm) Professional products to a selected group of
a1l and contractor customers. By doing so, WWR is able to position
Fiipschitml Prcfessiona” 4s a "limited disctribution” product line offering the
corniractor and retaile: ne opportunity to differentiate themselves in the
Tande of products they . fer ari to further enhance their profit margins by
offering products that are not as easily "shopped for price".
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AS part of the purchase substantially all of the ssets of the Klipsch(tm)
Prcfessional loudspeaker pusiness from KA, WWR received a non-exclusive
trademark license for the use of KA's trademark "Klipsch(tm)" in conjuncticon
wi=h various professional loudspeake: products ("L:censed Products"! provided
that the trademark 1s used only in combination with the terms "Professional
LoUdspeakers, " "Professional Products," "Pro Loudspeakers," Pro Products" or a
s:milar designation pre-approved by KA. WWR also has acgreed to indicate tha-
*7.ipschi(tm)" is a registered trademark of KA. The licenses are world-wide
anZ royalty free, and KA has agreed not to grant licenses and/or otherwise
permit others to use in the professional market the trademarks and certain
design patents licensed to WWR. However, the licenses are terminable if WWR
defaults in certain of their respective obligations to KA, becomes bankrup: or
inszlvent or reorganizes or ceases to use the "Klipschitm)" trademark for 1B
or more consecutive months. The loss of these licenses would effectively
el.minate the ability of WWR to continue to sell under the Klipschitm)
Przfessional brand, however it would not prohibit WWR f£rom seeking other
prcfessional loudspeaker products to distribute through its distribution
network. WWR believes that WWR's relationship with KA 1s good, there can be
nc assurance that there will be no future developments which will cause a

rermination of the licenses.
Emoloyees

A5 of December 31, 1995 WWR had 35 employees, 23 of whom were involved in
production, 3 of whom were involved in sales and marketing, 1 was involved in
research and development, 3 were involved in technical support and maintenance
and 5 were involved in administration and management. None of WWR's are
represented by a labor organization, and WWR believes that its employee
relations are good.

MEZIZAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS
liczsmar:t Technologies, Inc.

liezsmart Technologies, Inc. was formed in September 1952 under the name
Mezica. Services Corp., a holding company, whose operations were conducted by
s whollv-owned subsidiary, Carte Medical Corp. In October 1993, Medical
r'sices Corp. merged its subsidiary into itself and changed its name to Carte
zical Corporation. In June 1995, Carte Medical Corporation's name was
-nangec to CSMC Corporation, and in February 1996 CSMC Corporation's name was

tnanged to Netsmar: Technologies, Inc.
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lly all of Netsmart's revenue through December 31, 1995 was

by :t's health infcrmat:on systems and related services which are
by i:'s subsidiary Creat:ve Socio-Medics Corp. ("CSM") which was

by Carte Medical Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings") from a nonaffiliated

: \ June 1994. 1In September of 1995 the stock of CSM was transferred by
n-.dings to Netsmart. Netsmart offers these systems and related services to
“t=-ialty care health organizations and entitlement programs in the United
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zismart Technologies, 1 ("Netsmart"”) develops, markets and supports
c-mputer software design’ to en.ble organizations to provide a range of
S=rvices 1n a network computing environment. A network computing environment
-= & computer system that provides multiple users with access Lo a common
Gatabase and functions. A network system can be a local system, such as a

Page 11




lo¢al area network, known s a LAN, which operates w 1in an office or
facility, or a distributea system which provides simu.itaneous access to a
common data base to many users at multiple locations.

There are typically three parties in Netsmart's network systems - the sponsor
(th€ party that mainctains the data base, and may be a managed care
organization, a university or a financial institution), the users (the users
are the individuals who use the system, and may be the subscribers of a
managed care organization, the students at a university or the bank card or
credit card holders of a financial network) and the service providers (the
service providers are those who provide goods or services to the users, and
may be physicians, pharmacies, banks and merchants who provide goods, services
or funds to bank card or credi: card holders).

Nersmart has developed proprietary network technology utilizing smart cards
which it markets in the health care, financial and education fields as the

CarceSmart System.

~ smart card is a plastic card about the size of a standard credit card which
contains a single embedded microprocessor chip with both data storage and
computing capabilities. The smart card software provides access to the
information stored in the chip, the ability to update stored information and
includes security elements to restrict unauthorized access to or modification
of certain information stored on the card utilizing a smart card reader
system. The smart card reader system and the software provides the ability to
include information on both the smart card and the organization's computer
system. Netsmart also supplies network applications which use
telecommunications rather that than smart cards to obtain access to and manage
data.

Health Information Systems ancd Services
Since the acguisition of CSM, Netsmart has offered its customers a range of

products and services principally based open the health information systems
wnozIrn were developed and marketed by CSM prior to the acquisition. Users

twveically purchase one of the health information systems, in the form of a
cerpetua. license to use the svstem, as well as contract services, maintenance
arc thirc party hardware and scftware which Netsmart offers pursuant to
arrangements with the hardware and software vendors. The contract services
-nZ.ude project management, training, consulting and software development

er €5, which are provided e:ither on a time and materials basis or pursuant

c a fixed-price contract The scitware development services may reguire CSM
~- agdapt cne of its health information systems to meet the specific
r=siirements of the customer.
~-Znough the health informaticn systems constituted the basis of CSM's
~-c-ness, revenue from the license of such systems has not represented a major
ccTronent of its revenues. The typical price for a license for CSM's health
-nzormation systems ranges from $10,000 to $30,000. During the years ended
=mber 31, 1995, 1994 and 1953, CSM installed health information systems
eleven, thirteen and twelve customers, respectively. Revenue from the
-1censing of such systr represented approximately $162,000, $375,000 and
$13z,000, in the years ded December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively,
sctounting for approxima.ely 22§, 74% and 5% of revenue for such periods.

HLU

Netsmart offers software systems developed by CSM which are designed to meet
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the requirements of prov .ers of long-tern specialt care treatment. Certain
of its systems were developed to meet the requirements of Federally funded
tatget cities projects and is installed :in Baltimeore, Los Angeles, Atlanza anc

Cuyahoga County (Cleveland), Ohio.

A customer's purchase order may also include third party hardware or software.
For the years ended December 31, 1995, 1594 and 1993, revenue from hardware
ané third party software accounted for approximately $2.7 million, $900.000
and $1.0 million, representing 26.7%, 1E.1% and 19.6%, respectively, of
revenues in such periods.

In addition teo its health information svstems and related services, CSM offers
specialty care facilities a data center, at which its personnel perform data
entry and data processing and produce operations reports. These services are
typically provided to smaller substance-abuse clinics. During the vears ended
December 31, 1255, 1994 and 1993, CSM's service bureau cperation generated
revenue of approximately $1.7 million, $1.6 million and 1.7 million,
respectively, representing approximately 23.6%, 32.5% and 233.6% of CSM's
revenues for such periods. The largest user of the service bureau is the
State of New York Office of Alcohol and Substance Abuse Services, which uses
CSM's service bureau to maintain its statewide database of methadone users,
however, such customer accounted for less than 4% of CSM's revenues in the
vears ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993. Netsmart intends to augment the
marketing effort for the service bureaus, although no assurance can be given
that such operations will continue to be profitable.

Maintenance services have generated increasing revenue and are becoming a more
significant portion of CSM's business. Since purchasers of hcalth information
system licenses typically purchase maintenance service. Maintenance revenue
increases as new customers obtain licenses for its health information
services. Under 1ts maintenance ccontracts, which are executed on an annual
basis, CSM maintains its software and provides certain upgrades. Its
ob.igations under the maintenance contract may require CSM to make any
moc:fications necessary to meet new Federal reporting requirements. CSM does
nct maintain the hardware and thirdé party software sold to'.ts customers.

The CarteSmars Svstem

ietsmart's CarceSmart System software was designed to operate on
infustry-standard computer networks and smart cards. A smcrt card is a
plastic card the size of a standard credit card which contains an embedded
m.croprocessor chip. The card has data storage and computing capabilities and

tns smart card software includes securizy elements to restrict unauthorized
actess to or modification of certain information contained on the card. A
smart card may also include a magnetic stripe to allow it to be used in
neiworks that do not include smart card functionality. The smart cards are
aesigned to be issued only by the sponsor organization, such as a managed care
rganization, specialty care facility, administrator of an entitlement program
r other similar organization, a university or a bank or credit card

sanization.

L0 O

“ne CarteSmart software consists of components which allow Netsmart to develap
network appl.cations: r sponsors with less effort that would be required if
those network applic. ons were developed from scratch. The CarteSmart
software consists of a.. Application Program Interface ("API") and an API
Generator which shows fast customization of the API for specific network
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applications. The API is . set of software modules that provide the common
functions reguired to Support a computer network using smart cards. By using
~he "API, Netsmart or a sponsor may develcop network systems more quickly than
if all pof the software necessar. to Implement the network were custom written
¢or a particular network application. The API Generator is a tool developed
by Netsmart that it designed tc allow Netsmart or a network sponsor to develop

= custom API for a particular network and reduce the effort required to build

network systems.

The CarteSmart System is designed to operate on file servers and personal
computers which utilize the DOS, Windows 3.1, Windows 95, Windows MT or UN1X
cperating systems, depending upon the application. The software used in the
smar: card can be used or adapted for use in most commercially available smart
cartSmart cards generally meet international standards and are considered
commodity products, although each manufacturer has its own software to
interface with a computer. Accordingly, Netsmart believes that a manufacturer
would provide any necessary assistance in order to market its cards.

Although Netsmart's CarteSmart System scoftware has general applications, its
experience with each of its four CarteSmart clients reflects a need to
customize the software to meet the specific need of the client. Although the
customizaticn need not be significant, each user has its unigue reguirements
that must be met. These reguirements may include the need to enable the
CarteSmart System to interface with the client's existing systems to the

development of a range of software products to meet needs which are not
presently being served.

Netsmart's initial applications were designed to meet the needs of managed
care organications and entitlement programs, and Netsmart developed a smart
carc interface to its health management systems. Each time a patient visits a
participating nhealth care provider, the health care provider adds to the
patient's data base information concerning the visit, including the date,
crecedures performed and diagnosis. At the time of the first visit to a

e b e o e e

participating physician, the physician enters information relating to the
nosis and treatment given on that visit together with such information
zing =z chronic conditions, such as allergies and medication, as the

k . deems i1mportant. Ne:ismar: does not anticipate that the health care
rooider will be expected to include information relating to earlier diagnosis
r Lreatment; nowever, the organiczaticn which provides the smart card may
reZuire addi:ticnal information te be input at the inicial visic. This
nizmation 1s input into the patient's smart card and may also be transmitted
I the managed care organization's central data base, where, unless
Z_zsemination of such information has been restricted by the patient other
rea.th care providers will have access tc the information. The health care
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troeider can read information from, and write information onto, the smart card
~nrough a card interface device, which 1s standard computer peripheral
=Z.:pment readily available from composer outlets and can be easily connected
2 a personal computes. The information transferred to the smart card is

St input by the health care provider on a computer and includes the date of
wvice, diagnosis, treatment including any prescribed medication, and any
r information which the health care provider determines.

~t the time of the vigit, The “2alth care provider inputs the standard codes
°r use diagnosis and proce: 25 performed. Errors in inputting the diagnosis

anz the procedure code delay ayment or affect the amount of payment. The

-martCard System can be integrated with t:ne health care provider's existing
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piactice managament system, without incurring any additional perscnnel. The
CarteSmart System software has integrated within it an easy tc use diagnos:is
and procedure code look-up capability, as well as error checking and other
safeguards which assist the health care provider in inputting the proper codes

based upon normal medical terminology.

The smart card stores only a limited amount of infcrmation, and is intended o
reflect current medical conditions and not a recorc of medical treatmen: from
birth. When the storage capacity of the card, which is equivalent to
approximately ten typed pages, is reached, items are deleted on a
chronological basis, with the earliest items being deleted first, although
there is an override procedure by which certain crucial medical informazion,
such as allergies and chronic conditions, can be retained, regardless of the
date when the patient was diagnosed or treated for the condition. The card
also includes information on each prescription which the patient is taking. A
smart card is different from a magnetic stripe card, such as i1s used at
Virginia Commcnwealth University ("VCU"), in that it has an updatable data
storage capacity, which a magnetic stripe card does not.

To date, Netsmart has licensed its CarteSmart software in conjunction with
pilot projects for San Diego County and the Albert Einstein School of
Medicine, which involved the issuance of smart cards to approximately 1,200
mental health patients participating in the California Me¢diCal Managed Care
Initiative. Netsmart is presently negotiating for an expansion of the program
to include substance abuse and acute care as well as mental health for the
county's total health care population. Netsmart is also marketing its
CarteSmant System to other entitlement programs and managed care
organizations; however, except for the pilot project in San Diego County,
Netsmart has not entered into any agreements with any such organizations, and
nc assurance can be given that Netsmart will enter into any such agreements.

In November 1595, Netsmart entered into an agreement with the Albert Einstein
School of Medicine to add the CarteSmart System to its existing system to
provide smar:t card network capabilities Zfor use in its clinics and out-patient

acilities. Installation cof the smart card network is scheduled for the
ond guarter of 1996. Netsmart is presently customizing the CarteSmart

ltzh care applicaticon software to mee: the requirements of the Albert

stein School of Medicine, including the ability to interface with its

sent computer systems in add:izion to the health informatimn system licensed

m Netsmarc:c.
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Zuring 1995, Netsmart commenced marketing i1its CarteSmart based products to
markets other than the health care field. 1In July 1995, Netsmart entered into:
ar. agreement pursuant to which it installed a magnetic stripe identification
sostem which uses CarteSmart technology to provide for the centralized
zsuance of a single card to all persons allowed access to the facility and
s services. The card contains the individual's name, photo, signature and
unigue card identification number, which defines the holder's entitlement to
cod service and library services. Approximately 20,000 students are using the
stem. Netsmart is negotiating with respect to an agreement to expand the
rogram to support additional services, however, no assurance can be given
nat the progran will be expanded. A magnetic card differs from a smart card
nce it does nat have independent updatable data storage capability.
etsmart believes that najor market for its smart card technology is the
-inancial services indusisy, including banks and credit card issuers.
Commencing in May 1995, Netsmart entered into a series of letter agreements
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with IBN for services and .arteSmart software licenses for the implementation
of a satellite based distributed network of automatic teller machines and
off-line point of sale terminals using smart cards for the former Soviet
Union. Netsmart is negotiating a definitive agreement to develop the system
and license the system to IBN. 1IBN is a New York-based company which has
rights to install such systems in the former Soviet Union. Netsmart's
agreement with IBM is not contingent upon the success of IBN's installations
in the former Soviet Union, although the extent of its revenues from royalties
will be based on the number of cards issued and may be adversely affected by
political developments in the former Soviet Union. The system being deliverec
to IBN includes Oasis Technologies IST/Share Financial Transaction System
cfrware and other third party software which Netsmart 15 integrating with its
CarceSmart software to complete the IBN system. Through February 1, 1996,
Necsmart has generated approximately $600,000 of consulting services revenue

from IBN.

In developing the CarteSmart System for the financial services industry,
Necsmart is using networking technologies that use telecommunications networks
as well as smart cards. In addition, Netsmart, through a subsidiary, is
purchasing the SATC Software, which processes retail plastic card transactions
and merchant transactions. The purchase price is $650,000, of which $325,000
was paid by Netsmart and the remaining $325,000 is to be paid by Oasis,
although Netsmart remains obligated for the balance if Oasis fails to make the
payment. The SATC Software is designed to perform functions reguired by
credit card issuers, including applications processing and tracking credit
evaluations, credit authorization and the printing of statements. In the
event the final payment is not made, the subsidiary will not acgquire title.
Netsmar:t has an agreement with Oasis pursuant to which Oasis 1s to make the
remaining payments and it is negotiating an agreement with Oasis pursuant to
which the subsidiary will become a joint venture corporation owned 50% by
Netsmart and 50% by Oasis and/or its principals.

Markets and Marketing

. zhe market for smart card systems includes numerous applications

Alchoug

wnere a secure distributed data base processing system is important, CSM's
initlal marketing efforts were directed to the health and human services
marsez, including managed care organizations and entitlement programs. 1In the
Unzzed States alone, CSM believes that there are presently more than 75
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n.--ion persons whe participate in managed care programs, which are sponsored
- almost €00 crganizations or health insurers. Because of the relationship
“wE&enL The organization and the participating medical care providers and

-ents, the organization can institute a smart card system without the need
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fcr TSM to conduct a separate marketing effort directed at the medical care
providers Although independen: health :nsurers which do not operate a
maraged care organization may, in the future, be a market for a smart card

~-em, because the relationship between the insurer and the medical care
c'ider i1s different from that of the managed care organization and its
T-icipating medical care providers, CSM is not treating independent
:Surance companies as a market for the CarreSmart System, and no assurance
. be given that it will ever become a market for the system.
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The marker for CSM'c ™=alth information systems and related services is
Icgm;::sed of variow roviders of specialty care involving long-term treatment
©- & repetitive natL. rather that shorr-term critical care, such as medical
anc surgical hospitals or clinics. CSM believes that there are approximately
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15,000 providers of such creatment programs in the United States, including
public and private hospitals, private and communitv-based resident:al
£acilities and Federal, state and local governmen:al agencies. Of these
faczilities, approx:mately 200 are customers of CSM.

Nersmart believes that the acquisition of the CSM business and assets
complements its CarteSmart business and personnel. Following the acquisition,
lezsmart developed the graphical and smart card in:zerface to the CSM health
information system and commenced a marketing effor:t directed to the Netsmart's
customer base. The two smart card agreements, San Diegc County and the Alber:
Einstein Schocl of Medicine, represent amendments tO e€Xi1Sting contraczs to
:nzlude smart card services.

Netsmarz's health information systems are marketed principally to specialized
re facilities, many of which are operated by government ent:ties and include
cizlement programs. During the vears ended December 11, 1295, 1994 and

€3, approximately 54%, 49% and 47%, respectively, of CSM's revenues was
generated from contracts with government agencies. Contracts with governmen:
agencies generally include provisions which permit the contracting agency to
cancel the contract at its convenience.

* N
ool

For the year ended December 31, 1995, one customer accounted for more than 5%
of Netsmart's revenue. The State of Colcrado generated revenue of
approximately 1.4 million, representing 18.5% of revenue for the year. A:
January 31, 1996, this contract was substantially completed. Percentage of
completion is based on the percentage of work performed by such date. CSM's
largest customer for 1994 was Cuyahoga County (Cleveland) Ohio, from which CSM
recognized revenue of $250,000, or 7.0% of revenue. During 1993, CSM had two
customers which accounted for at least 5% of its revenue. Its largest
customer for 1993 was the Cicty of Baltimore, which entered inteo a contract
with CSM for approximately SBOO,000 for software licenses and various contract
services, maintenance, hardware and software. CSM's revenue from the
Bal:timore con:tract accounted for $312,000, or 63% of revenue, in 1993. The
contrac: was completed in July 1994, and revenue from the contract in 1994 was
uostantially less than such revenue was in 1993, A contract with the City of
—-s Angelies accounted for 52% cf revenue for 1991,

etsmar:z believes that the CarteSmart scftware has applications beyond the
nez2lth and human services marke: and is seeking tc market _he software to
sZucational institutions and :n the financial services industry. In April
-3, Netsmar: entered into a joint marketing agreement with Oasis, pursuan:
< which each company markets the software of the other company. Oasis, an
:ndependent scfitware developer, has developed and markets a transaction
trocessing system, known as IST/Share, designed for high volume users in the
:.nancial serwices industry. Mr. Storm R. Morgan, a director of and

-—nsultant tc Netsmart, is an officer of, and has an equity interest in Oasis.
liztsmart believes that its agreement with Oasis will enhance its ability to
market and introduce its product to the financial services industry where
Cacis has an existing client base.

Lieismart may enter intre negotiations with other companies which have business,
cduct lines or pro 'ts which are compatible with Netsmart's business
Jectives. However: 10 assirance can be given as to the ability of Netsmart
enter into any agreement with such a company or that any agreement will
esult 1n licenses of the CarteSmart System.
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At December 31, 1995, Nets..art had a backlog of orders, including ongoing
maintenance and data center contracts, in the aggregate amount of $4.2

million, substantially all of which are expected to be filled during 199¢.
Such orders and contrac:s relate tc health information sales and services.

Necsimart's sales force is comprised of three full-time sales representatives,
as well as Mr. Leonard M. Luttinger, chief operating officer, John F.
phillips, president of CSM, and SMI, a consultant to Netsmart. Mr. Storm R.
Morgan's services include activities relating to the marketing of the
CarteSmar: System to industries outside of the medical field. His present
efforts are devoted principally to the financial services industry. In
addizion Mr. Luttinger and other members of Netsmart's technical staff are
available to assist ir market support., especially for prcocposals which
contemplate the use of smart card transaction processing networks.

Product Develocpment

Netsmart is continuing the development and enhancement of the CarteSmart
System, and six of its employees are engaged in such activities, for the year
ended December 31, 1995 and the year ended December 31, 1594, research and
development expenses were $69%,000 and $367,000, respectively, representing a
890.4% increase. The increase reflects research and development for smart card
and related products and the graphical interface for Netsmart's health
information systems. Netsmart intends to expand its development activities
following completion of its public offering of stock. Netsmart intends to
develop a product based on both the SATC Software and its own technologies
including the CarteSmart System, and to develop a network support tool for the
f£inancial services industry. The proposed enhancements include an increased
language capability so that it can be multilingual, an interface with the
CarteSmart System and an interface with Oasis' IST/Share, which is a
:rgnsa::;cn processing system for high volume users in the financial services
ingduscry.

Wetsmart is in the business of licensing software to entitlement programs and
managel cCare organizations, specialty care institutions and other major
ciTmpiter users who nave a need for access to a distributed data network and

ng health information systems software to specialty care organizations.
b tware industry in general is highly competitive, in addition, with
€cnnological developments in the communications industry, it is possible that
cimTunications as well as comput.r and scftware companies may offer similar or
<ctratible services. Although Netsmar: believes that it can provide a health
Ccar= facility or managed care organitation with software to enable it to
£ericrm its services more effectively, cther companies, including major
corruter and communications companies have the staff and resources to develop
-~mpelitive systems, and users, Such as insurance companies, have the abilicy

sevelop software systems in house. Because of the large subscriber base

Na==rar* 1t

participating 'n the major managed care organizations, the inability of
H?;smart to lizense an- .uch organizations could have a materially adverse
--©@<t upon its busine . Furthermore, various companies have offered smart
carc programs, by whic.. a persin can have his medical records stored and
Sciiware vendors and insurance companies have developed software to enable a
physician or other medical care provider to have direct access to the

-fis-rer's computer and other software designed to maintain patient health
anc/or medication records. The market is very cost sensitive. In marketing
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systems such as the Carte.mart System, Necsmart rust be able tc demonstrate
the ability of the network sponsor to provide enhanced services at lower
effecrive cost. Major systems and consulting vendors, such as Unisys, ATET
Corp. and Andersen Worldwide may offer packages which include smar:t cards an:c
other network services. No assurance can be given that Netsmart will be able
to tompecre successfully with such competitors. Netsmart believes the heal:h
insurance industry is developing switching software to be used in transmit:z:nz
claims from health care providers to the insurers, and insurers or managed
care organizations may also develop or license or purchase from others the
software to process such clams, which would compete with certain functicns cf
the CarteSmart System. The health information systems business is highly
competitive, and is serviced by a number of major companies and a larger
number of smaller companies, many of which are better capital:zed, be:ter
known and have better marketing staffs than Netsmart, and noc assurance can be
given that Netsmart will be able to compete effectively with such companies
Major vendors of health information systems include Shared Medical Systems
Corp. and HBO Corp. Netsmart believes that price competition is a sign:fican:
factor in its ability to market its health information systems and serv:ices,
and was a factor in the decline in CSM's revenue from 1992 to lower levels .n
1994 and 1993, although such revenue increased during 1955.

Netsmart alsoc faces intense competition as it seeks to enter the education and
financial services markets. Competition for the education market includes no-
only major and minor software developers, but credit card issuers and
telecommunications companies. In marketing its CarteSmart-based products to
educaticnal institutions, Netsmart can focus on the benefits to the universitv
of providing an all-purpose card to ease administration and reduce costs.
Major credit card issuers and communications companies, such as American
Express, AT&T and MCI, can offer similar services by permitting the university
tc link thelir cards with the university's services. Such organizations can
alsc use these marketing efforts sc a par: of their overall corporate
marketing strategy to familiarize the students with their particular cards and
services in hopes of attracting the students as a long-term user of their
cards and services. As part of a market:ng plan, rather than a profit center,
such card 1ssuers may be able to cffer the universities services similar to
letsmar:, but at a lower cost to the un:versity. 1In this context, it is
possible that, unless Netsmart can enter into a marketing »rrangement with a
major card issuer or telecommunications company, Netsmart may not be able to
compete successfully in marketing :ts CarteSmart products to educational

~nsTltutions.

Tnz financial services industry s serveZ by numerocus software vendors. In
aciition, major banks, credit card issuers and other financial services
ccTpanies have the resources to develop networking software in house. At
trzsent, most financial instituticns use magnetic stripe cards rather than
smart cards. Netsmart believes that its CarteSmar:t System together with the
5~7C Sofrware and its joint marketing agreement with Oasis, which presently
serves tne financial services industry, will assist Netsmart in selling and
i-censing its products and services in the financial services industry.
However, to t.e exten® ~hat smart cards become more important in the financial
services industry, m companies :n the financial services industry, as well
as t“he major computer 1d sof :ware companies, all of whom are better known and
ubstantially better.capitalized than Netsmart, and numerous smaller software
developers, are expected to play in increasingly active role in developing and
marketing smart card based products. No assurance can be given as to the
ac:lity of Netsmart to compete in this industry.
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Government Regulations

The -Federal and state governments have adopted numerdus regulations relating
ro the health care-industry, including regulations reslating to the paymenis to
nealth care providers for various services. The adoption aF new regulacions
can‘have a significant effect upon the operations of health’ care providers and
insurance companies. Although Netsmart's business 1s aimed & meesing certain
of the problems resulting from government regulations and from efforts to
reduce the cost of health care, the effect of future regulations by
governments and payment practices by government agencies or health insurers,
including reductions in the funding for or scope of entitlement programs,
cannot be predicted. Any change in, the structure of henl;hrcare in the
Unized States can have a material effect on companies providing services,
including those providing software. Although Netsmart believes that one
likely direction which may result from the current study of the health care
industry would be an increased trend to managed care programs, which is the
market to which Netsmart is seeking to license its CarteSmart System. No
assurance can be given that Netsmart's business will benefit from any changes
in the industry structure. Even if the industry does evolve toward more
health care being provided by managed care organizations, it is possible that
there will be substantial concentration in a few very large organizations,
which may seek to develop their own software or obtain software from other
sources. To the extent that the health care industry evolves with greater
government sponsored programs and less privately run organizations, Netsmart's
business may be adversely affected. Furthermore, to the extant that each
state changes its own regulations in the health care field, it may be
necessary for Netsmart to modify its health information systems tc meet any
new record-keeping or other requirements imposed by changes in regulations,
and no assurance can be given that Netsmart will be able to generate revenues
suflicient to cover the costs of developing the modificacions.

~» supstantial percentage of CSM's business has been with government agencies,
inc.uding specialized care facilities operated by, or under contract with,
government agencies. The decision on the part of a government agency to enter
intc & contract is dependent upon a number of factors, including economic and
fudzstary problems affecting the local area, and government procurement
*gu-.ations, which may include the need for approval by more than one agency
fcre a contract is signed. In addition, contracts with government agencies

¥ include provisions which permit the contracting agency to cancel the
T its convenience

-nt=.lectual Property Rights

-arteSmart System is a proprietary system developed by Netsmart, and its
#=a-th information system software 1s proprietary software developed by CSM.
hsismart nas no patent rights for the CarteSmart System or health information
§rstem software, but it relies upon non-disclosure and Becrecy agreements with
employees and third parties to whom Netsmart discloses information. No
urance can be given that Netsmarr will be able to protect its proprietary
AtS To "ts system Or that any third party will not claim rights in the
srstem. Dusclosur’ .f the codes used in the CarteSmart System or in any
Tietary produc whether or not in violation of a non-disclosure

ement, could hav.: a ma.erially adverse affect upon Netsmart, even if

smart is successful in obtaining injunctive relief, and no assurance can be
en that Netsmart will be able to obtain injunctive relief. Furthermore,
Netsmart may not be able to enforce its rights in the CarteSmart System in
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cértain foreign countries.

Prior to joining Netsmart, Messrs., Leonard M. Lutiinger and Thomas L. Evans.
chief operating officer and vice president, relpactzvtlg, of Netsmartc, were
employed by Onecard Corporation ("Onecard"), a corporation which was engaged
in the development of smart card technology. Netsmart developed its
CarteSmart technology independent of Onecard, and no Onecard technology was |
incorporated in the CarteSmart technology. 3

Source of Supply 3
Since Netsmart does not provide any of the hardware or the smar: cards it :s 3
the responsibility of the licensee to obtain the hardware smar: cards and

other supplies. Netsmart's software operates on computer hardware and smart
cards manufactured by a number of suppliers.

Porential Business Agreements

Following completion of it's anticipated public offering in 1996, Netsmart may
enter into joint ventures, acquisitions or other arrangements, such as joint
marketing arrangements and licensing agreements, which Netsmart believes would
further Netsmart's growth and development. In negotiating such agreements or
arrangements, Netsmart anticipates that such agreements would he based upon
the manner in which Netsmart's business can be ¢£xpanded, the extent toc which
either Netsmart's technology can be introduced or developed in fields not then
being addressed by Netsmart or the extent to which additiana; channels can be
developed for Netsmart's products and technology. Netsmart is a participant
in a joint marketing vehicle by which Netsmart's products can be marketed by
other parties to the marketing arrangement, including IBM, and Netsmart would
have access to customers of the marketing partners. Netsmart's proposed joint
venture with Oasis to purchase the SATC Software and its joint marketing
agreement with Oasis are other examples of such agreements. Although Netsmart
15 engaged in negotiations and performing its due diligence investigations,
with respect to a potential acguisition, Netsmart has not entered into any
letters of intent or agreements with respect to any such arrangements or
transactions. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that any agreement which
Netsmar: enters into will generate any revenue to Netsmart. To the extent
that Netsmart enters into an agreement with an affiliated party, the terms and
cenditions of such agreement will be on terms at least as favorable to
Netsmart as those Netsmart could achieve in negotiations at arm's length with
ar. independent third party. If any such agreement is with an affiliated
party, Netsmart will seek the approval of a majority of the directors who have
nz affiliation with the other party .

Erzloyees

»s of December 31, 1995, Netsmart had 72 employees, including five executive,
seven marketing and marketing support, 54 technical and six clerical and
administrative employees. The chief executive officer and the president of
Netsmart devote only a pertion of their time to the business of Netsmart., 1If
& public offering is completed, NeLsmar:t intends to hire additional personnel
as needed.

THREE DIMENSIONAL JDUCTS AND SERVICES

3D Technology, Inc.
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3pT is engaged in the deve.opment and marketing of products based on
three-dimensional imaging and digitizing technology. ‘Three-dimensional
digitizing is the process of constructing a digital image of an objec:. Three
dimsnsional digitizing products are used in various phases of the development
and manufacture of a product, including rapid prototyping, manufacturing of
comconents and quality contrel. 3DT's scanning products can generate
dig-cized images which can be input into computer assisted design or computer
ass:sted manufacturing ("CAD/CAM") software systems.

iDT was founded to develcop solutions using three-dimensional imaging
technology in response to a perceived need by the manufacturing and metrology
industries for products to enable them to develop and introduce new products
anc o improve the guality control and maintenance operations. As a result of
developments in laser and other imaging technologies, it became possible in
many instances for a manufacturer to design products more efficiently using
three-dimensiconal imaging technology either by itself or combined with CAD/CAM
systems. It also became easier to duplicate products for which the
manufacturer did not have drawings of the molds. Similarly in metrology,
which is the science of measuring, it became possible to determine rapaidly
whecher a product or part meets the specifications and tolerances, either at
the manufacturing facility at the time of production or in the field as part

of continued maintenance.

CAD/CAM systems are software systems used to design products and to generate
the necessary computerized instructions for the manufacture of an object in
accordance with the computerized design. The resulting computer instructions
can be translated into instructions for computerized numeric control ("CNC")
or computerized measuring machines ("CMM") or stored as a data base for future
reference. CNC eguipment is manufacturing or milling equipment which is
programmed to manufacture a part or component based on computerized
instructions. The computerized instructions can be generated by either
CAD/CAM systems or directly from scanning equipment. CMM equipment is used in
gua.ity control to ascertain whether the finished product conforms to the

Ere=t 3 mae s
SPECaaac a.i0m.

Ragi.c prototyping is the generation of a physical model of a product. The
model can be either designed on a CAD system or produced from digital
-nicrmation generated by a scan of the object. Scanning eguipment, such as
2Z7's OpticaTM laser scanner, can generate a digitized image .f an object in a
SoIm ownich can be input into & CAD program and modified in the CAD system to
= the design reguirements of the manufacturer. The use of rapid

ciotyping systeme is intended to reduce the development time of a product.
mar.d prctotyping systems are used in industries such as the automotive,
@'latior and medical fields which devote substantial resource to product

cez.an

- tne manufacturing process, a laser scanner can be mounted directly onto
mar.lacturing equipment, principally CNC equipment, which uses the digitized
-hiormation to generate an object having the same outside dimensions as the
scanned object. In addition, in the same manner as rapid prototyping, the
Starned image can be us- as the basis for the further development of a
FroZuct, and the data ¢ erated can be used either to make the product or to
mare the molds and dies _sed in the manufacture of the product. 3DT's Optical
-@SEr scanner 1s designed to enable a manufacturer to perform these functions.

-

=ince the scanning operations generate a computer file setting forth the
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dimensions and other mea..rements of an object, this information can be used
in guality control and maintenance to determine whether the object being
sganned meets the required specifications and tolerances. 3DT's Lazer
TracerTM 1s designed to be used by quality control and maintenance personnel
to determine whether the finished product complies with the specifications,

3DT is the exclusive distributor in Europe and Israel of the SurfacerT™
scftware product lines, which 3DT markets pursuant to an agreement with
Imageware, Inc. ("Imageware"). The Surfacer software is designed to convert
the mathematical information generated by a laser sensor or other :maging
device into a useful computer format. While the digitized data can be input
into and can be recognized by CAD/CAM systems, the image generated consists of
lines and points, but does not show any surface or covering on the image. The
Surfacer software converts the mathematical data into an image with a surface
having the tension and other characteristics set by the user., Using Surfacer,
the CAD/CAM system can project a three-dimensional image of the objec:t as a
completed product on the computer screen, and the operator of the system can
work with the generated object.

iDT also distributes VisiCad and VisiCam software pursuant to an exclusive
distribution agreement with Vero International Software Srl, an Italian
corporation. VisiCad is a PC-based surface and.solids modeling and design
package which is used to create three-dimensional designs. VisiCam is a
PC-based multi-axis, multi-surface, milling and turning and EDM CAM package
which can use information generated by Surfacer or VisiCad to complete the
manufacturing of a product.

In addition to the hardware and software products which 3DT markets, 3DT
offers scanning and digitizing services for customers who do not reguire a
scanning system but can use a folio which can be used in the customer's
CAD/CAM systems or which can be input directly into the customer's CNC
equipment.

3CT has completed the development of a foot digitizer. which is used to
develop shoes and shoe-lasts for a person based upon the digitized image of
nzg foct. 3IDT has an informal agreement with a manufacturer of non-laser
scanners, to develcop an initial prototype of a foot digitizer. 3DT is
discussing with four major shoe companies the potential of .arketing the foot
Z:gitizer system for custom shoe and orthopedic shoe applications.

Trnree Dimensional Products and Services
~c::ical Laser Scanner and Lazer Tracer

:27 has developed two laser scanning products -- its Optical laser scanner
wrizch can be either mounted on CNC or CMM equipment or interfaced with CAD/CAM
=zuipment, and its Lazer Tracer, which is a hand-held countour-measuring
cstem designed to be used for quality control. The computerized instructions
can be eithe: generated by CAD/CAM equipment or directly from scanning
=zuipment. 3DT inty .ced both the Optical laser scanner and the Lazer Tracer
T spring 1994. How ., 3IDT has not generated any significant revenue from
nese products. The Lazer Tiacer is based on certain patents ("GE patent
1gnts") being acguired by 3DT from General Electric Company ("GE") pursuant

© a January 1994 agreement. Pursuant to the agreement with GE, 3DT acquired
four uncompleted prototypes for the Lazer Tracer and is required to complete
tne development of the prototypes and to deliver them to GE.
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iDT's Optical laser sensor .akes a three-dimensional pacture of a solid objec:
by recording the reflection of a beam of light that is "reflected" off the
solid object and is recorded by a special camera that converts the light
emizted by the laser and projected onto the object's surface into electrical
impulses and digitizes the input. It enables a user to reconstruct a phvsical
objedt by converting the image generated by the sensor into a
three-dimensional replication by identifying the points on the surface of the
object into a series of mathematical x, y and : coordinates. These
coordinates represent the height, width and depth of each peint on a
three-dimensional grid. The proposed laser scanner, is designed to interface
with most standard CNC ceontrollers and can be mounted directly onto a CNC
machine. The digitizing software incorpcrated into the laser scanner can
generate data in formacts which are accepted by standard CAD/CAM software.

Once the data is input into a CAD/CAM system, it can be modified to meet the
manufacturers specific needs. The Optical laser scanners are manufactured by
a nonaffiliated company, which is using its own base technology to meet 3DT's
specific needs. However, 3DT doss not have any long-term agreement with the

supplier.

The principal uses for 3DT's Ortical laser scanner include rapid prototyping
and reverse engineering, duplication of parts or components for which there is
ne CAD design. The software in the scanner enables the user to see a virtual
image of the product on a computer screen in addition to producing a physical
model of the product. By being able to visualize and feel a model of a
product, a manufacturer can save substantial time and effort and introduce the
product to market earlier than would otherwise be the case. In cases where
the manufacturer has a part, but not a computer design, the scanner can be
usec tc produce a virtual image that is needed to create a CAD model from
which a die or mold can be produced. Using this method, a manufacturer can
make an exact duplicate of almost any item ranging from antigue furniture to
plastic bottles and containers to automobile and aircraft parts.

cer Tracer, which is based on a GE patent, is designed for the
industry and uses laser technology to measure geometric features
21, angles and curves. Unlike the Optical laser scanner, which can
easuring tasks, the Lazer Tracer is hand held and is designed
T the assembly lines and in maintenance operations where the
performance of a part is important. The Lazer Tracer is designed to
€ various parameters against stored information as t~ the
ions and permissible toclerances. The unit 1s intended to be used in
nment and will provide guick indications whether the product meets
ications. The guality con:irol functions can be used in any facility
e -5 1mportant t¢ know rapidly whether the product complies with the
F=-.fications, especially when it i1s difficult for another measuring device
- cetermine whether the product conforms to specifications. The unit has
drr..cations in field maintenance where precision is crucial to determining
«wn=iner the cbject continues to conform to specifications. One such
dfz.-cation 1s aircraft maintenance where another measuring device may have
Siificulty in determining whether the blade of a jet engine continues to meet
spezilications. The patents cover hand scanning devices which can be used
-r=ns metrology industry. 3DT commenced marketing both the Optical laser
scarner and the lazer Tre--: during summer of 1995, however, no such efforts
have resulted in signific ¢ revenue
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The laser sensors and other laser based products are subject to regulation by
Federal Bureau of Radiation Health ("BRH") of the Occupational Safety and
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Health Administration, wwich reguires that all such products meet certain
standards. 3DT has filed with the BRH applications with respect tc 1ts laser
products, and 3DT may sell the products in the Un:ted States. Other
countries, includ:ing Canada, also may subject laser products to regu.ation.

k- |
IDT intends to make application under applicable laws to market its products

in Canada.
Surfacer Software

The Surfacer software is a software environment for working with
three-dimensional data. The data can be generated by any source, including
cthree-dimensional scanners utilizing laser and other technology, medical and
other imaging systems. While the digitized data can be input intc and can be
recognized by a CAD/CAM system, the image generated consists of lines and
points, but does not show any surface or covering on the image. This software
5 designed to convert the information generated by a laser sensor or other
imaging device intc a mathematical representation of the model. Using
Surfacer, the CAD/CAM system can project a three- dimensional image of the
object on the computer screen, and the operator of the system can work with
the generated object.

iDT and Imageware believe that the Surfacer software cap be used in numerous
industrial and other applications, especially in industries where the
appearance of a product is important, such as the automobile industry. Using
scanning and the Surfacer software, an automobile manufacturer can develop and
evaluate a model of a new automobile in a much shorter time period and can
improve the guality of the assembly process.

Pursuant to its agreement with Imageware, dated as of February 1, 1993,
Imageware appointed 3DT as its exclusive distributor for the Surfacer software
in Europe and Israel, 3DT has the right to sell software licenses to end
users in the territory. In addition, Imageware has the right to market the
Surfacer software to original eguipment manufacturers ("OEM"); however,
Imageware has the sole right to approve an OEM arrangement, which is made
directly between 3DT's customer and Imageware.

The agrenmen: continues until March 31, 1997; however, Imageware has the right
iz terminate the agreement prior to such date in the event thaz 3DT fails to

= its sales guctas for twc consecutive calendar quarters. The agreement
ides that 3DT's quotas fcor each calendar guarter, commencing with the

ter endinc September 30, 1294, are based on lmageware's sales of its

acer software in the United States. The termination of the Imageware
ement would have a material adverse effect upon 3DT.
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:2T's customers for the Surfacer scftware include major European manufacturing

ccmpanies in such industries as automotive, aerospace and manufacturing. 3DI,
. subsidiary of IDT, has received an order from Audi and BMW of Germany, Rover

ci the United Kingdom and Saab of Sweden.

viciCad is a ctate-of- 3-art PC-based surface and solids modeling software
and design package use ¢o0 creite three dimensional models using both
MS-Windows 95 and MS-Windows NI software environments. The different VisiCad
modules allow a designer to elaborate on models be using a flexible and
intelligent sketcher without the need for concentration on choosing detailed
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geometry commands. For e..mple, in constructing a line that connects two
other elements, VisiCad presents all tangency and separation possibilities
aczcrding to the position of the cursor line without recourse to the menus.

VisiCam is a state-of-the-art PC-based multi-axis, multi-surface milling,
turning and EDM CAM scftware package which uses information generated by
Surfacer or VisiCad, or other CAD system, to complece the manu!uc:u;;pg of a
product. VisiCam offers surfacing, milling and editing modules. VisiCam is
an easy to use series of software packages featuring pop-down menus and
dialogue boxes and powerful commands, all available by clicking a mouse. It
also offers a range of CNC applications and an integrated geometry generaticn
and machine toel simulation package.

Digitizing and Design Services

3DT has recently begun tc offer imaging, digitizing and product development
services at its Connecticut and Belgium offices. These services involve the
digitizing of an object provided by the client, the use of the Surfacer
software to generate an image with the desired surface and the delivery of a
computer file which can be used in any CAD/CAM system. In addition, 3DT can
deliver a prototype of a scanned model. 3DT offers these services both as an
independent source of revenue and as a part of its marketing program for its
products and services. These services have generated only minimal revenue
through December 31, 1954, and no assurance can be given that 3DT will ever
generate meaningful revenue from this service or that the service will assist
it in promoting its products and services.

Foot Digicizer

327 has an informal agreement with a nonaffiliated West German manufacturer of
non-laser based three- dimensional scanning equipment pursuant to which such
manufacturer has developed for 3DT a prototype of the Foot Digitizer. The

Foot Digitizer is a three-dimensional scanner which rapidly scans a human
foss Tne resulting scan is designed tc be used to develop shoe molds which
ars custom designed for the scanned foot. The Foot Digitizer is expected to
be marketed to manufacturers of orthopedic shoes and custom made footwear.

ility of 3DT to market the Foot Digitizer will be dependent upon 3DT's
acility to demonstrate to custom shoe manufacturers that the Foot Digitizer

sents a method of increasing revenues and gross profit, as to which no
c_urance can be given.

i
.
Lo

——
o

#r=zently, this system is going through clinical testing at the Norway
-r-ncpedic Center for European FDA approval. 3DT, through its offices in
fz.cium f:led an EEC project during March 1995, with other industrial market
rs from Europe, to make a total system that will be utilized to produce
casts automatically from a dig:tized foot. Upon approval, the EEC may
-wnZ this project on an installment basis. 3DT would manage the project and

€rzablish worldwide marketing and distribution channels

Sy
=aldse

Ctner Products

i addition to its products and software, 3DT has marketing rights with
respect to CAD CAM sofi- .e and hardware. As a result, 3DT is able to market
an integrated system t \eet the specific needs of its clients. Such a system
could include an Optice. scanner or Lazer Tracer, the Surfacer sortware,
CAD/CAM software and hardware. 3DT has received a purchase order for one such
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s}stem at a price of apr.oximately S110,000.

Matkets and Marketing

The market for three-dimensional scanning equipment and the Surfacer software
includes a range of manufacturing and industrial companies in industries as
varied as the automotive and aircraft, manufacturers cf molds and dies for
plastic containers, toys and any industry or applicaticn where the creation of
a product requires the development of ar accurate three-dimensional model.
Ancther aspect of the market for three-dimensional scanning is the metrology
market, where precise measurements are required to determine whether a product
meezs the specifications.

Tc date, 3DT's marketing effort has beern directed principally to marketing the
Surfacer software in Europe. 3DT's Eurcpean marketing staff operates from its
Eurcpean headguarters in Belgium, and it has sales agencies in the United
Kingdom and Germany. Its marketing effcrt for the Surfacer is conducted by
both an in-house sales and service staff and a network of representatives.
Wicth the recent market introduction of the Optical laser scanner and the Lazer
Tracer, 3DT has commenced marketing its products both directly to end users,
including customers who would purchase the products on an OEM or VAR basis,
and it is seeking to establish a network of representatives.

Competition

iDT's products compete with other laser scanning products as well as products
which scan objects using technologies which are not laser based. Competition
is based on the cost and safety or perceived safety of the equipment, the
specific requirements of the user, the compatibility of the scanning equipment
with the user's CAD/CAM and manufacturing equipment and the cost savings
expected to be realized from the purchase of the eguipment. 3DT's compertitors
inczlude a number of small and medium sized companies that offer products that
are designed for certain specific applications. No assurance can be given
that 3DT will be able to compete successfully with such competitors.

inz=llectual Property Rights

January 1994, 3DT entered into an agreement wicth GE pursuant to which it
eed to purchase from GE a paten: and patent application relating to the
hnology used in the Lazer Tracer. The agreement requires 3DT to pay the
hase price of $§175,000 as follows: $25,000 on signing .he contract, which
»ment has been made, and three payments of $50,000 due at various times

3DT has delivered the fourth Lazer Tracer unit, or earlier based upon

's sales of Lazer Tracer units. The agreement also grants 3DT a license to
use certain GE technology relating to the Lazer Tracer. The agreement also
g:ves GE a non-exclusive irrevocable rights to use the GE patent rights.

Under the agreement, until the purchase price is paid, 3DT has a revocable
-icense to use the GE patent rights. Upon payment of the balance of the
curchase price, 3DT will receive title to the GE patent rights, subject to any
licenses previously granted by GE. GE has agreed to give 3DT notice prior to
granting any such licenses, which will enable 3DT to take title to the GE
patent rights prior to the grant of any license by GE. No assurance can be
c:ven that the GE pa¥- . rights will be effective in limiting the development
oI compering product: y others who could design around the patents. Except
for the GE patent rign.s, 3DT has no other patent or copyrights on its
products. Although 3DT has signed non-disclosure agreements with its
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employees and others to . om it disclose proprietary information, no assurance
can be given that such protection will be sufficient. The unauthor:zed use or
digclosure of 3DT's proprietary software and other proprietary informaticon may
have a materially adverse effect upon 1ts business.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

ARC Networks, Inc.

ARC Networks was acquired by the Company in December 1953 at the same time as
the Company acquired Avionics. ARC Networks was formed by the senior officers
of Avionics in 1993 to market a range of telecommunications services to meet
the specific needs of its customers. 1In partarmigg :hese services, ARC
Networks analyzes the client's current telecommunications services and 1its
anticipated short and medium term requirements and seeks to design and
implement a telecommunications program to meet such needs. Such services may
include designing a client's internal voice, video and/or data communications
network or a local area network for intra-office voice and data communications
or a wide area network to enable each office to communicate internally,
locally, nationally and internationally through one or more local or
long-distance carriers. As a distributor of Ericsson Business Communications.
Inc. equipment, ARC Networks can offer a range of telecommunications switching
and other telecommunications equipment, which could be included as part of a
total telecommunications package.

In 1993, ARC Networks entered into a ten-year national agreement with Teleport:
Communications Group, Inc. ("TCG") pursuant to which ARC Networks can resell
local telephone service offered by T(3, which utilizes its own fiber optic
network to bypass the service presently offered by the local telephone
companies. Until recently, only the local telephone company could offer local
telepnone service; however, TCG is presently providing local telephone
service, which was made possible in New York by rulings of the New York
Public Service Commission to deregulare local telephone services. TCG was
founded by Merrill Lynch in 1983 to provide long-distance communications for
2tf owrn use and other corporations oased in lower Manhattan in New York City.
ART Networks is marketing local telephone service as an enhancement to a
te_scommunications services program which ARC Networks designs to enable a
Tusiomer to minimize the customer's exposure to telecommunications downtime.

1Y, ARC Network, under the agreement is operating in New York and has a
tomer in San Francisco. Additionally, ARC Network plans to market to
cipal cities throughout the United States.

Unoer the agreements with TCG, ARC Networks has the right to resell

Fc-nt-to-point and local telephone services in every city served by TCG. ARC
liezworks purchases minutes of telephone time at discounted bulk rates from TCG
arc resells those minutes at a premium over cCost to its clients. ARC Networks
Go=: not believe its contractual obligations to purchase telephone usage from

-~

<CZ represents a material commitment.

Networks believes that it can enhance its position with its clients by

CiZering a vilue added consulting and telephone management service. The local
t<.ephone se.vice in ch city 1s presently dominated by the local telephone
companies, who are e, cted to compete vigorously with resellers.

f:::hermore, other companies, including long-distance carriers and other

in
]

.ephone companies, may seek to offer local telephone service,
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ARC Networks markets it. service to high volume commercial users of
telecommunications service through a small in-house sales sta‘f and
independent telecommunications consultants, some of whom may also perferm
consulting services for poten:tial customers. It presently provides its
services to 40 accounts.

ARC Networks competes with numerous consulting firms, including major
international firms, consulting divisions of major accounting firms,
consulting divisions of eguipment manufacturers and numerous ndependent
£irms, some of which may have ongoing relationships with the poten:zial
clients, including relationships resulting from a prior emplovment or other
affiliation. The ability of ARC Networks to generate profitadble business 1is
dependent upon its ability to distinguish itself from the other firms offering
similar services, including and no assurance can be given as to their ability
tc generate profitable operations. The ability of ARC Networks to complete
successfully as a provider of local telephone telecommunicaticons service 1is
dependent upon both its ability to include such services as part of an
integrated telecommunications package and, in such capacity, to be able to
offer such users local telecommunications service of a quality comparable to
that offered by the local telephone companies and other major suppliers of
local telephone service at rates which are lower that the rates offered by the
local telephone operating company and other providers of local telephone
service. The market for local telephone service may be analogous to the
market for long-distance service. When competition was permitted in
long-distance telephone service, a large number of companies offered such
service, including many resellers. However, as the market matured, it became
dominated by a small number of long-distance carriers. Similarly, local
telephone service may become dominated by a small number of well-capitalized
companies and the competition among such companies may inhibit the growth of
resellers. Furthermore, local telephone service may become subject to
governmental regulations on a Federal, state and local basis. Accordingly, no
assurance can be given that ARC Networks can or will ever operate profitably
or that there will be a long-term market for the resale of local telephone

service

lecommunications services are subject to Federal, state and local
gulation. Although there has been considerable deregulation in the
elecommunications industry, there continue to be regulations affecting local

== =

=lephone service, both as to rates and nature of service provided and
siecommunications eguipment.
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EUSINESS CONSULTING SERVICES
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Capital Corporation

SI8C was organized by Consolidated for the purposes of making investments in
cr advancing funds to companies in which Consolidated has or proposes to
ootain an equity position. SISC or one of SISC's subsidiaries holds the
Company's equity and debt position in all of the operating subsidiaries. SISC
has also advanced approximately $1,072,000 to a nonaffiliated company which
was a debtor in possession pursuant to a Chapter 11 proceeding under the
Bankruptcy Act and for which the Company was also performing consulting
services. Effective- March 1995 the bankruptcy trustee's plan was confirmed
ir which the Compary has a s zer priority lien on the advances and has the
right to name a di'ector t: he debtor. If the debtor goes into default to
any creditor, the Company 1} the right to assume the operations of the debtor
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and to convert the debt t. aquity and at the election of the Company, may
receive additional shares of the debtor as a partial reduction of the secured
debr "enabling the Company teo have up to a 95% equity interest in the debtor.

The Trinity Group. Inc.

Trinity provides management and related services both to Consolidated's
subsidiaries as well as nonaffiliated entities. Trinity's management services
include management, finance, accounting, operations, marketing and other
services, which are typically rendered pursuant to a consulting agreement. In
the early stages of the subsidiaries' development, Trinity's officers, may
serve as senior executive officers of the subsidiaries. In add tion,
Consolidated, either through Trinity or cne of the other subsidiaries, may
provide or arrange financing for the subsidiaries. To the extent that the
subsidiaries are not generating an operating profit, Trinity may defer the
receipt of payment until the subsidiary has the resources toc pay the fee.

In addition to performing services for its subsidiaries, Trinity provides
similar management services for other companies which are not affiliated with
Consolidacted. Services for both the subsidiaries and non-affiliated companies
are performed principally by Lewis S. Schiller, chairman of the board,
president and chief executive officer of Consolidated. Other services may be
performed by other officers of Trinity or Consclidated or by independent
consultancs who are engaged on an ad hoc basis, The fee structure, which is
set prior to the engagement, may be paid in cash or securities. Trinity does
not conduct any advertising or any active marketing program. Typically,
Trinity is engaged as a result of personal contacts by Mr. Schiller.

Trinity competes with numerous consulting firms, including major international
£irms, consulting divisions of major accounting firms, consulting divisions of
egquipment manufacturers and numerous independent firms, some of which may have
ongeoing relationships with the potential clients, including relationships
resulting from a prior employment or other affiliacion. Trinity's ability to
compete successfully in providing consulting services is presently dependent
perscnal contacts of Mr. Lewis 5. Schiller, and no assurance can be
- at Trinity can or will be able to perform services for nonaffiliated
entizies To the extent that the services of Mr. Schiller are required for
nhe management, operation and funding of Consclidated's subsidiaries,
Tr.nity's ability to perform services for nonaffiliated parties is now

nificantly limiced.
Feszarch and Development

The Company's research and development and product development activities are
congducted by 3DT, CSM and Sequential, including its subsidiary S-Tech. The
Somzany's research and development expenses for the twelve month periods ended
smber 31, 1995 and December 31, 1994 and the fiscal years ended July 31,
%= and 1993 were approximately $893,000, 54,842,000, 51,902,000 and

(ol
]

oy

©3196,000, respectively. All research and development activities were
periormed by the subsidiaries and were company-financed. The Company's
ressarch and development and produc:t development efforts could be adversely
alflected by the lack of available funds.

DT's development effc: has related principally to the development of
scitware which integratec lase: sensors with computerized numerical control
equipment and other eguipment and in connection with the development of its
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) ﬁfuposed new products, i. .luding the proposed hand sensor and foot digitizing
system.

Emplovees
As of December 31, 1995, the Company employed an aggregate of 365 persons on a

full-time basis, of whom 102 were executive, managerial and administcrative, 32
were sales and marketing, 45 were manufacturing and 186 were technical. The
Company's manufacturing employees all work for either Sequential, S-Tech or
WWR and its technical personnel are employed by Netsmart, IMI, 3DT, and Trans
Global. 1In addition, at such date, Trans Global employed approximately 970
individuals who were employed by Trans Global performing work on a temporary
basis for, and on the premises of, its clients. The number of persons who are
employed by Trans Global varies from period to period, depending on the
requirements of their respective clients. All of the employees working for
Trans Global's clients are employed on a temporary basis. None of the
Company's employees are represented by a union, and the Company believes that

its employee relations are good.

Page 33




ltem 2. Property

Censblidacred and its subsidiaries, other than 3D International. IMI,
Seguential, S-Tech and WWR Technology, occupy an aggregate of approximately
7,000 square feet of office space, principally in New York City and Long

Island, New York and Connecticut.

3D International presently has offices in three cities in Eurcpe, where it
leases an aggregate of approximately 4,000 square feet.

Sequential occupies approximately 15,000 square feet of office and
manufacturing space in Elmsford, New York.

S-Tech occupies approximacely 6,500 square feet of manufacturing and office
space in West Babylon, New York.

IMI owned four of its Centers and leased the facilities for the remaining
centers. Each Center consists of 3,000 to 5,000 square feet, generally
located in a shopping plaza or suburban office park in close proximity to
major medical facilities. IMI also leases approximately 5,000 sgquare feet for
1ts executive and administrative headquarters in Boca Raton, Florida.

WWR Technology occupies approximately 70,000 feet of usable manufacturing,
office and storage space located in Hope, Arkansas.

The aggregate amount of annual rent payable by the Company, pased on leases in
effect as of December 31, 1995, is approximately $1,600,000. The Company
believes that its present space is adeguate to meet its present needs and that
additional space is available at suitable locations and on reasonable cerms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Holding Company:

v has been named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed by a company it

Tne Compan

was contemplating acquiring in January 1925 for alleged unauthorized use of
procrietary information specific to that line of business. Outside counsel
nandling this case has advised the Company that it has meritorious defenses to
cctain a dismissal of the lawsuit.
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Engineering Services:

]

in 3

¢ Government Printing Office wrote a subsidiary of the Company asking to be
imbursed a total of $296 for unauthorized timework on two programs. The
ubsidiary has been in contact with the Department of Justice which has stated
tna: they were declining prosecution of the subsidiary regarding this matcer.
Management believes these claims are without merit and intends to contest
tnese claims vigorously if reasserted by the Government Printing Office and
believe that the ultimate disposition of this matter will not have a material
agverse effect on the financial position of the Company.

o

Page 34




itém 3. Legal Proceedi: : (continued)

The ‘United Staces Department of Labor ("DOL") has filed a complain:t against
Job Shop Technical Services, Inc. ("Job Shop"}, a company from which a
subgidiary of the Company purchased certain assets and assumed certain
obligations, and its former principal shareholder for civil violations of
ERISA resulting from the failure of Job Shop to deposit emplovee contributions
o Job Shop's 401(k) retirement plan. A similar complaint was filed by former
employees of Job Shop against Job Shop, its former principal sharehclder and
others. At November 21, 1594, the amount due to the Job Shop 401 (k) plan was
approximately $3,000, which amount may have increased since such date as a
result of interest and penalties. Neither the Company nor RMI, which is the
subsidiary which acguired assets and assumed certain obligations of Job Shop
in November 1994, has been named as a defsndant in either of such actions.

The DOL has raised with the Company the possibility that RMI may be liable
with respect to Job Shop's ERISA liability as a successor corporation or
purchaser of plan assets, even though RMI may did not assume such obligations
and paid value for those assets which it did purchase. Although the Company
believes that RMI is not a successor corporation to Job Shop and is not
responsible for Job Shop's ERISA violations, the DOL may take a contrary
position. If the DOL takes such a position and prevails, it would have a
marterial adverse effect upon the operations of RMI and possibly the Company as

a whole.
Medical Information Services:

An action was commenced against a subsidiary of the Company by the filing of a
summons with notice in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of
New York. The action was commenced by Jacgue W. Pate, Jr., Melvin Pierce,
Herbert A. Meisler, John Gavin, Elaine Zanfini, individually and derivatively
as shareholders of Onecard Health Systems Corporation and Onecard Corporation,
which corporations are collectively referred to as "Onecard". The named
defendantcs include, in addition to the subsidiary, officers and directors or
the subsidiary and the Company. A complaint was filed on November 15, 1995.
The complaint makes broad cla:ms respecting alleged misappropriation of
Onecard's trade secrets, corporate assets and corporate opportunities, breach
of fiduciary relationship, unfair competition, fraud, breach of trust and
c-.her sgamilar allegations, apparently arising at the time of, or in connection
w2th the organization of the subsidiary in September 1992. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief and damages, including punitive damages of $130,000.
Management believes that the action is without merit, and it will vigorously
defend the action. Nevertheless, due to uncertainties in the legal process,
1T 1s at least reasonably possible that management's view of the outcome will .
change in the near term and there exists the possibility that there could be a
material adverse impact on the operations of the Company.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedinr (continued)

Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services:

There is an action pending against a subsidiary of the Company alleging claims
against the subsidiary for unauthorized use of the Klipsch trademark. The
Company denies these allegations and asserts there has been no material breach
of contract. The case is currently in the discovery phase and the amount of
any liability, if any, cannot be estimated. Management intends to defend
vigorously the claims alleged against the subsidiary. Nevertheless, due to
uncercainties in the legal process, it is at least reasonably possible that
management's view of the outcome will change in the near term and there exists
the possibility that there could be a material adverse impact on the

operations of the subsidiary.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No mactters were submitted to security holders for a vote during the year ended
December 31, 1985.
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part II
frein 5. Market for Reagistrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Ma:zterss
The, Company's Common Stock is traded on the Nasdaqg SmallCap Market under the
symbol COTG. Set forth below is the reported high and low bid prices of the
Common Stock for the fiscal quarters and transition period listed. Such
prices are as reported by Nasdaq since January 1994 and by National Quotation
Bureau derived from the pink sheets or OTC Bulletin Board for prior periods.
Such bid quotations reflect interdealer prices, without retail mark-up,
mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Quarter Ending High Bid Low Bid
March 31, 1994 6.62 5.75
June 30, 1994 €.62 3,25
September 30, 1994 4.50 0.87
December 31, 1994 1.25 0.50
March 31, 1995 1.28 0.63
June 30, 1995 1.19 0.88
September 30, 1985 0.94 0.50
December 31, 1995 0.63 0.25

As of December 31, 1995, there were approximately 19,300 holders of record of
the Company's common stock.

No cash dividends have been paid to the holders of the Common Stock during the
years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993,
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1 Data

Item 6. Selected Financ®
.- Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended July 3:,
1895 1954 1994 1993 19892
(in 000's except per share data)
Selected Statements
of Operations Data:
Revenues $110,097 541,578 $15,742 $ 3,839 S 4,533
EEEEmTE EEEEEE EEEEEE EEEEEE EEEEE=
Income (Loss) £rom
Operacions ($ 11,112) ($10,464) ($10,566) (§ 1,403) § 5%
EESEEESE EEEESo EEEEER AEEEEE EmEEE=s
Income (Loss) before
Extraordinary Item ($ 11,360) (S11,428 ($10,772) S 594 (s 122)
Extraordinary Item
- Net of Tax -- == - 146 --
Net Income (Loss) (s 11 360) ($11,428) ($10, ?12) S 740 (S 122)
aEEsEETD EEaEED EEEESN EEEEEE EEEEED
Net Income (Loss)
per Common Share ($0.51) ($0.80) (§1.35) §0.18 (50.03)
EEEE =E=== =EEEE EEEE EEEs
Selected Balance
Sheet Da:ta:
Total Assers S 66,312 568,089 £25,070 § 7,381 $ 4,775
EEESEEDR EEEEEE EEs==s EmEEEE EEEEEE
Long-term Obligations:
Long-term Debt and
CTapital Lease
Coligat:ons S E.408 $11.183 s 298 -- -
Subordinated Debt 5,002 17,526 -- - --
Tczal Lona-term SRR S
Ccligat:ions 513,411 $29,10% s 298 -- --

Casr-
per Common Share

Dividends Declared

following factors make the above selected fi

LLWE |
0
"om

the fcllowing indicated periods and reasons:
- The fiscal year ended July 31,

- The fiscal year ended July 11,
<ssuance of ‘tock opt‘-ns to consultantcs.
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1992 includes unusual income of $1,523.

1994 includes expense of $7,140 from the
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.IEem 6. Selected Finan 1l Data (continued):

*.4) The year ended December 31, 1994 includes expense of $4,140 Zrom the
issuance of stock options to consultants.

4) The year ended December 31, 1995 includes expense of $3,86% from the
issuance of stock options to consultants.

5) 1n December 1993, the Company acquired ARC Acguisition Group, Inc. and
ARC Networks, Inc. and in June 1954, the Company acquired Cresative
Socio-Medics, Inc. Such acguisitions resulted in: (i) an increase in assets
of approximately 513,000 as of July 31, 1994; (ii) an increase in revenues of
approximately $11,000 for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 and $14,400 for
the year ended December 31, 1994; and (iii) a net increase in net loss of
approximately $173 for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 and $1,600 for the

year ended December 31, 1594.

6) In September 1994 the Company acquired International Magnetic Imaging,
Inc. and in November 1994, the Company acquired Job Shop Technical Services
and Computer Engineering Services  Such acguisitions resulted in: (i) an
increase in assets of approximately $47,200 as of December 31, 1994; (ii) an
increase in revenues of approximately $11,500 for the year ended December 31,
1994; and (iii) a net decrease in net loss of approximately $270 for the year

ended December 31, 1994.

7) In May 1995 the Company acquired Concept Technologies resulting in: (i)
an increase in assets of approximately 51,780 as of December 31, 1995; (ii) an
increase in revenues of approximately $2,149 for the year ended December 31,
1995; and (iii) an increase in net loss of approximately $553 for the year

ended December 31, 1985.
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Trem 7. Management's Dis ssion and Analysis of Fin :ial Condition and
Results of Operations (in 000's except share data)

-
-

Financial Condition
Liguidity and Capital Resources

The Company's principal working capital consists of cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash eguivalents were $1,636 at December 31, 1995 compared to §1,727
at December 31, 1994. During the year ended December 31, 1995, the Company's
net cash provided by operations was 51,999 of which §5,950 related to the
cperations of International Magnetic Imaging, Inc., ("IMI") which means that
all other entities used a net amount ©of $3,951 in operations. As such it 1is
clear that on a consolidated basis, the Company's principal source of cash was
from the operations of IMI. Pursuant to an IMI financing agreement with a
creditor, restrictions exist on the distributions of IMI funds whereby IMI may
not make payments out of the ordinary course of IMI operations and
specifically, not to the parent company, (Consclidated), or any subsidiary or
affiliate. The other segments are thereby regquired to operate on their own
cash flows and as of December 31, 1995 the most significant impact from these
restrictions is on the Three Dimensional Products and Services and Medical
Information Services segments which are currently unable to operate without
significant cash infusions from the parent company, (Consolidated). If these
segments do not obtain alternative sources of funding (i.e. equity offerings,
creditor financing or increased volume), it is uncertain whether these
segments will continue as operating groups. The remaining segments have been
able to offset the cash used in operations by obtaining cash from financings

and subsidiary level equity offerings.

Sources of funds during the year ended December 31, 1995, cther than from
cperaticns includes $1,664 from debt financings, $5,181 from the issuance of
Stock anc the exercise of stock options, $504 of cash from an acquired
subsidiary, $530 from the sale of common stock investments and $220 from the
sa.e of fixed assets. The principal use of cash, other than to fund

includes SE,103 for payment on debt and capital lease obligations,

Cperations

%2> Ior the acguisition of a subsidiary, $684 for the purchase of fixed
acssis anc $12¢% for coffering costs. le: other uses of cash amounted to $290
Worrxing capit assets, other than cash, increased by $2,559. Receivables

2,3%¢ of which approx:mately $293 is due to acguisitions and the
rera ncreased sales volumes Excess of accumulated costs over
~t.ated nillings increased by 51,001 which is offset by a corresponding
=t € in excess of billings over accumulated costs on projects in progress.

receivable decreased by $967 due primarily to payments received in cash
ommcn stock on the Fingermatrix loan. The remaining increase in working
-tal assets is due primarily to acquisitions, Working cavital liabilities
asec by 517,492 Accounts payable and accrued expenses increased
ximately 55,332 of which $667 15 from acquisitions while the remainder is
rimarily to a build up of slow paying trade accounts payable. Current
icns of debt and capital lease obligations increased by $11,114 due
-marily te the scheduled balloon payments due in 1996 on the subordinated
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. January 1996, the Company refinanced a significant portion of the current
ucordinated debt that was to be paid in 1996. Such financings consis: of a
erm loan of $2,000, a revolver loan of 56,000 and the extension of
pPEroximately $7,600 of subordinated balloon payments from a 1996 due date to
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Item 7. Management's Di ussion and Analysis of Fi 1cial Conditiorn and
Results of Operations (in 000's except share data)

Financial Condition :

Liguidity and Capital Resources (continued)

a 2000 due date. The effects of this refinancing has reduced curren:t deb:
from $24,086 to $B,378 and has alleviated a significant portion of the
Company's working capital deficit. However, even after the above financing,
the Company continues to have a working capital deficit of $4,43% on a pro
forma basis as of December 31, 1995, The Company's plans to reduce the
werking capital deficit includes at:tempts to increase the precfitabilizy of the
underlying subsidiaries and the continued efforts to sell equity in the non
public subsidiaries via initial public offerings. The Company currently has a
letter of intent with an underwriter for the sale of one subsidiarv's stock
and in connection therewith, obtained investor financing of S$500. There
remains a substantial doubt as to whether any attempted public offerings of
subsidiary stock will be successful and the Company currently has no other
plans if such offerings are not ultimately consummated.

Furthermore, the Company is in default on loans aggregating $1,058 as of
December 31, 1995. $530 of such defaulted debt relates to the late payment of
interest only payments which have been subseguently paid. It is currently not
expected that the lender will demand early payment on the loan which is due in
November of 1997 per the original terms of the financing. The remaining loans
in default of $528 are a result of non payment of principal on the scheduled
due dates. Such defaults have not had, and are not expected to have a
sicnificant impact on the operations of the related segments as the creditors
have not called such loans and are working under extended repayment terms.
However, if the creditors exercised their right to call the loans in defaulrt,
it would have a material adverse impact on the operations of the Company as a
whole and no assurances can be made that such creditors will continue to work
under extended payment terms.

Fesults of Operations

The consolidated loss of the Company for the year ended December 31, 1995,
wrnich includes a full year of opera:ions for substantially all of the segments
exzept Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services was 511,360. Included in the
ccnsolidated loss are noncash expenses of §7,602 from depreciation and
amcrrization, $6,083 from the exercise cf stock options and $470 from the
»r.te-0ff of obsclete and slow moving inventory. These non cash expenses are
set to a degree by the minority interest loss of $3,724 related to the

o

L'l 1w

acions of a publicly held subs:diary that has reduced the net loss by

24. While it is expected that zhe level of depreciation and amortization
--1 only decrease nominally in future periods, it is not currently expected
“Lit noncash expenses from the exerzise of stock options will be of a
reIurring nature.

s ir0) 0

-cnsolidated revenues, gross profi: and selling, general and administrative
expenses for the year ended December 31, 1995 compared to the year ended
December 31, 1994 increased praimarily to the fact that subsidiaries acquired
during the year ended 1994 are included for the entire year during 1995 and
or.y a portica of the .ar in 1994. Consolidated revenues, gross profit and
selling, general and ninistrative expenses for the fiscal year ended July
3. 1994 compared to . : fiscil year ended July 31, 1993 increased
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Item 7. Managemeat's Disc 3sion and Analysis of Fine ‘ial Condition and
Results of Operations (in J00's except share data)

Results of Operations (continued)

significantly due to the operations of subsidiaries that were not acquired
uncil after July 31, 1993. The percentage of relative contribution to
revenues, gross profit, and selling gangral and administrative expenses by
industry segment is shown in the following tables. Changes within the
individual industry segments themselves is discussed further within the

respective industry segment discussions.
Percentage of Total

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,

Segments 1995 1994 1994 1993
Revenues:
Contract Engineering Services 57% 60% 65% 16%
Medical Diagnostics 25% 15% -- --
Electro-Mechanical and

Electro-Optical Products

Manufacturing 4% 9% 22% BO%
Medical Informacion Services 7% 7% 1% 1%
Telecommunications 3% 6% 7% --
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 1% 2% 2% 2%
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 2% - -- --
Business Consulting Services 1% 1% 3% 1%
Gross Profic:

Contract Engineering Services 19% 27% 46% 4%
MeZ:cal D:agnostics 59% 43% -- --
ilectro-Mechanical and

Electro-Uptical Products

Manufaccuring 5% 2% 7% 85%
Mec:ical Information Services 9% 10% 1% 3%
Te’ecommunications 3% 10% 13% --
Three Dimensional Products

anZ Services 3% 5% 6% 5%
AuZio Visual Manufacturing

anz Services 1% -- i s
Eucziness Consulting Services 1% % 2™ 3%
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Year Ended Piscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,

Segments 1995 1994 1994 1993
Se_ling, General and

Administrative Expenses:

Contract Engineering Services 14% 11% 8% 6%
Medical Diagnostics 21% 10% - --
Electro-Mechanical and

Electro-Optical Products

Manufacturing 6% 10% 9% 244
Medical Information Services 13% 13% 5% 9%
Telecommunications 4% 5% 2% --
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 9% 11% 7% 6%
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 2% -- - -
Business Consulting Services 1% 4% 3 7%
Corporate and Other 30% 36% 66% 4B%

Discussion of Operations by Segment:
Contrac: Engineering Services:

During the year ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994,
sucstantially all of the revenues were from the operations of Trans Global.
Fevenues and gross margins for 1995 compared toc 1994 increased $37,861 or 150%
anZ $2,355 cor 144%, respectively, due primarily to the acquisition of an
adéitional subsidiary in this segment in November 15954. Selling, general and
administrative expenses increased by $2,693 or 154% from 1994 to 1995 due
crimarily to the inclusion of a subsidiary acquired in November 1994 which had
se_ling, general and administrative expense of $3,261 in 1995 and $321 in
5. Other expenses for 1995 compared to 1994 increased by $B66 or 500% as a
sult of increased interest expense. The increased inte.est expense is due
-marily to the inclusion of a subsidiary acquired in November 1994. This
swent finances 1ts payroll cbligations by borrowing from a receivable factor.
an interest rate of 2% in excess of prime in addition to a commission fee
-3% of the face of the invoice amounts financed.
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“enues, gross margins and selling, general and administrative expenses were
10,221, $1,007 and $1,028, respectively for the year ended July 31, 1994.
Fevenues, gross margin and selling, general and administrative expenses were
:b-l. $51 and $141, respectively, for fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 and were
-¥om Universal, a subsidiary in which the Company no longer includes in
ccnsolidation because a significant portion of the business was sold. Due to
the change in compa~’ ,s operating in this segment, operating results for the
years ended July 37 1994 and 1993 are not comparable.
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I1tem 7. Management's Dis' ssion and Analysis of Fin® :ial Condition and
Results of Operations (ii. 000's except share data)

Reéul:s of Operations (ccniinued)

This segment operates in a highly competitive environment with low margins.
Revenues from the contract engineering services segments s based on the
hourly cost of payroll plus a percentage. The success of the segment 1is
dependent upon its ability O generate sufficient revenues to enah;e it to
cover its fixed costs and other operating expenses, and to reduce its variable
costs. Under its agreements with its customers, this segment s reguired to
pay its emplovees and pay all applicable Federal and state withholding and
payroll taxes prior to receipt of payment from clients. Futhermare.lthe
segment 's payments from its clients are based upon the hourly rate paid to the
employee, without regard to when payroll taxes are payable with respect to
the emplovees. Accordingly, the segment's cost of service are greater during
the first part of the year, when Federal Social Security taxes and state
unemployment and related taxes, which are based on a specific level of
compensation are due. Thus, until the segment satisfies its payroll tax
obligations, it will have lower gross margins. Management believes that with
this segments current selling, general and administrative structure it can
improve i1ts operating income and generate profitable operations by increasing
revenue. The segment is seeking to reduce its interest costs by negotiating
with other receivable factors. This segment also intends to increase its
equity base through the sale of equity securities which would allow the
segment to reduce its borrowing base. However, there can be no assurance that
the segment can or ever will be able to operate at profitable levels.

Medical Diagnostics:

This segment consists of a medical diagnostic imaging company, which primarily
perfcrms MRI and other diagnostic modalities, that was purchased in September
1855 and as such the pricr periods are not comparable to the year ended
December 21, 1595. During 1955, this segment had revenues of $28,044, gross
marzins cf £12,235 and income from operations of $5,367. During 1994, from
the pericd of acquisition at September 30, 1594 through December 31, 1994,
this segment had revenues, gross margins and income from operations of $6,557,

ZZ.2<1 and 51,036, respectively. Gross margins as a percentage of revenues
increased from 41% In 1994 to 44% in 1995 due primarily to cost containment
£ilczrts which offset the effects of declining reimbursement rates. Selling,
gensral and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues remained level
& -5%. During 1955, management of the medical diagnostics segment

mr.emented a cost reduction plan which :included the centralization of billing
anz collections operations, renegotiation's with significant vendors and a
rezuction of overall salary and wage levels. This cost reduction plan allowed
n= selling, general and administrative expenses to remain level on a
ercentage basis while the volumes of the company increased and the
-mbursement rates decreased. Management anticipates that scan volume will
increase 5% during 1996; however, due to the volatility of reimbursement rates
n the medical industry, there is no assurance that revenues will increase at
ne same level. During 1995, interest expense was $2,565 and is axpected to
-nZrease during 1996 due to the issuance of additional debt during January of
=99€. Overall profitability of the medical diagnostics segment is expected to
remain relatively lev for 1996.
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'IEam 7. Management's D’ ‘ussion and Analysis of F! ncial Condition and
" Results of Operations (.n 000's except share data)

Résul:s of Operatzions (continued)
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical Products Manufacturing:

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 1995 compared the same period :in 1993
increased $618 or 17% and gross margins increased $529 or 780% for the same
periods. The significant increase in gross margins is due tc the following:
{i) in 1995 the segment scld product lines with a greater margin percentage,
(ii) in 1995 cbsolete inventory write-offs were $100 less than in the prior
year and (iii) this segment formed an additional operating entity which
generated gross wargins of $82. Selling, general and administrative expenses |
increased by $227 or 14% due to the formation of an additinnal operating

entity in this segment which had operating expense of $216 that did not exis:t
in the prior year. The operating expenses of the previously existing entities
in this segment remained relatively level from 1995 to 1994. Loss from
operations decreased by $702 or 46% due to the above noted increase in gross
margins and the fact that in 1994 the company wrote-off goodwill of

approximately $285.

Revenues for the fiscal year ended July 131, 19594 compared to the fiscal year
ended July 31, 1993 increased $416 or 14% while gross profit decreased $839
or B84% and profitability decreased $1,380 or 361%. During the fiscal year
ended July 31, 1994 an acquired subsidiary (S-Tech) in this segment became
operational which is the primary reason for the increase in revenues. The
decrease in gross margins is due to the fact that §- Tech had negative gross
margins due primarily to the write-down of obsolete inventories,
Additionally, the previously existing company (Sequential Electronic Systems)
in this segment operated at a lower margin ratic than in the prior comparable
pericd. S-Tech's selling, general and administrative expenses, as a
percentage of revenues, were significantly higher than Sequential Electronic
Systems which accounts for the significant increase in such expenditures.

while there exists a possibility tha:t there will be reversals in
overnment spending cutbacks, it is more likely that defense and military
spending will remain sluggish through 1996. Management f.ans to continue
piacing more emphasis on sales to the private sector and overall it is
arnticipated that revenues anc opera:iing profits will remain relatively stable
i this segment.

m
.

. portion of the revenues in this segment are generated from government sales
s

oy

Medical Information Services:

“uring June 1994, the Company acquired a subsidiary (CSM) which accounted for
a_. of the revenues and gross margin in this segment for the year ended
December 31, 1994. Since CSM was not a part of the consolidated operations
until July 1, 1994, the prior periods operating results are not comparable to
those of tle year ended December 31, 1895,

During the year en | December 31, 1995 revenues were $7,.381. The largest
component of revenu. was $.,000 from the sale of third party hardware and
software. A significant portion of such revenue was related to services
pursuant to a purchase order form the State of Colorado for its Department of
Human Services. Revenues generated from turnkey systems and data center
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Reéults of Operations (continued)

accounted for $1,800 and $1,700, respectively. Maintenance revenue accounted
for $1,100 and the remainder of the revenue was generated from the CarceSmart
rechnology operations. The gross margin in 1985 was §1,874 which is 27% of
revenues. Selling, general and administrative expenses were 354,247 and
included research and development costs of $699 and the write-off of deferred
offering costs of $B63. Interest expense amounted to $533 and is expected to
increase in the subseguent years due to additional financings in 199¢.

During the year ended December 31, 1994 revenues were $2,925 and included $913
from third party hardware and software sales, 51,000 from turnkey systems and
data center operations, and the remainder from maintenance revenues. Gross
margins were $601 representing 21% of revenues, and selling, general and
administrative expenses were $2,129 including $367 of research and developmen:
expenses. Interest expense was 5245 for the year ended December 31, 1954
which includes on six months of interest since CSM was not acquired until June
1994. During the fiscal years ended July 31, 1994, and 1993 the medical
information services segment consisted of a single development stage
subsidiary and revenues and gross margins were minimal.

This segment is addressing its continuing losses through the development and
implementation of an integrated marketing plan for both its CarteSmart system
and health information systems and services and the development of
enhancements to its health information systems and the development and
implementation of a marketing plan directed at the financial services industry
and educational institutions. The segment has obtained its initial contracts
for its products in both areas with agreements with IBN (financial services)
and Virginia Commonwealth University (educational institution). Furthermore,
it pelieves that the acgqguisition, through a joint venture corporation, of the
SATC Soitware, and further develcpment of such software will provide it with a
significant product for the financial services industry. However,
ictwithstanding the segment's product development and marketing efforts,
iosses may continue, and no assurance can be given that the segment will be
successiul in these efforcs.

Tslecommunications:

Jecember of 1993 the Company acquired ARC Networks which is the only entitcy
rating in this segment. During tne year ended December 31, 1995 compared
tne year ended December 31, 1994, revenues, gross margins and selling,
neral and administrative expenses increased by 5984, S$55, and $416,
cpectively. The increased revenue 15 attributed to an increased sales force
-<h has also increased the selling, general and administrative expenses
wr.ch consist primarily of salaries and commissions. This segment operates in
nighly competitive industry at low margins and in order for this segment to
ecome a viable operating entity, it will need to significantly increase
€venue volume. As of December 31, 1955 management is unable to determine
iether this segment - .l ever operate at a level that is profitable.
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Results of Operaticns (continued)
Three D:imensional Products and Services:

Revenues and gross profit for the vear ended December 31, 19ff compared to :the
year ended December 31, 1994 increased $526 or 105% and S35% or 121%,
respectively, while losses from operations increased SEE7 or 44%. Dur:ing
November 1994 an additional subsidiary was acguired that operates in thas
segment and a full years operations from such subsidiary acccunted for
increases of revenues, gross margin and loss from cperations of $226, S18 and
$677, respectively. The remainder of operating increases were primarily a
result cf this segment's European operations which had increased operating
activity in Belgium, the United Kingdom and Germany. Selling, general and
administrative evpenses increased 51,045 or 57% which reflects this segment's
continued product development COStS.

Revenues for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1954 compared to the fiscal year
ended July 31, 1993 increased $212 or 264%, while gross profit and loss from
operations increased $63 or 114% and S657 or 606%, respectively. During the
fiscal yvears ended July 31, 1994 and 1593 the three dimensional products and
services segment was in the development stage and as such the revenues and
gross margins were minimal while the selling, general and administrative
expenses have been significant and account for the majority of the nat

operating losses.

This segment continues to generate significant losses and has been unable to
generate revenues at a volume from any of its products and services sufficient
to cover its ongoing product development costs. During 1956, management is
evaluating the organizational structure of its domestic and overseas
operations and is in the process of formulating a plan to reduc2 selling,
general and administrative expenses which may include the closure of certain
cffices in the United States, as well as Europe, in order to streamline
cperations without significantly impacting the segment's ability to grow
revenues and gross margins. Even in the event that a cost reduction plan is
formal:ized and implemented, this segment will need a significant infusion of
capital in order to sustain operations Currently, there are no firm

commitments for obtaining such capital As such, there i1s substantial doubt
agcout this segment‘'s ability to continue as an operating rntity and it 1is
dcuotfu. whether this segment will ever become prcfitable.

AuZio Visual Manufacturing and Ser.ices

Th.s segment consists of one operating entity which was acquired in the second
guarter of 1995. As such, the operations reported herein reflect only the
results from the date of acquisition through December 31, 1995 and there are
nc prior comparable periods. Since the date of acquisition through December
12, 1995 revenues, gross margins and losses from operations were 52,145, $202
arc 5492, respectively. Approximately 75% of this segment's revenue were
generated from domestic sales, approximately 12% were from sales in the far
east and approximately 13% from other foreign markets. The gross margins as a
percentage cf revenu- were 5% which is substantially lower than the margins
reguired to operate ofitably. Included in direct costs is $70 of inventory
cbsolesence write-of._ which represents a 3% incremental decrease in the gross

Page 47




Item 7. Management's Disr ssion and Analysis of Fins *ial Condition and
Results of Operations (in J00's except share data)

pesults of Operazions (continued,

margins. A significant cause of the low margins relates to idle plant
capacity and an outdated production machine. Management 15 attempting to
opbtain financing to purchase a new production machine which would produce
products significantly faster and additionally, reduce the need to purchase
assembly parts from an outside source since the new production machine would
be able to produce such parts on a timely basis. Add;:;onal;y._the segment
needs to cbtain a line of credit to fund current working capita. needs as the
segment's vendors have been extended to the point where parts shipments have
been negatively impacted. Selling, general and administrative expenses were
5694 from the date of acquisition through December 31, 1995 and exceed gross
margins by $492. This excess of expenses over gross margins 1s a reflect:ion
of the volume problem of this segment. Management believes that this segment
has a viable and proven product that has been an industry standard since 1940
and with cthe appropriate financing and capitalization this segment would be
able to produce revenues at a volume that would generate profits and at
December 31, 1995 the segment has a backlog of orders of approximately $350.
However, due to the uncertainties surrounding the ability of the segment to
obtain adeguate financing, management is unable to determine at this time
whether the segment will ever be profitable.

Business Consulting Services:

For the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994, revenues and gross margins of
the business consulting operations were not significant which is consistent
with management's decision to concentrate time and resources managing internal
operatione of the preexisting and newly acquired companies. Selling, general
and administrative expenses were also not significant for the year ended
December 31, 1585 but amounted te $623 for the year ended December 31, 1994
which is factor of the significant acgquisition activity that occurred during
-ncome from operations for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 compared

cal year ended July 31, 1993 increased 226%. During the fiscal year
y 31, 1993, consulting fee revenue was minimal and during the fiscal
July 31, 1994 the selling, general and administrative expenses did
se at the same rate as revenues, which accounts for the significant
increase in profitability. During 1996, management anticipates that
revenues and related expenses will not be a sigrificant portion of
'S Operations.
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S=-.-ing, general and administrative expenses increased by $3,470 or 56% from
-~%2 for the year ended December 31, 1994 to §$9,662 for the year ended

mber 31, 1995. Included in the selling, general and administrative

nses is noncash consulting fee expenses incurred upon the issuance of non
oyee directors and consultants stock options of $6,083 and S4,140,
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Resulzs of Operations (continuecd!

firms, increased financial support staff and increased outside consulting
fees. Such increases were necessitated by the acgquisition activity during the
related periods.

Selling, general and administrative expense for the fiscal year ended July 3I,
1994 compared to the fiscal year ended July 31, 1983 increasec 573%. The mos:t
significant portion of this increase is 57,140 of noncash consulting fee
expenses incurred upon the issuance of non employee directors and consultants
stock options. Additionally, costs were incurred as a part o acquiring and
managing the new subsidiaries purchased since July 31, 1993.

During 1296, it is anticipated that corporate selling, general and
administrative expense levels will be a factor of the activity cf addit:onal
acqulsitions and capitalization activities which cannot be quantified on a

prospective basis.

Discussion of Other Significant Financial Line Items:

Interest Expense:

For the year ended December 31, 1995 compared to the year ended December 31,
19594, interest expense increased $2,863 or 235%, and for the fiscal year ended
July 31, 1994 compared to the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 increased $261
or 114%. The increased interest expense for both comparable periods is due to
the issuance of debt instruments in connection with the acquisition of
International Magnetic Imaging, Inc. and affiliated entities, ("IMI"). During
the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1954, interest expense related to IMI
was $2,355 and $703, respectively. The significant increase is due to the
fact that IMI was not acguired until September 1954 and as such the interesrt
cxpense Ior the year ended December 31, 1994 reflects only three months of
interes: expense.

Ga:n (Loss) from Security Sales:

~2ring the year ended December 11, 1995, losses on investment activity were
neminal For the year ended December 31, 1995 the loss -n sales of securities
ccnsisted primarily of the recognition cof investments that were determined to
have a permanent decline in market value and as such, the decline was
recognized in that period and is nc longer included in the unrealized loss
Ircm marketable securities in the equity section of the balance sheet.

—uring tne fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, losses on investment activity were
ncminal. During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, the Company had a
s:gnificant gain on the sale of a company's stock that was held for investment
purposes.

Security sales vary from period to period based on, among other things, market
activity and cash needs, and management cannot estimate the amount of future
security sales gains or losses, 1if any, that will be generated from such
transaction;.
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Unﬁéual Item:

Por the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, the unusual item consists of income
of $1,522,878 related to the settlement of a lawsuit and a gain on the
repurchase of the assets of a subsidiary. See further discussion of this item
in the footnotes to the financial statements.

Income Taxes:

The Company's provision for income taxes were (1.5%), (0.06%), 0%, and 4% of
income before taxes for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July
31, 1994 and 1993, respectively. The Company will have a net operating loss
carryforward of approximately $44,882. The net operating loss carryforwards
expire beginning in 1996 through 2010. Investment tax credit and job tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $105 are available to reduce future
income taxes. These credits expire beginning in various years-.through 199%.
These credits have been reduced to reflect changes made by the "Tax Reform Act
of 1986". See Note 12 To the Financial Statements.

Impact of Inflation:

The Company is subject to normal inflationary trends and anticipates that any
increased costs would be passed on to its customers.

Item €. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data begin on page F-1 of this Form

tem 9. Changes and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
inancial Disclosure
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PART III
“Ftem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registran:

Ser forth below is information concerning the executive officers of the

registrant.

Name Age Position

Lewis S§. Schilller €5 Chairman of the Board, President,
and Chief Execu:t:ive Officer

George W. Mahoney 35 Chief Financia. Off:cer

Norman J. Hoskin 61 Director

Grazyna B. Wnuk 32 Secretary

Mr. Schiller has been the Registrant's chief executive officer for more than
the pas: five years. Mr. Schiller alsoc serves as a senior executive officer
of the Registrant's subsidiaries. On December 11, 1985, Mr. Schiller was
elected as chairman and chief executive and financial officer of General
Technologies Group, Ltd. ("GTG"), a corperation in which Cunsolidated was a

stockholder and a major creditor.

Mr. Mahoney has been chief financial officer of Registrant since October 1994.
From December 1991 until September 1994, Mr. Mahoney was chief financial
officer of IMI and IMI's affiliated entities. Consolidated acquired the
assets of IMI and certain of its affiliated entities during 1994. From April
to December 1991, he was chi=2f financial officer of Labor World USA, Inc., a
labor leasing company, and for more than three years prior thereto, he was
chief financial officer of Guardian Bank.

Mr. Hoskin has been a director of the Registrant since September 1992. He is
the former chairman of Republic Holdings Corporation of West Palm Beach,
Florida and chairman of Executive Express Travel of New York, NY since 1985.
He has oreviously served as the founder and president of Hoskin Leasing, Inc.,
chairmar. of Potomac Financial Equities, Inc., chairman of CSB/First Florida
Leasing, Inc., as president of National Bank of Florida Corporation, and as
senior wice president of Rentar Industries Group, Inc., the parent company of
Emery Freight Systems and Interstate Truck Lines. He is also a director of
Trinitech Systems, Inc., a company which markets communications and related
products principally to the banking and securities industries.

Ms. Wnuk has been the secretary of the registrant since 1991. Prior thereto
sne served as a secretary for the registrant and as a sales associate in
Elcomingdales in New York City.

Officers are elected by, and serve at the pleasure of, the board of directors.
ursuant to an employment agreement dated October 1, 1994, the Company has
agreed to employ Mr. Schiller as its chief executive during the term of the
agreement, which continues until December 31, 2000. Pursuant to an employment
agreement dated October 1, 1954 and superseded by an agreement dated March 21,
1295, the Company has agreed to employ Mr. Mahoney as its chief financial
?ggécer diring the rerm of the agreement, which continues until December 31,
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Itém 11. Executive Comp sation
{in 000's except share de.a)

Se£ forth below is information concerning the Registrant's chief executive
officer and chief financial officer of the Registrant who are the only
executive officers of the Registrant who received or accrued compensation from
the Registrant and its subsidiaries in excess of §100 (on an annualized bas:s'
during the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1954 and the f:iscal years ended

July 31, 1994 and 1593.

Summary Compensation Table (in 000's except share data):

Annual
Compensation Awards Payouts
Securi-
ties
Restr- Under-
icted lying

Name and Principal Stock Options/ LTIP
Position Salary Bonus Awards SARs (#) Payouts
Year Ended December 31,

1955:
Lewis S. Schiller, CEO[1) $ 250 -- - -- --
George W. Mahoney, CFO[2] s§ 177 5 a6 - e .
Year Ended December 31,

1954:

Lewis S. Schiller, CEO[1] $ 199 -- -- -=13] -
George W. Mahoney, CFO[2] $ 50 750,000 (4) --
Year Ended July 31, 1994:

—ewis S5, Schiller, CEO[1) S 1B2 -- -- = .-
Year Ended July 31, 1993:

Lew:s 5. Schiller, CEO[1]) g 175 -- - e we

EEEES

\=. Mr. Schiller has an employment agreement dated October 1, 1994 with the
Company pursuant to which it employs him as chief executive officer through
December 31, 1998 at an annual salary of 5250, subject to an annual cost of
--7ing increase. Mr. Schiller is also entitled to a bonus egual to 10% of the
-ompany's consolidated income before income taxes in excess of $250. No bonus
was payable for the year ended December 31, 1995. The Company also granted tc
Mr. Schiller a five-year option to acquire 10% of the Company's securities
ortfolio at 110% of the Company's cost.
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‘Item 11. Executive Cor nsation (continued)
(in 000's except share uata)

[2] Mr. Mahoney has an employment agreement cated October 1.'1994. and
superseded by an agreement dated March 21, 1955, with the Registrant pursuant
to which it employs him as chief financial officer through December 31, 1995.
Mr. Mahoney will receive a base salary of $165, $177, $189, $202 and $220 Zor
the years ending December 31, 1995, 1996, 1957, 1998 and 1999, respectively.
Additionally, Mr. Mahoney shall also receive incentive compensation equal to
the greater of one percent of the net pretax profits or net cash flow of the
Registrant, plus the greater of one percent of the net pretax profit or ne:
cash flow of IMI (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Registrant), subject to a
maximum of twice Mr. Mahoney's base salary for the respective year.

(3] Pursuant to a stock purchase plan dated December 15, 1994, Mr. Schiller
received the right teo purchase 2,500,000 unregistered shares at the fair
market value on that date (5$.50 per share). Mr. Schiller did not exercise his
right to purchase such shares and such rights have expired as of December 31,

1995.

[4] ©On December 15, 1994, Mr. Mahoney received options to purchase 750,00C
shares of unregistered stock at an exercise price of $.50 per share (the fair
market value on that date).

Option Table:
Potential
Realized
Value
at Assumed
Annual
Rates of
Individual Grants Stock Price
meessccecsemer s s cecssmscsscccnan Appreciation
¥ of Total for
Options Exercise Expira- Option Term
Number of Granted to Price piration -----------
Name Securities Employees ($/5h) Date 5% 10%
George W. Mahoney 750,000 43% $0.50 12/14/98 19 £3is8
EEEEEET =a= ExEE [ % -} ==

lic other officers or directors have employment agreements with the Registrant.

Hc officers or directors hold options to purchase any of the Registrant's
common stock.
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itém 12. Security Owner ~ip of Certain Beneficial 1ers and Management
.person or group known to the Registrant owns 5% or more ol any of the _
g:gE::rant's ga:iﬁg securities as of April 10, 1996, except as set forth below
with respect to the Registrant's Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock (Series A Preferred Stock). No officers or directors of the Registrant
own any of the Registrant's Common Stock as of April 25, 1995. The following
rable sets forth, as of April 10, 1996, the number and percentage of rights to
shares of outstanding Common Stock owned by each person owning at least 5% of
the Registrant's Series A Preferred Stock, each director owning stock ancd all

directors and officers as a group:

Amount and Nature of

Name and Address(l] Beneficial Ownership(2] Percent of Series
ft-..auis £. Schiller 4,480 5.8%
Norman J. Hoskin 1,280 1.7%
Joel M. Brown 1,536 2.0%

All cfficers and directors
as a group (four
individuals owning stock) 11,520 14.B%

(1) - The address of each perscn is c/o Consolidated Technology Group Ltd.,
160 Broadway, New York, NY 10038.

(2] - Each person named has the sole voting and sole investment power and has
direct beneficial ownership of the shares.

Item 12. Certain relationships and Related Transactions

Loan Receivable from an Officer of a Subsidiary:

During the year ended December 31, 1995 a subsidiary of the Company loaned 545
to the chief executive officer of such subsidiary. The loan has no fixed due
dates or terms.

Loar. Recesivable from Sale of Common Stock Investments to an Officer-

"

ng 1925, the chief executive officer of the Company exercised an option to
nase common Stock investments held by the Company at 110% of the book
¢ of such investments. The purchase of such investments was consummated
noncash transaction and such officer has issued & note in favor of the
any with interest at 5% and said note matures five years from the date of
purchase. Total amounts ocutstanding under such receivables was $72 at
‘ecember 31, 1995. The gain realized by the Company on the sale of these
vestments approximated $7.

T
y

o o BN
| 1

Lo R T

(ERL

b4 TR S

M)

|17
&

o B | e |

L |

1)

bruary 1996, a subsidiary of the Company loaned $300 to an officer of the
diary. The principal is due in 1998 and requires interest only payments
t rate of 5.5%, payable annually.

U T} ]
o ol
&)
ot 'y
'J

Page 54




PART IV
Ttselm 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form E-K

1. Financial Statements

Lt b o

(=)

Lo

Lo ]

-

e

F-1

Report of Mortenson and Associates, P.C. Independent Certified
Accountants

& F-3 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1995 and 1964
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended
December 31, 1995 and 1954 and July 31, 1994 and 1993

- F-B Consolidated Statements cf Shareholders' Equity for the
Years Ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994
and 1993

- F-13 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1953

4- F-58 Notes to Consclidated Financial Statement:-

Financial Statement Schedules

None

Reports on Form 8-K

Non

e

Exhibits

(§1]

n

Cerrtificate of Incorporation(l)

By-laws[1]

hgreements relating to the acquisition and financing of International
lMagnetic Imaging, Inc. and its affiliated companies. [2]

Flan and agreement of reorgan::ation dated as of April 13, 1994 by and
amcng the Registrant, CSM Acqui-ition Corp., Carte medical Corporation,
Crearive Socio-Medics Corp. and Advanced Computer Techniques, Inc., as
amended. [3]

nGreement dated December 2, 1963, among Registrant, SIS Capital Corp..
ZE5 Holdings Corp., Arc Acquisition Group, Inc. and the stockholders of
~rC Acquasition Group, Inc. (4]

Agreement dated December 2, 1993 among the Registrant, SIS Capital
Corp., Arc Networks, Inc., Joseph G. Sicinski and Peter F.
Farrinello. [4)

Employment agreement dated March 11, 1995, between the Registrant and
George W. Mahoney. [€)

Employment agreement dated October 1, 1994, between the Registrant and
Lewis 5. Schiller. 6]

Agreement dated as of March 31, 19%5 among SIS Capital Corp., DLE, Inc.,
Joseph G. Sicinski and Concept Technologies Group, Inc., including
exhibits and disclosure letters. [5)

Calculation of earnings per share

List of Subsidiaries of Registranc

Financial Data Schedule. [7)

Stock Purchase Agreement. (6]
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item 14. Exhibits, Finar 'al Statement Schedules, # '~ Reports on Form B-K- :
(continued)

[1]
(2]
(3]
[4]
[5]
(6]
(7]

Filed as an exhibit to the Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 and incorporated herein by reference.
Yncluded as exhibits to the Registrant's report on Form 8-K, as amended,

dated July 19, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference.

Included as exhibits to the Registrant's report on Form B-K, as amended,
dated June 16, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference.

Included as exhibits to the Registrant's report on Form B-K, dated
December 22, 1993, and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company's report on Form §-K, dated April 189,
1995, and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the
five month transition period from August 1, 1994 to December 31, 1994.
File only to the SEC in electronic format.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT C TIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To'the Board of Directors and Stgckhnlders

Consclidated Technology Groug, Lt
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Consclidated Technology Group, Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
1955 and 1994 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the two years ended December |
31, 1995 and each of the two fiscal years ended July 31, 1994. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility 1s tO express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consoclidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall consolidated financizl statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our ocpinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Consolidated Technology Group, Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
1995 and 1994, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the two years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and each of the two
fiscal years in the period ended July 31, 1994, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Company will continue as a going concern. As shown in the financial
statements, the Company incurred a net loss of $11,360,000 for the year ended
December 31, 1995, and has an accumulated deficit to that date of 540,648, 000.
These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regerd to these matters
are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncercainty.

------------------------------

MORTENSON AND ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Cranford, New Jersey
March 27, 199¢




consolidated Technology - 2up Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Conso.idated Balance She..s
{(in 0V00's)

Assers:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net of allowances
Inventories

Loans receivable

Prepaid expenses and other

current assecrs

Excess of accumulated costs

over related billings
Investments in common stock

Total current assets
Property, plant and eguipment, net

Other assets:
Capitalized software development costs
Goodwill, net
Covenant not to compete, net
Customer lists, net
Deferred offering costs
Receivables, long-term
Receivables, related parties
Trademark, net
Investments in common stock, long-term
Other Assets

Total other assets

Total Assets

See notes to consolidated financial scatements.

F-2

December 31,
1995 1994

$ 1,636 $ 1,727
19,216 16,8620
31,701 3,466
396 1,363
436 412
1-002 =
20 151.
26,407 23,935
11,034 12,911
502 1,064
11,881 12,623
2,168 3,451
11,684 12,770
-- 331
215 --
544 160
Ja3 -
405 3B4
1,085 456
28,871 31,238
566,312 568, 0BS




cénsolid;ced Technology -oup Ltd. and Subsidiarie.

consolidated Balance Sheets

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-3

1zn 000's)
. December 31
1905 1894
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:

Current liabilicies: -
Accounts payable and accruec expenses $121,085 § 6,7al
Accrued payroll and related expenses 2,332 A o
Accrued interest 284 :Eg
State taxes payable 269 20
Excess of billings over accumulated

COSLS 1,701 655
Notes payable, related parties 290 1Bz
Current portion of long-term debt 9,080 8, 09¢
Current portion of subordinated debt 13,354 3,437
Current portion of capitalized

lease obligations 1,362 1,25¢

Total current liabilities 39,767 22,275
Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt 6,210 8,512

Capitalized lease obligations 2,198 2,671

Subordinated debt 5,003 17,926
Total long-term liabilities 13,411 29,109

Commitments and contingencies
Mincrity interest 2,087 e
Shareholders' Equity:

Preferred stock 70 Bl

hdditicnal paid-in capital,
creferred stock 266 311

Common stock (50,000,000 shares
authorized, 26,655,071 and 17,577, 260
shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 1995 and 1994,
respectively) 267 176

~dditional paid-in capital, common stock 51,020 45,597

Atcumulated deficit (40, 648) (29, 288)

Unrealized loss on exchange translation (17) (31)

Net unrealized gain (loss) on long-
term investments in common stock B9 (139)

Total shareholders' equity 11.04; iéf%éé

Total L abilitir and Shareholders' Equity 566,312 S;;:BE;




Consolidated Technology ~ o2up Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement o. Operations for the Years Euded

December 31, 1955 and 1994 and July 31, 1954 and 1593

(in 000's except per share data)

: Year Ended
December 31,
19295 1594

Revenues £110,087 541,578
Direct coOsts 89,175 35,428
Gross profit 20,922 6,150
Selling, general

and administrative 32,034 16,614
Income (Loss) from operations (11,112) (10, 464)
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (4,084) (1,221)
Other income (expense) 373 448
Gain (loss) from security sales (35) (299)
Unusual items i -e

Total other income (expense) (3,746) (1,072)
Income (Loss! before income

taxes and minority interest {(14,858) {11,536)
Income Taxes (226) (24)
lanority Interest in Loss

of Subsidiaries 3,724 1332
income (loss) before

exzraordinary item {11,360) (11,428,
Excraordinary Item - .-
liez Income (Loss) {S11, 160) (S$11,428)

R 5 3 F 5 =E==EEem

Earnings (Loss) per Share:
Income (loss) before

extraordinary item ($0.51) (50.80)
Extraordinary item -- --
Net income (loss) per share ($0.51) {$0.80)

SEEEEER EEEEER

weighted ave; e number of

common share. 22,423,035 14,205,789

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-4

- -

- -

(§10,772)

($1.35)

- m om o=

........

------

------

- - -

- - = =

______

______

7,972,594 4,224,260




Consolidated Technology Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' F

and July 3i, 1994 and 199)
(in 000's except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

" —— - - -

199
Shares
Preferred stock, $1.00
par value, 6% Series
A 77,713 shares
authorized:
Beginning balance 77,7123
Issuance of Series A -
Conversion of Series A (11,117)
Ending balance 66,596
Preferred stock, 51.00
par value, $3.50 and
$.10 Series B & E 8,000
shares authorized each:
Beginning balance 262
Ending balance 262
FEETETEEES

Preferred stock, $1.00
par value, $8.00 sub-
ordinated Series F,
6,000 shares authorized:

Beginning balance 2,700
Ending balance 2,700

Total preferred

stock - par 69,558

78

(11)

———

—— -

262

eSO N

262

SEEmoSSEmEST=STT

2,700

STTocoSomET

2,700

NS EEsES==

80,675

=EmonmoEmSTo

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Amounts
$ 78
s 78

$ 1
9 1
$ 2
$ 2

juity for the Years Ended December J1, 1995 and 1994

--l-——--—-—-u----—-—---——--.i-—---.__....---_-——----

e T re——

——

77,713

EmTmwEaEE

262

ErToaETmESs

262

Lt S 3 -1 & &

2,700

TEreEoEaEEas

2,700

80,675

L A 3 4-31.- 3 33 % 5}

July 231,
19931
Amounts Shares
$ 78 -
-- 77,713
$ 78 77,713

oo ss

$ 1
S 1
- 2
S 2

EmEECOSREES

262

262

EmsETTooEaEs

2,700

et 3 3-3 1 1 3

2,700

TEaTEsoomEn

80,675

EFETETSETOE

(continued)

Amou. \ts
S 78
s 78
s 1
S 1
$ 2
$ 2
$ 81



ansolidated Technoloygy Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries

onsolidated Statements of Shareholders' Fquity for the Years Ended December i1,

and July 31, 1994 and 1993
in 000's except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

i T N ——

1995 1994
Shares Amounts Shares Amounts
dditional paid-in
capital, preferred
stock:
aginning balance $ $ 11
ssuance of Series A - oK
onversion of Series A (45) -
nding balance S 266 $ 31
sEossw =E=oomm

)mmon stock, $0.01
>ar value,
30,000,000 shares
wthorized:

:ginning balance 17,577,260 $§ 176 6,574,260 S 66
isuance for offerings 1,000,000 10 3,500,000 15
isuance for

wcquisitions - -- 5,803,000 58
isuance for exercise

f stock options 6,500,000 65 1,500,000 15
:suance of stock in

iieu of cash payment

or services rendered 130,004 1 200,000 2
nversion of Series A 1,447,807 15 - =

—— e —————

26,655,071

aEEETETEEETEwS

——— e e o —

17,577,260 $

wding balance

e notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-6

1995 and 1994

July 31,
1994 1993
Shares Amounts Shares Amounts
$ 311 -
= $ J11
S 311 $ Jl1
=358 % § 1 -$-4 4 - § 7

4,224,260 $ 42 4,224,260 § 42

3,500,000 35 S ]
1,810,000 18 P =
3,000,000 30 — A

———— ===

12,534,260 $

- e ———— - - -

4,224,260 § 42

e WENEE

(continued)




Cdnsclidated Technology Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Sharehclders' Equity for the Years Ended December J1, 1995 and 1954

and July 31, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

- - -

1995 1994
Shares Amounts Shares

Additional paid-in

capital, common stock:

Beginning balance $45,598

Issuance for offerings 240

Issuance for

acquisitions -

Issuance for exercise

of stock options 5,029

Issuance of stock in

lieu of cash payment

for services rendered 112
Conversion of Series A 41

Ending balance $51,020

. . . ¥ =EmEmEass
Accumulated deficit:

Beginning balance ($29,288)
Net loss (11,360)

Ending balance (540,648)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$23,369
8,330

6,678

7,125

95

-—

$45,597

mEmEs

($17,860)
(11,428)

———— -

($29,288)

F-7

July 31,
1994 1993

Shares Amounts Shares Amounts
$16,753 $16,753
8,330 -

4,918 ! --
11,710 E -
41,721 $16,753
o= SEEm=r
($14,030) ($14,770
(10,772) 740 |
($24,802) ($14,030

Lt —3-5 1§ ] Ehomoes
(continued.




'énnalidated Technoloyy Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries

‘'onsolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 1995 and 1994

and July 31, 1994 and 1993
in 000's except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

TR —— - ——_—

——— - —————— = i i ————

Shares Amounts Shares Amounts Shares Amounts

- -—— e - - D p—— B —— S —

et unrealized gain
(loss) on long-term
investments in
common stock:

eginning balance (s 139) (s 270) (s 18)

ecognized investment

security (gains)

losses 228 1311 (107)

nding balance 5 B9 (s 139) (s 185)

nrealized Exchange

.Mranslation:

2ginning balance ) (31) - -

2cognized investment

security (gains)

losses 16 (33) -

ding balance (17) (33) o
EEEREEE EE=ooe 13-4 §

tal shareholders' equity $11,047 $16,705 $17,061
-2 3 331 k-4 4 4 ¢ 1

=mmemse

‘2 notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-B

e it e ——

($ 178)

Soan s

$ 3,079

(concluded)




Cnnsolidltad Technology sroup Ltd. and Subsidiarie.
_Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
‘December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1954 and 1953
(in 000's except per share data)
Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,
1985 1994 1994 1993
Cash Flows from Operating
Activities:
Income (loss) before
extraordinary item (511,360) ($11,428) ($10,772) § 5954
Adjustments to reconcile net
loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 7,602 2,187 290 40
Minority interest in loss of
consolidated subsidiaries (3,724) (132) (202) (75)
Write-off goodwill - 338 -- --
Write-cff inventory 470 307 -- --
Bad debt expense 1,225 83 23 68
Noncash expenses paid with
the issuance of stock 114 97 - --
Noncash expenses paid with the
issuance of a subsidiary's stock 11 -- -- --
Deferred charges on option
exercise 3,869 4,140 7,140 -
Deferred charges on cption
exercise of a subsidiary 2,214 - -= -=
Additicnal compensation -- 135 135 -
Unusual item -- -= -- (1,523)
Extraordinary item .- - - 146
Write-down fixed assets
to fair value -- 225 225 --
Write-off of loans receivable -- 280 279 562
(Gain) loss on sale of common
Stock investments as 299 (13) (694)
Loss on sale of fixed assets 60 - -- --
Change in current assetrs
and zurrent liabilities:
(Increase) decrcase in
in current assets:
Receivables {3.301) {1,900) (2,747) 52
Inventories 107 482 460 (57)
Prepaid expenses and other
current assetrs (10) 5585 (388} {107)
Excess of accumulated costs
over billings (1,082) = -a s
{(continued)
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-9
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consolidated Technology -oup Ltd. and Subsidiaries
catement of Cash Flows for the Years Ended

¢anpolidltnd s
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993
ept per share data)

(in 000'® @XC

Year Ended Figcal ¥
e
December 31, Julr‘gand.d
19985 1594 1994 1883
Adjustments to reconcile net 2 Sy pesmue  Ldsws
logs to net cash provided by
operating activities
(continued) :
Increase (Decreass) in
current liabilities:
hccoun;; payable and
accru@é expenses 31,666 2
Accrued payroll and 263 680 103
related exponses 558 (968
Accrued interest 172 (533 {268) 361
Income LAXeS payable 249 (7) (5) 76
Interim billings in excess 25
of costs and estimated
profits 1,046 (50) -
Total adjustments 13,359 "9 766 e P,
Net cash provided b{ (used) = i .58 B —mem--
in operating activities 1,999 (3,662) (5,947) ( 429)
cagh Flowe from Investing mii=A = - LR i SR s N
Levivitilies
|In-rease) decrease in
Capita. axpenditures (6B4) :zlfgo: :;95} 10
Proceede from sale of . 0s) (60)
.%xed asppecs 220 Ly
capitaliszed software L -=
development COSCS (20)
--sggtments in common stock fry T (581) (404)
‘.--eedg from sale of common (658) (95)
srock Anvestments 530 45
noguasition of subsidiary (963 (B.358) 155 749
“agh of company acquired 504 2! %39 (500) e
~ash of company sold -- e (6) 145 4
“anh @BCIOW % & nég: .-
raymente for loans made (3,022) g4 ' a5
~.'lections from repayment (1,493) (1,194) (320)
~¢ loans made 3.223 106
___________ - 31
Me: camgh uspe' . in - m=mma=  seeaa-
smyaBting activitile (703) (10, 830) e _
(continued)

ses notes to consolidated financial statements

F-10




: dated Technol roup Ltd. and Subsidiaries
-ggg:giidatud Stl:emﬂggyuf Cash Flows for the Years Ended

December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)

Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:

Deferred offering costs

Net advances from factor
Proceeds from issuance
of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Payments on capital leases
Issuance of preferred stock
Issuance of common stock
Issuance of a subsidiary's
common stock

Exercise of stock options
Exercise of subsidiary
stock options

Net cash provided by (used in)

f£inancing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Zash and Cash Egquivalents at
Beginning of Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
End of Period

lemental Disclosures of
h Flow Information:
paid for intcerest

tn Q)
J 0o

-ash paid for income taxes

Year Ended
December 31,
1985 1954

{129) (331)
367 550
1,257 7.169
(6,909) (2,452)
(1,194) (165)
250 8,161
2.990 -
1,225 3,000
716 --
(1,387) 15,932
{91) 1,440
1,727 287

$ 1,638 $ 1,727
£ 3,812 $ 1,062
EEEESE EEESFS

-y

o

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-11

Piscal Year Ended

July 31,

1994 19583
(171} -
1.936 -
605 752
{1,978) (644)
(8) (3)
- 40
Bnlﬁl -
4,600 --
13,147 145
1,599 (349)
174 523

I e

$ 1,773 $ 174

$ 116 S 143

EEEEES EEEEEE
-- 5 1
EEERE R EEEEET
(concluded)




Con;olidnted Technology G .up Ltd. and Subgidiaries
Consplidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Years Ended

Detember 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1954 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:

During the year ended December 31, 1595, the Company:

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

(s)

Acquired equipment under capital lease obligations with a net present
value of $817. _

Received common stock in lieu of cash payments for notes receivable and
accrued interest receivable with a book value of §217.

Pursuant to an acquisition of another entity by one of the Company's
subsidiaries, in a transaction accounted for as a reverse merger:

(a) Reduced the Company's eguity ownership in such subsidiary which

resulted in an increase in minority interest of $5,811.

(b} Acgquired net assets with a book value of §$983.

Issued stock with a discounted value of $114 in lieu of cash payment for
services rendered.

Incurred $3,869 in noncash expense from the issuance and exercise of

€,500,000 stock options :

During the year ended December 31, 1994, the Company:

(1)

(2)

[ %3]
L
b

Purchased equipment in the amount of $185 and assuned capital lease
cbligations for $137 and notes payable for 548.

Acgquired capitalized scftware costs in the amount of $150 and assumed
notes payable for the full amount.

Acgquired equipment in the amount of $35 and assumed notes payable for the
full amount.

Acguired a covenant not to compete in the amount of $800 and assumed
notes payable for the full amount.

Acguired Creative Socio-Medics and in connection therewith assumed
long-term debt approximating $530.

Acguired International Magnetic Imaging and in connection therewith
assumed subcrdinated debt approximating 519,800, leng-term debt
approximating $12,000, capital lease obligations approximating $3,700
and :ssued stock with a value of 52,920.

Acguired Job Shop Technical Services and Computer Engineering Services
and :in connection therewith assumed subordinated debt approximating
£1,500, long-term debt approximating 52,600 and issued stock with a
value of $5900.

issuec stock with a discounted value of $97 in lieu of cash payment for
services rendered.

Incurred 54,140 in noncash expense from the issuance and exercise of
~.500.000 stock oprions

curing the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, the Company:

Purchased capital assets in the amount of 549 and assumed notes payable
for the full amount.

Acguired ARC Acquisition Corp. and in connection therewith assumed
long-term debt approximacing S$1,400.

Acguired Creative Socio-Medics and in connection therewith assumed
long-term debt approximating $530.

Incurred $7 140 in nn~zash expense from the issuance and exercise of
3,000,000 osptions.

= notes to consolidated financial stcatements.
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Consolidated Technology soup Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
“December 31, 1995 and 1954 and July 31, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data) :

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Financing
Activities (continued): .

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 19593, the Company:

(1) Purchased capital assets in the amount of $48 and assumed capital lease
obligations for the full amount.

(2) Procured insurance coverage valued at $20 and assumed debt for the full
amount.

(3) Through its subsidiary, S-Tech, purchased certain assets of General
Technologies Group, Ltd. which resulted in a one time gain of §51,523.

(4) Converted debt in the amount of $349 into 69,711 shares of Series A
preferred stock.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-13




COﬁsolidatad Technology C Jup, Ltd, and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in 000's, except per share data)

e —— - - -

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General - Effective September 1, 1993, the Company's name was changed from
Sequential Information Systems, Inc. to Consolidated Technology Group Ltd.

Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and all of its majority-owned
subsidiaries. Investments in 20% to 50% owned companies are accounted for on
the equity method. All significant intercompany balances and transactioar

have been eliminated.

Accounting Period - Effective December 31, 1994, the Company changed to a

calendar year. Prior to 1954 the Company utilized a fiscal year ending July
31 of each year. The accompanying financial statements include balance sheets

for the year ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and statements af operations,
cash flows and changes in stockhclder's equity for the years ended December
31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 19593.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. International Magnectic Imaging, Inc. ("IMI"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has cash balances of $1,412 and §1,471 at December
31, 1995 and 1994, respectively, which represents B86% and 85% of total cash
for the same respective periods. The use of IMI's cash is restricted pursuant
to an IMI financing agreement with a creditor, whereby IMI may not make
payments out of the ordinary course of IMI operations and specifically, not to
the parent company, (Consolidated), or any subsidiary or affiliate.

Inventories - Inventories are valued a: the lower of cost or market. Cost is
dezermined by the first-in, first out method with the exception of the audio
visual manufacturing and services segmen: which values inventory a standard
wnich apcroximates first-in, firs:t ou: Costs accumulated under government

Fropercty, Plant and Equipment - Proper:y, plant and equipment are carried at
coet less allowances for accumulated depreciation. The cost of furniture and
ez..pment held under capital leases 15 equal to the lower of the net present
©Z zhe minimum lease paymen:s or the fair value of the leased property
ne inception of the lease Depreciation is computed generally by the
s:ght-line method at rates adeguate to allocate the cost of applicable
5 cover their expected usefu. l:ves Leasehold improvements are amortized
per:ods not in excess of applicatble lease terms. Amortization of
“t-zalized leases and leasehold :mprovements is included with depreciation

Hre=nibe .,
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--'vities are ccnducted by the Electrc-Mechanical and Electro-Optical
“er-factur.ng and Services, Mediza. Services, Audio Visual Manufacturing and
rvices and Thre: imensional Products and Services segments. The Company's
sarch and devel ment expenses for the years ended December 31, 1995 and

s and July 31, 194 and 1993 approximated SB893, 54,842, $1,902 and $396,
pectively. All of the Company,'s research and development activities were
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ssarch and Development - The Ccmpany's research and product development
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Consolidated Technology roup, Ltd. and Subsidiarie.
Noges to Consolidated Financial Statements
“(in 000's, except per share data)

(19 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

performed by the subsidiaries and were company financed. * Research and
development costs are expensed as incurred.

Capitalized Software Development Costs - Capitalization of computer software
development costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility. =
Technological feasibility for the Company's computer software products is :
generally based upon achievement of a detail program design free of high risk
development issues. The establishment of technological feasibility and the
ongoing assessment of recoverability of capitalized computer software e
development COSts reguires considerable judgment by management with respect tO
certain external factors, including, but not limited to, technological
feasibility, anticipated future gross revenues, estimated economic life and
changes in software and hardware technology.

TRECSRNRE, " TR 5 T

Amortization of capitalized software development costs commences when the
related products become available for general release to customers.
Amortization is provided on a product by product basis using the straight-line
method over the estimated economic life of the product, estimated to be |
approximately 2-3 years. Research and development costs incurred to establish
technological feasibility are expensed as incurred. Accumulated amortization
was 5845 and $262 at December 31, 1995 and 1994 ,respectively. For the years
ended December 31, 1995 and 1954 and July 31, 1994 and 1993, amortization of
capitalized software development costs approximated §582, $262, $13, and 50,
respectively.

Intangible Assets - Intangible assets consist of goodwill, covenants not to
compete, customer lists and trademarks. The Financial Accounting Standards
Eoarc has issued Statement 121 addressing the accounting for the impairment of
long-l:ved assets that will be held and used, including certain identifiable
intanzibles, and the coodwill related to those assets. The statement is
affec:iive for calendar-year 1996 financial statements.

Socdwill - Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of companies acguired
cwer the fair value of their net asse:ts at dates of acquisition and is being
amori:zed over & twenty year period on the straight-line method. Management
I the Company evaluates the period c¢f goodwill amortization to determine
whether latter events and circumstances warrant revised estimates of useful
-:res. This evaluation is done by comparing the carrying value of goodwill to
ne value cf projected discounted ne: cash flows from related operations.
moairment 1s recognized 1f the carriinc value of goodwill is greater than the
zr-jected discounted cash flows from related operations.

-cvenants Not tc Compete - The capi:alized value of covenants not to compete
ire being amortized on the straizsht-.:ne basis over their contractual lives
wrnich range from three to five -ears

-4stomer Lists - Customer lists are being amortized over twelve to fifteen
~ears on the straight-line basais.



éohsalidntud Technology oup, Ltd. and Subsidiarie.
Notes to Cunsclidated Financial Statements

(in 000's except per share data)
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(1). Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Trademark - The trademark, which was acquired as a part of a reverse merger in
May 1995, relates to the Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services segment and
has a cost basis of $429 which represents the net present value of the \
payments for such trademark at the time it was acquired. This Crademark gives
the Company a nonexclusive trademark license for use of the "Klipsch®" name for
use with various professional loudspeaker products provided that the trademark
is used only in connection with professional grade speakers. The Klipsch name
and related speakers were developed in the 1940's and is an established name
as a leader in loudspeaker design and innovation, The Company believes that
the acquisition of the Klipsch trademark gives the Company one of the most
long-established and recognizable brand names in the industry. The trademark
is being amortized over 25 years on a straight line basis. Accumulated
amortization at December 31, 1995 is $46 and amortization expense since the
Company's acquisition of the trademark in May 1995 through December 31, 1998%

approximated $3.

Deferred Offering Costs - Deferred ott-rini COSLS reprasents amounts paid or
accrued for costs associated with an anticipated public offering for a
subsidiary of the Company in the medical services segment amounted to 5129,
$331 and 5172 for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31,
1994. These costs would have been recorded as a reduction of the net proceeds
of the anticipated offering, however; the total accumulated amount of such
costs of 5460 was expensed during the year ended December 31, 1995 since the
offering was not consummated.

Investmencs in Common Stock -The Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting S:tandards ("SFAS") 115 "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
anc Eguity Securities", in the five-month period ended December 31, 1994,

5FA5 115 reguires certain investments that have readily determinable fair
valuee to be categorized as either trading, available-for-sale, or
held-teo-macuritcy All of the Company's eguity investments in common stock are
categorized as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses recorded as a separate componer: of stockholders'
€guitly. Ahdditionally, available-for-sale investments that are deemed to be
permanently impaired are written down to fair market value and such write down
-: cthargec tC earnings as a realized loss. The adoption of this standard has
nt impactec the Company's financial statements since previcus unrealized
-csses on such investments were already reflected as a separate component of
s:cckholders' equity.

Mirnrity Interest - For consclidated subsidiaries that are not wholly owned,
tne Company eliminates the minority interest portion of the related profits
arc losses. The allocable losses of such minority interests is in excess of

tis Company's investment in such subsidiaries by approximately $1,132 and $684
8t Jlecember 1, 1995 and 19%4

Revenue Recogrition - P~ enue for the service sector is recognized as services
are provided. Revenue rom the manufacturing sector is recognized primarily
under fixed price type ontrac.s and are accounted for under the unit of
de.:very method. Anticipated losses on CONLracts in progress are charged to
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c;nsolidntcd Technology <-oup, Ltd. and Subsidiarie.
Noges to Consclidated Financial Statements

‘(in 000's except per share data)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

cperations as scon as losses can be determined. Revenues from fixed price
software development contracts and revenue under license agreements which
require significant modification of the software package to the customer's
specification, are recognized on the estimated percentage-of-completion
method. Revisions in cost estimates and recognition of losses on these
contracts are reflected in the accounting period in which the facts become
known. Revenue from the software package license agreements without
significant vendor obligations is recognized upon delivery of the software.
Information processing revenues are recognized in the period in which the
service is provided. Net patient service revenues are reported at the
estimaced net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others
for services iendered, including provisions for estimated contractual
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. The
Medical Diagnostic Segment has historically not provided any significant
amount of charity care. Maintenance contract revenue is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the life of the respective contract. Software
development revenues from time-and-materials contracts are recognized as

services are performed.

Contract terms which provide for billing schedules that differ from revenue
recognition give rise to costs and estimated profits in excess of billings and
billings in excess of costs and estimated profits. Costs, estimated profits,

and billings on uncompleted contracts are summarized as follows: -
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts $ 2,697
Esctimated profits 490
Total 3,187
Billaings tec datce 31,604
et ($ 699)

-

-

included in the accompanying balance sheet under the following captions:

ixcess of accumulated costs cJ/er

related billings $ 1,002
zxzess of killinas over accumulated costs 1,703
et ] 699)

farnings (Loss) Per Share - Earnings !loss) per share are computed by dividing
ne net income (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of common
snares outstanding. For purposes of computing weighted average number of
common shares cutstanding the Company has common stock equivalents consisting
cf stock options and warrants and Series "A" Preferred Convertible Stock. The
Series "A" Preferred Stock was deemed to be a common stock equivalent when
issued. Tae commC .tock equivalents are assumed converted to common stock,
wnen dilut:ive. Du g per.ocds of operations in which losses were incurred,
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Consolidated Technology G aup, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(i 000's except per share data)
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(1) -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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were excluded from the weighted average number of

ommon stock eguivalents je I :
5 = - their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

common shares outstanding because

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The fair value of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable is the carrying amount
because of the short maturity of such instruments. The fair value of
investments in common stock is based on Quoted market prices which is also the
carrying amount of such instruments (see Note 1 Investments in Common Stock).
Based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for loans with
similar terms and average maturities, the fair value of notes payable and
long-term debt is estimated to approximate the carrying amount.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments which porentially subject
the Company to concentrations of credit risk are cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable arising from normal business activities. The Company
routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers and based upon
factors surrounding the credit risk of its customers, establishes an allowance
for uncollectible accounts, and as a consequence, believes that its accounts
receivable credit risk exposure beyond such allowances is limited. The
Company places its cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality
financial institutions. The amount on deposit in any one institution that
exceeds federally insured limits is subject to credit risk. The Company
believes no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to
these cash investments. For the vear ended December 31, 1995, the Company did
nct receive revenues from any one customer that was significant to total
revenues as a whole

FeclassiZ:ications - Certain year endec December 31, 1994 and July 31, 1994 and
= izems have peen reclassifiec to conform to the December 31, 1955

£ accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
: the Company will continue as a go-ng concern. As shown in the financial
tements, the Company incurred & ne: loss of §11,360,070 for the year ended
ember 21, 19%%Z, and has an accumulated deficit to that date of 540,648, 000.
se itions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
ttntinue as & going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a
£Z.ng concern s dependent upon the success of the Company's subsidiary's
zrreting efforts and their efforts tc obtain sufficient funding to enable

=T LO continue operations. Management's plan is to continue efforts to

LR U

r_sce The fa:lure of the subsidiaries to raise capital by equity offerings
= tneir stock may force the Company to reduce operations via the closure of
Tertain seqments of nperntians and could ulctimately force the Company as a
wntle to c:ase oper~-ions.
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éonsol:da:ad Technology roup; Ltd. and Subsidiarie.
_Notes to “onsclidated Pinnn:ial Statements

tin 000's except per share data)

(3) Receivables

it ——

Receivables consist of the following:

December 31
1995 1994
Receivables §22,432 519 670
Less: Allowance for bad debts (3,217) (2,850)
Receivables, net 519, 216 £16,820
EEEEEE EEEEEE

The Company finances certain receivables to a factor under agreements entered
into in August 1994. The agreements are renewable annually and have a maximum
availability of funds of $5,500. Funds can be advanced in an amount egqual to
85% of the total face amount of outstanding and unpaid receivables, with the
factor having the right to reserve 15% of the outstanding and unpaid
receivables financed. The interest rate is equal to the base lending rate of
an agreed upon bank, which was 8.25% and 7.65% at December 31, 1995 and 1994,
respectively, plus 2% and 4% for the respective periods and a commission of
0.3% and 1% of the receivables financed for the respective periods. The
factor has a security interest in all accounts receivables, contract rights,
personal property, fixtures and inventory of the company. At December 31,
1985 and 1994 the total amount advanced by the factor was 54,386 and $4,019,
respectively.

The changes in the allowance for bad debts are as follows:

December 31,
1995 1994
talance at beginning of period $ 2,850 $ 2,933
rrovision for the period (1,225) (B3)
wrrte-offs for the pericd 1,582 -
Zalance at end of period $ 3,217 $ 2,850




Consolidated-Technology-t up; Ltd. and-Subsidiaries - -
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in 000's except per share data)
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(4) Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

December 31,

1955 1994
Finished goods $ 98 -
Work-in-process 1,336 $ 1,373
Raw materials and parts 2,617 2,214
Subtotal 4,081 3,587
Less: Progress payments - (121)
Subtotal 4,051 3,466
Allowance for obsolesence (350) -
Total inventories : § 3,701 § 3,466

EEE=Eo= EEEEEE

The work-in-process represents accumulated costs of raw materials, direct
labor and factory overhead expenses on current work orders. Finished goods
represent computer software inventory purchased for resale. During the years
ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 approximately $470 and $307 of inventory was
written-off due to obsolesence.

(5) Loans Receivable

Loans receivable consist of the following:

December 31,
1985 1994

Fingermatrix S 621 § 1,439
ther 165 275

:::al 790 1,714
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (1751} (351)
Lcans receivable, net 615 1,363
Long-term portion 218 --
Current portion 5 396 $ 1,363
EEEsEE EEEmEEER

germatrix was in Chapter 11 pursuant to a petiticn filed on September 11,

3 and whose plan was confirmed in March of 1995. The bankruptcy court has
ssified the Company as having & first security in the assets of the debtor.
March 3., 1995, T'lgermatrix emerged out of bankruptcy and the Company
eceived ics first yment of $£250 on its secured debt and its initial payment
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in 000's except per share data)
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(5F Loans Receivable (continued)

of 52 on its unsecured debt. The Company received 150,000 common shares and
250,000 warrants egualing less than 5% of the emerging debtor upon
confirmation. The common shares and warrants received were recorded at $240
which was the book value of the receivable and the related accrued interest
exchanged for the receipt of such common stock and warrants. The allowance
for doubtful accounts relates to notes receivable other than the Fingermatrix

loan.

(6) Receivables from Related Parties

Related party receivables consist of the following:

December 31,
1995 1954
Unconsolidated affiliate -
Loan consists of cash advances
and has no fixed due dates or terms. H] 427 - 160
Officers:
Due from an officer of a subsidiary
and has no fixed due dates or terms. 45 --
Due from the chief executive officer
of the Company and such officer
executed a note with interest at 9%
payable guarterly and matures in
cthe vear 2000. 72 -=
Total -] 544 s 160

7) Investments in Common Stock
-nvestments in commen stock consist of the following:

December J1,

---------------------

1985 1994

-cst basis S 336 5 674
et unrealized gain (loss) included
ac a reduction of shareholders' equi:ty ge (139)
arket Value 425 535
Zurrent portion 20 151
Long-term portion s 405 S 3B4

EEEEEE L2 2 & F 3}



Consolidated Technology-. up;- Ltd.-and-Subsidiaries
Notgs to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in 000's except per share datll

{7)« Investments in Common Stock (continued)

The unrealized gain (loss) on investments in common stocks' consists of the
following:

December 31,
1995 1994
Balance at beginning of period ($§ 139) (s 270)
Adjustments of investments
to fair market value 172 131
Realization of previously
unrealized loss 56 -
Balance at end of period $ 89 ($ 139)
EsEEEE EEEEEE

Gain (loss) on the sale of securities consists of the following:

Fiscal
Year Ended Year Ended
December 131, July 31,

1995 1994 1954 1983
Proceeds from security sales g 830 '% 45 § 195 § 749
Cost of securities sold 565 344 182 55
Gain (loss) on security sales (s 3as) (§ 299) § 13 $ 694

EEEEEE EEssEn EEEEEE EEsEmE
(€} Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,
1995 1994

Lans ] 664 s 664
Euildings 3,242 3,234
Med:cal equipment 14,590 15,915
Macninery and eguipment 2,019 2,283
Tocls and dies 601 145
Furniture and eguipment 4,097 3,429
Vehi:cles 25 25
Leasehold improvements 1,504 1,334
T::al 26,742 27,033
Less: Accumula'.ed deprr~ .ation (18,110) (16,842)
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(in 000's except per share data)
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December “31,

1995 1994
Sub-total 8,632 10,192
Equipment held under capital leases 6,843 6,227
Less: Accumulated depreciation li 441) (3,507)
Sub-total 2,402 2,720
Property, plant and egquipment, net §11,034 $12,911

EEsEEE EEEETES

Depreciation expense charged to operations was $3,472, $952, $127 and S40 for
the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993,

respectively.
(9) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following:

F-23

December 31,

1995 1994
Goodwill $12,901 $113,005
Less: Accumulated amortization (1,020) (3B82)
Goocdwill, net 511,881 $12,623
EEEEER EEEFEES

Csvenant not to compete $ 3,954 $ 3,954
Less: Accumulated amortization (1,786) (503)
Covenant not to compete, net S 2,168 $§ 3,451
EEEEaw EEEEEE
;:stomer lists $11,046 $113, 0468
~£55: Accumulated amortizacion {1,362) {276)
Customer liscs, net £11,684 $12,770
EEENEE EEEEE S

Trademarks s 429 -
Less: Accumulated amortization { 46) -
Trademarks. net s' ';;; ---F::
EEEoEE EEEETEE
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(5) «Intangible Assets (continued)

Amortization expense charged to operations was $3,005, $982, $1€3, and $0 for
the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 15993. During
the year ended December 31, 15954 the Company wrote-off approximately $623 of
goodwill cost that was deemed to be impaired.

{10) Debt
Notes Payable - Related Parties consists of the following:

December 31,
1995 1994

Notes payable to stcckholders for cash

received and office equipment

contributed by these stockholders in

1992. The loans are noninterest

bearing and have no fixed due date. S 183 § 183
Note payable to an employee for cash

advances, due in March 1996 with

interest at 9%. 107 L
Total notes payable, related parties s 290 $ 183

EEEEEE EEEEEE
Long-term d=bt consists of the following:
December 31,
1995 1994

Bank and :nstallment loans - with interes: rates

ranging from 6% - 12.5%. Collateralized by

cercain assets and stock of subsidiaries of the

Zompany $232 1s currently in defaul:, 52,980

15 due 1n 1996 and $4.364 1is due through 1999. § 6,134 $ 7.576
Former stockholders of an acquired subsadiary,

Sue September 1996 with interest at 7%. 138 280
Ezuipment loans - payable in various monthly

cnstallments at interest rates ranging from 7.75%

tZ 11.5%, collateralized by the related

egu.pment, due through 2000. 1,629 1,741
Euzlding mortgages - payable in various monthly

installments at interest rates ranging from 9.25%

toc 9.75% due through September 2000,

collateralized by the related buildings. 1,711 1,940
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(18) Debt (continued

December 31,
1995 1994
Investor loans - interest at 10% on $362 and 13.5%
on $530. §362 was due on 1995 and is in default
and 5530 is due in 1997 and is in default for
failure to make timely interest payments. B25 362

Loans payable to factor - 53,679 carries base

interest rates of 8.25 and 7.65% at December 31, *

1995 and 1994, respectively, plus an additional

2% and 4% for the respective periods and a 0.3%

and 1% commission for the respective periods.

$707 of new factor debt during 1995 carries

interest at prime plus BY to a maximum of 18%,

an effective rate of 15% at December 31, 1985.

Collateralized by accounts receivable, contract

rights, personal property, fixtures and inventory. 4,386 4,019

Note payable - covenants not-to-compete, payable
in monthly installments of $22. The notes are

noninterest bearing and mature September 1957. 467 690
Total 15,250 16,608
Current portion 9,080 B,09¢
Long-term portion $ 6,210 $§ 8,512

aEsE=EE EEEEESE

Subordinaced debt consists of the following:

------------

Subordinated notes payable issued in connection

with acquisitions - payable in various guarterly

installments at interest rates ranging from 4% to

"%. The notes are unsecured and as of

December 31, 1995 include balloon payments in

September 1996 and September 1557. Subseguent to

December 31, 1995, a portion of these notes have

been refinanced and a portion have been

renegotiated to extend the payment terms

(see subsequent events footnote) 517,657 $15,863
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(10r Debr (continued)

-l -

1995 1994

Internal Revenue Service for payment of taxes that
were past due at the time that the Company
purchased a subsidiary in 1994, payable in 15
monthly installments of, $100, maturing

through July 31, 1996. 700 1,500
Total 18,357 21,363
Current portion 13,354 3,437
Long-term portion § 5,003 - $17,926
EEEEE R E==Emn

Maturities of debt, including subordinated and related party debt, are as
follows:

Years Ended December 31, Amount
1996 $22,724
1997 5,809
1998 2,824
1599 2,355
2000 225
Total $33,937

EEEEES
{21) Lease Obligations

Ca;;:al;;ed‘Lease Obligations - The Company leases equipment under
rncrncancelable capital leases, the last of which expires in 2000. For some of
tne leases, a balloon payment representing the buyout of the leased equipment
15 cue at the end of the lease term. Capitalized lease obligations are
--ateralized by leased equipment which has a net book value of 52,402 at
cember 31, 1985.

-
-

-
--
-
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(1) Lease Obligations (continued)

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligutions are as follows at
December 31, 1955:

Years Ended December 31, Amount
1996 $ 1,663
1997 1,089
1998 932
1999 358
2000 77
Total minimum lease payments 4,119
Less: Amount representing interest (559)
Present value of net minimum lease payments 3,560 -
Current portion 1,382
Long-term portion $ 2,198

Operating Lease Obligations - The Company leases real estate for certain of
its operational and administrative facilities under noncancelable operating
leases expiring during the next fifreen years. The real estate leases contain
clauses which permit adjustments of lease payments based upon changes in the
"Consumer Price Index", options to renew the leases for periods up to an
additional fifreen years and additicnal payments for a proportionate share of
real estate taxes and common area coperating expenses., The Company's present
executive coffices are located at 160 Broadway, New York, New York 10038,
which 1t occupies pursuant to a lease expiring February 28, 1999. The current
case rent for such premises is $7 per month. The Company's subsidiaries
cccupy various facilities pursuant to leases expiring through 2001 The
current base rent for such premises approximates $123 per month.

HMinimum future rental payments under noncancelable operating leases having a
remaining term in excess of one vear are as follows:

Yezars Ended December 31. Amount
}996 $ 1,302
:99? 1,235
1858 1,195
1899 BB6
2000 440
Thereafter 180
Total minimum future rental paymenzs $ 5,238

ErEEER

rent expense for e years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994
and 1993 approxime.ed $1,560, $569, $357 and $258, respectively.
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(124 Income Taxes

Under SFAS No. 105 "Accounting for Income Taxes", deferred income taxes
reflect the net tax effects of (a) temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes, and (b) operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. The tax effects of significant items composing the Company's
net deferred tax liability as of December 31, 1995 and 1954 are as follows:

December 31,
1995 1994
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Difference between book
and tax amortization s 150 --
Book basis of assets in
excess of tax basis 4,424 --
Other 3 -
4,577 =
Deferred Tax AsSSsers:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts not currently
deductible 1,231 1,100
Note and loan receivable
allowances 71 253
Difference between book
and tax depreciation 4,527 676
Accrued vacation pay €1 82
Accrued warranty expense 11 -
Accrued sales returns 6 --
~cCrued sales discounts 10 --
-nventory reserves not
currently deductible 137 --
Fezderal net operating loss
_carryforward 13,758 5,197
State net operating loss
_:arryfarward 4,418 1,151
cTner -- 19
24,230 B,478
Valuation allowance 19,653 B.478
liet Deferred Tax Liability $ -- S -
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(12) Income Taxes (continued)

The Company's deferred tax asset valuation allowance was ‘§19,653, 58,478 and
54,700 as of December 31, 1995 and 1954 and July 31, 1994, respectively. The
increase in the valuation allowance of $11,175 for the yesar ended December 31,

1995 is comprised of the fellowing:

Difference between book and tax depreciation § 3,852
Difference between book and tax amortization (150)
Book basis of assets in excess of tax basis (4,424)
Allowance for doubtful accounts not currently deductible 131
Note and loan receivable allowances (1B2)
Accrued vacation pay (21)
Accrued warranty expense 11
Accrued sales returns €
Accrued sales discounts 10
Inventory reserves not currently deductible 137
Federal net operating loss carryforward 8,561
State net cperating loss carryforward 3,267
Other (22)
Total Increase $11,175

There was no valuation allowance as of July 31, 1993 since SFAS No. 109 was
initially adopted for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994.

Income Taxes:

The current and deferred income tax components of the provision (benefit) for
income taxes consist of the followinc:

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
Jecember 31, July 31,
100%8 1994 1994 1993
cusrant: = OCHGOUSEEE . o segms e 0T
Federal < -a - . -
state 144 s 19 -- 21
ruerto Rico B3 5 - - -
227 24 -= 21
ceferred - -e s .
S 227 -1 24 - -1 21
aEEEER EEEEEe LE B & X 3§ i EEEEES
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(12) - Income Taxes (continued)

The provision for income taxes varies from the amount computed by applying the
scatutory rate for the reasons below:

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993
Provision based on statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 34.0%
Benefit of graduated rates {1.0) (1.0) (1.0) n/a
Other income caxes
(net of federal benefit) (0.5) -= n/a n/a
State taxes
inet of federal benefit) (1.0) (0.6) - 4.0
Valuation allowance (34.0) (34.0) (34.0%) n/a
Net Operating Loss n/a n/a n/a (34.0)
(1.5%) (0.6%) -= 4.0%
EHEEREE EEEEEN EEEEEE EEEEEE

The Company's provision for income taxes is comprised of state and Puerto Rico
income taxes for the year ended December 31, 1995 and 1994. The provision for
income taxes for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 is comprised of state
income tax. The Company will have a federal net operating loss carryforward
of approximately 544,882 and a state net operating loss carryforward of
approximately $44,881. The federal net operating loss carryforwards expire in
years 1596 through 2010 and the state net operating loss carryforwards expire
in years 1956 through 2010 (the expiration dates vary based on individual
state income tax laws).

123! ‘Capital Stozk

Czommen Stock

¢verse Split - Effective September 1, 1993, the capitalization of the Company
nanged Zrom 300,000,000 shares cZ common stock, $.01 par value, into
-.000,000 shares of common stock, 5.0l par value. Effective the same time,
ne presently 1ssued and outstanding shares of common Stock were reverse split
-ne basis of one (1) new share for each sixty (60) issued and outstanding
nares. hll share data has been adjusted retroactively.

b5 o

3 ang) =
H ]

i

ik Options - On August 20, 1992, the Company authorized a stock option plan
=r Non Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors to provide compensation

=T services rendered to the Company in lieu of cash payment. At various

-mes the Company has registered and granted options pursuant to the plan.
-ring the years ended December 31, 19%5 and 1994 and July 31, 1994, options

< purchase 6,500,000 shares, 1,500,000 shares and 3,000,000 shares,
espectiely, wer granted and exercised.
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(13) Capital Stock (continued)

Acguisitions - Common stock was issued to acquire subsidraries as follows:

(i) In December, 1993 issued 850,000 shares in connection with the
acquisitions of Arc Acguisition Group, Inc. and ARC Networks, Inc.

(ii) In August 1993, issued 120,000 shares in connection with the acgquisition
of the remaining 20% of S-Tech.

(iii) In June 1994, issued 840,000 in connection with the acguisition of
Creative Socio-Medics Corp.

(iv) In September 1994 issued 3,343,000 shares in connection with the
acquisition of the International Magnetic Imaging, Inc. and affiliated
entities.

(v) In Noverber 1994 issued 1,500,000 shares in connection with the
acquisition of Job Shop Technical Services, Inc. and Computer

Engineering Services, Inc.

Stock Issued for Services Rendered - For the years ended December 31, 1995 and
1994 the Company issued 130,004 shares and 200,000 shares, respectively, for
in connection with consulting and financing services valued at $114 and 597,
respectively.

Regulation S Offerings - Pursuant to offerings in October 1995 and March 1994
made under Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933, the Company received
net proceeds of 5250 and §8,162, respectively, in conjunction with the
respective issuance of 1,000,000 shares and 3,500,000 shares of common stock.

Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock - During the year ended December 31,
1995, the Company issued 1,447,807 shares of common stock upon the conversion
¢f 11,117 shares of series A preferred stock.

Stock Purchase Rights - On December 15, 1994, the board of directors of a
subsidiary approved the sale of 4,000,000 shares of Common Stock owned by such
supsidiary to seven individuals who are officers, directors and/or key
employees of the Company or it subsidiaries. The purchase price is $.50 per
snare, which was the fair marke:r value of such stock on December 15, 1994. An
znitial payment of §$.01 per share is due not later than July 31, 1995, and the
c—alance is to be represented by the purchasers' nonrecourse 8% promissory
nctes due December 31, 199%. Payment mavy be made in cash or in securities.
-ayment of the notes is secured by a pledge of the shares. The shares are to
e 1ssued pursuant to stock purchase agreements dated as of December 15, 1994
ce-ween the subsidiary and the purchasers. None of the individuals receiving
~ne rights to purchase such stock exercised such right as of July 31, 1995 and
.. such rights have expired.

rreferred Stock - Effective September 1, 1993, the authorized number of shares

-- undesignated preferred stock. par value 51.00 per share, was increased from
-.,000,000 to 2,000,000 shares.
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(13) Capital Stock (continued)

L R T R .

Series A - The series A convertible preferred stock, which was all issued
during the period April 1993 through July 1553, bears a cumulative dividend
of 6%, is redeemable at any time at the option of the Company at a redemption
price of $10 per share, and is convertible at the option of the holder at any
time commencing two years from the date of issuance, unless sooner called for
redemption by the Company at the rate of 130.208 (7,812.5 prior to 60:1
reverse split) shares of common stock for each share of preferred stock if
and when sufficient shares of common stock are available for issuance. No
dividends were declared for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and
July 31, 199%4 and 1993. As of December 31, 1995 and 19594 a $.30 per share
dividend totaling $27 and $23, respectively, is in arrears. During the year
ended December 31, 1955 11,117 sghares of series A preferred stock was
converted into 1,447,807 shares of common stock.

Series B - The Series B subordinated preferred stock is redeemable at the
option of the Company at the issue price of $87.50 per share. The stock is
entitled to a $§3.50 annual dividend which is contingent upon after tax
earnings in excess of $200. In the event of involuntary ligquidation, the
holders may receive $87.50 per share and all dividends. No dividends were
declared for the years ended December 31, 1555 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and

1993,

Series E - The Series E preferred stock is entitled to an annual dividend of
$.10 per share contingent upon after tax earnings being in excess of $200. No
dividends were declared for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and
July 31, 1554 and 1993.

Series F - As consideration for grant:ing extensions on former debts, the
Company issued, in 1984, 2,700 shares of preferred stock at $1.00 per share.
The nonvoting preferred stock, designated Series F, with a dividend rate of
.00 per share 1s redeemable at the option of the Company after July 1993 for
:-.00 per share. One share will be issued for each $100 (one hundred dollars)
<- principal indebtedness owed. The d:vidend will be noncumulative and is
avable within 100 days from the close of any year where net income after tax
eedc 5500, and all dividends due on the Series B preferred stock are paid
crovided for. No dividends were declared for the years ended December 31,
and 1994 and July 31, 1954 and 1993,

T
i
1]

-+ Stock Oprions and Warrants
Emz.Dyes Stock Oprions

Fursuant to a Board of Directors meeting on December 15, 1994 certain
znZividuals received options to purchase an aggregate of 1,750,000 shares of
=nregistered common stock. The cptions have an exercise price of $.50 per
snzre, being the fair marke: value per share of Ccnsolidated common stock on
== date of the meeting, being the date of grant, and being exercisable at any
t-meé and from time to time during the four year period ended December 14,

- = -
ZCE
- .

F-32



_Consolidated Technology roup, Ltd. and Subsidiaric . g

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
(in 000's except per share data)

__________ R R e e e e e e o m m m mE a

(14) Stock Options and Warrants (continued)

Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors Stock Options:

On August 20, 1993, the Company authorized a stock option plan for
Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors to provide compensation for
services rendered to the Company in lieu of cash payments. |

Pursuant to the plan, in October 1993, January 1994 and March 1954, the
Company registered 1,500,000 shares, 1,000,000 shares and 1,500,000 shares,
respectively. During the same time periods, options for 3,000,000 shares were
granted, of which 1,400,000 were exercised at 51.00 per share and 1,600,010
exercised at $2.00 per share, resulting in $7,140 of expenses computed as
follows:

Shares 3,000,000
Value of stock
at date of grant $4.8917+
14,675
20% discount (2,935)
11,740
Exercise proceeds (4,600
Expense $ 7,140

* - Represents weighted average.

In accordance with the agreements relating to the various parties involved,
for the years ended December 31, 1994 and July 31, 1994 $4,140 and $7,140 was
charged as consulting services in the determination of income from operations.
A‘ZD! d;s:ount was utilized because the shares issued represents a large block
cf stock.

Pursuant to the plan during the year ended December 31, 1995, 6,500,000 shares
were granted and exercised of which 1,500,000 were exer:ised at $0.25 per
snare, 1,000,000 were exercised at $S0.35 per share 1,000,000 were exercised at -
<C.50 per share and 3,000,000 were exercised at $0.00 per share, resulting in
~:.869 of consulting costs computed as follows:
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(14)- Stock Options and Warrants (continued)

Shares 6,500,000 *
value of stock
at date of grant $0.9796"
6,367
20% discount (1,273)
5,094
Exercise proceeds (1,225)
Total consulting costs 3,869
Portion expensed at
issuance 1,556
Portion deferred at issuance § 2,313
Amortization during 1995 404
Write-off of deferred portion
at December 31, 1995 $ 1,908
EEEREES

* - Represents weighted average.

In accordance with the agreements relating to the various parties involved,
51,556 was charged as consulting expense at the time of issuance and the
remainder was to be amortized over the life of the contracts. During the year
ended December 31, 1995 $404 was amortized and charged as consulting expensec.
Additionally, at December 31, 1995 it was determined that the parties relating
to the deferred portion were no longer able to perform the services required
by the contracts and as such the balance of 51,909 was written-off to
consulting expense. A 20% discount was utilized because the shares issued

represents a large block of stock.
Series A Common Stock Purchase Warrant:

Cr September 30, 1994, in conjunction with the financing of the IMI
acguisition, the Company issued to a financing company, a warrant to purchase
-.000,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $0.75
per share. This warrant is exercisable on or before September 30, 1999 and
exrires on October 1, 1999. The number and kind of securities purchasable
upcn the exercise of this warrant and the exercise price is subject to
acjustment from time to time upon the happening of (a) certain stock
reclassification, consolidation or merger events: (b) certain stock splitc
transactions; or (c) certain dividend declarations, such that the value of
snares that would have been received upon exercise of the warrant immediacely
Prior to the above events is egquivalent to the value of shares receivable upon
exercise of the warrant immediately subsequent to the above events.
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(18) Industry Segments

The Company currently classifies its operations into eight business segments:
(i) Contract Engineering Services consists of subsidiaries that provide
engineers, designers and technical personnel on & temporary basis pursuant to
contracts with major corporations; (ii) Medical Diagnostics consists of a
subsidiary that performs magnetic resonance imaging &nd other medical
diagnostic services; (iii) Electro-Mechanical and Electro- Optical Products
Manufacrturing consists f subsidiaries that manufacture and sell products such
as devices that measure distance and velocity, instrumentation devices, debit
card vending machines and indusrrial lighting producne=; (iv) Medical
Information Services consists of subsidiaries that provide medical informatzion
database services, health care industry related software packages and the
SmartCard mecical identification cards and related software program; (v)
Telecommunicartions consists of a subsidiary that, among other things. installs
telephonic network systems and buys and resells local telephone service. (vi)
Three Dimensional Products and Services consists of subsidiaries that provide
three dimensional imaging services that are used in a variety of applications,
such as prototype building and reverse engineering; (vii) Audio Visual
Manufacturing and Services consists of a subsidiary that manufactures and
sells a professional line of loudspeakers, and (viii) Business Consulting
Services consists of subsidiaries that provide a variety of financial and
business related services. Corporate and Other consists of the operating
activities of the holding company entities. Previously, the segmentation
consisted of (i) Manufacturing, which is now included in the

Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical segment; (ii) Fees and Services, which
included the subsidiaries that are now classified in the Contract Engineeraing
Services, Telecommunications and Business Consulting Services segments; and
~=2) Development Stage which previously included Medical Information Services
and Three Dimensional Products and Services. Inter segment sales and sales
cutside the United States are not material. Information

concerning the Company''s business secments is as follows:

F-35




Caﬁlolidatld Technology  >up,  Ltdr and -Subsidiarie.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in 000's axcap: per share data)

e

!-lr Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,
Segments 1995 1994 199! 1993
Revenues:
Contract Engineering Services $63,152 §25,2%91 $10,221 S 611
Medical Diagnostics 28,044 6,557 - --
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing 4,223 3,605 3,475 3,059
Medical Information Services 7,381 2,925 7 50
Telecommunications 3,253 2,269 1,131 -
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 1,776 B850 292 80
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 2,149 -- -- --
Business Consulting Services 119 81 616 39
Total Revenues $110,097 541,578 $15,742 § 3,839

EEEEEE EEEREN EErEEER ESEEEE
Gross Profit:
Contract Engineering Services & 3,995 $ 1,640 $ 1,007 § 51
Medical Diagnostics 12,235 2,661 -- --
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing 1,048 119 157 996
Medical Information Services 1,574 601 7 33
Teiecammun;catinns 695 640 277 --

hree Dimensicnal Products

and Services 654 2596 119 56
Audic Visual Manufacturing

anZ Services 202 = g .-
Business Consulting Services 119 153 615 39
Tital Gross Profat $20,522 .. 85 6,150 $ 2,182 $ 1,175
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Fiscal Year Ended

Year Ended
December 31,
Segments 1985 1994

Income (Loss) from Operations:

Contract Engineering Services (§ 446) (§ 108)
Medical Diagnostics 5,367 1,036
Electro-Mechani cal and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing (841) (1,543)
Medical Information Services (2,274) (1,529)
Telecommunicatiuns (504) (144)
Three Dimensional Products

and Services (2,242) (1,555)
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services (492) -
Business Consulting Services (21) (430)
Corporate and other (9,659) {6 191)
Total Income (Loss) from

Operations ($11,112) ($10,464)

EEEEEw EEEEEw
Net Income (Loss):
Contract Engineering Services (§ 1,312) (§ 252)
Medical Diagnostics 2,682 449
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing (1,002) (1,530)
Medical Information Services (2,B803) (1,601)
Telecommunications (573) (150)
Three Dimensional Products

and Services (2.285) (1,792)
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services (553) --
Eueiness Consulting Services 9 (442)
Ccrporate and Other {5.523) {(6,110)
~czal Net Income (Loss) ($11,360) (S11,428B)

EEEEE=

July 31,
1694 1993

(s 21) ($ 90)
(998) ig2
(678) (195)
42 --
(765) (108)
225 (148)
(8,371) (1,244)
(510,566) (S 1.403)
EEEEEE EEEEEE
s 69 (5 129)
(1,021) 194
(629) (222)
37 .-
(B09) (108}
215 (148)
IE €34) 953
ISIO 772) S 740
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Segments

Depreciation and Amortization:
Contract Engineering Services
Medical Diagnostics
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-
Optical Products Manufacturing
Medical Informatica Services
Telecommunications
Three Dimensicnal Products
and Services
Audio Visual Manufacturing
and Services
Business Consulting Services
Corporate and Other

Total Depreciation and
Amortization

Capital Expenditures(1]:
Contract Engineering Services
Medical Diagnostics
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-
Optzical Products Manufacturing
Med:cal Information Services
Teliecommunications
Tnree Dimensional Products
ang Services
/330 Visual Manufacturing
ans Services
Ezz_ness Consulting Services
—zrporate and QOther

.Zt&. Capital Expenditures

Ltd —and -Subsidiarie.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in 000 s excep=- par shlre data)

Year Ended
December 31,
1955 1594
s 706 5 324

4,988 1,294
37 24
1,333 372
a0 30

417 133

74 --

2 2

15 8

5 7,602 s 2,187

$ 110
226

71
138
3

------

F-38

$ 2
12,417

1
1,103

514,081

-

1,004

142

July 31,
1994 1993
$§ 139 §
43 5
6 2
15 --
Bl 29
2 1
i 2
$ 290 $ 40

450
23

255

------
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(15) Industry Segments (continued)

As of . As of
December 31, July 31,
Segments 1995 1994 1994 1993

Identifiable Assets:

Contract Engineering Services $ 9,859 S 9,984 $ 5,509 § 116
Medical Diagnostics 39,872 40,912 -- --
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing 3,714 4,502 4,647 4,983
Medical Information Services 6,936 6,652 6,822 374
Telecommunications 1,362 1,256 1,042 i
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 1,559 2,327 1,446 B49
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 1,780 -- - -
Business Consulting Services 251 1,425 444 450
Corporate and Other 1,279 1,031 5,160 609
Total Identifiable Assets $66,312 568,089 $25,070 $ 7,381

[1] For the years ended December 31, 1995 capital expenditures for the audio
visual manufacturing and services segment include $374 for amounts allocated
to property and equipment from the acquisition of certain net assets of WWR
Technology related to the reverse merger with Trans Global Services. For the
vear ended December 31, 1954 the contract engineering services, medical
diagnostics, medical services and three dimensional products and services
segments include $2, $10,903, $1,004 and $208, respectively, for amounts
allocated to property and eguipment from the acquisition of certain net assets
¢Z Job Shop Technical Services, Inc., International Magnetic Imaging, Inc.,
-reative Socio-Medics, Inc. and Computer Engineering Services, Inc. For the
fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, capital expenditures for the technical
employee leasing and medical information services fegments include $18 and
$-.004 for amounts allocated to property and egquipment from the acguisition of
certain net assets of Arc Acquisitions Group, Inc. and Creative Socio-Medics,
-nc. For the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, capital expenditures for the
slectro-mechanical and electro-optical products manufacturing and three
c:mensional products and services segments include $450 and 5182,
respectively, for amounts allocated tc property and equipment from the
acquisition of certain net assets of General Technologies Group. Ltd. and
ropotics and Designs, Inc.
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(16) Sale and Reacqguisition of Subsidiary

Pursuant to an Agreement dated June 4, 1987, by and among General Aero
Products Corp., now called General Technologies Group Ltd. ("GTG"), the
Company, and a subsidiary, Seguential Electronic Systems, Inc. ("SES"), the
Company sold all of the then issued and outstanding common stock of SES (100
shares) to GTG. The Company received 1,500,000 shares of GTG common stock and
a ten year, 10.5% promissory note in the principal amount of $2,000 which note
was subsequently written down by $500 and the return by the Company of 500,000
shares of GTG common stock .This write down and return of shares was in
settlement of a fraudulent claim made by GTG against the Company. The Company
also loaned $500 to GIG evidenced by GTG's 8% Convertible Debenture.
Subsequent to the above transactions, a Chapter 11 petition was filed on
December 14, 1985 by GTG. :

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, the Company, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, SIS Capital Corp., completed a settlement agreement
with a financial institution. The agreement includes the purchase by the
Company of the 100 shares of SES common stock held by the financial
insticution for $25 cash and a note of $75. In addition, S-Tech, Inc., a
subsidiary of the Company acquired from the financial institution, certain net
assets of GTG in the amount of $1,523 (which represents the appraised value of
the assets) for $100 cash and note of $270. The cost of the purchase of the
100 shares of SES stock is included in the expenses and losses recovered by
the Company through the acquired assets of GTG. In conjunction with the
agreement, an adversary proceeding, commenced against GTG in its pending
bankruptcy proceedings in the Bankruptcy Court-Eastern District of New York
was settled. The Company's claim for rescission of the sale of certain SES
stock and damages for fraud, and the financial institution's separate
adversary proceeding for an order voiding issuance of the nine hundred (900)
snares of SES stock have all been discontinued. There are no other claims
e.ther by or against the Company pending in those proceedings. The Company
has pa:c for its purchase of one hundred (100) shares of stock to the
—inancial institution as par: of its sectlement of all claims by and against

- -

-k

the financial institution.

{7 Related Party Transactions

-cans Payable to Officers and Former Shareholders:

Tns Company 15 indebted to stockholders for cash received and office equipment

ttriTiputed Dy these stockholders in 1952. The loans are noninterest bearing
anc nave no Iixed due date. The amount due at December 31, 1995 and 1994 was

ne “ompany :s indebted to an employee for cash received from such employee
iziag 19595 The locan bears interest a: 9% and is due in 1996. The amount
< at December 31, 1955 was S10".
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(17) Related Party Transactions (continued)

Approximately $969 and $1,067 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively, of
the subordinated debt issued in connection with the acquisition of IMI is
payable to an officer of IMI. The officer was a shareholder in IMI prior the

acguisition.

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries had outstanding indebtedness to DLB, Inc. ("DLB"), a corporaticn
owned by the wife of Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, chairman of the board, president
and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Schiller disclaims any
beneficial interest in DLB. The cbligations were secured by assets and stock
cf certain subsidiaries. The largest amount outstanding during the period was
approximately $381. In addition, DLE had purchased preferred stock in one of
the Company's subsidiaries for 5$24. In April 1994, the Company paid
approximately $343 in principal and $36 in interest to DLB and issued to DLB
shares of common stock in certain subsidiaries in full payment of all i1ts and
its subsidiaries' obligations to DLB and paid DLB $24 for DLB's preferred
stock in a subsidiary, representing DLB's cost of such preferred stock. Since
such repayment, DLB has not lent money to, or purchased stock in, the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, except that, in August 1994, DLB advanced the
Company approximately $35, which was paid without interest in Ociober 1994.
The largest amount outstanding during the year ended December 31, 1994 was
535.

Sale of a Subsidiary to Emplovees:

Effective January 1, 1994, the Company transferred to four employees of a
subsidiary. including Ms. Grazyana B. Wnuk, secretary of the Company, 6€1% of
the common stock of the subsidiary, for nominal consideration. In connection
with such transfers, Ms. Wnuk received a 31% interest in the subsidiary. The
ocperaticns of such subsidiary did not represent a significant portion of the
<ompany's pusiness during the years ended July 31, 1994 or December 31, 1994.

Furchase of a Portion of a Subsidiary from Employees:

~rans Global Services, Inc. ("Trans G-cbal") was organized by SIS Capital
Zcrp. ("SISC") zin January 1995 o hold all of the stock of Avionics Research

2—1:‘.::11::95. Inc. ("Holdings"). (formerl: ARC Acguisition Group, .nc.), which was -
acguired by SISC in December 1923, and Resource Management International, Inc.
FMI"), (formerly ITS Management Corp.!, which was acquired by SISC in

vember 1%94. Trans Global alsc issued to SISC warrants to purchase shares
:ts common stock. The Trans Globa. stock and warrants were issued to SISC
consideration for the transfer of the stock of Holdings and RMI and the
“ances made by SISC. All of the Trans Global stock and warrants owned by
ST are held subject te the right of Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, chairman of the
card and chief execu:tive officer of :*he Company, to purchase 10% of SISC's
Seity position for 1.0% of SIST’'s ccst.  In connection with the organization

N TR I
PR LN in Q)

Trans Global, Trans Global also issued a 3.4% interest to Mr. Joseph G.
icinski, president of Trans Gleobal, in exchange for certain rights Mr.
:cinski has with respect to the stock of Holdings.

Yy iy id Byt
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(17) Related Party Transactions (continued)

In connection with the organization of Trans Global in Jarmuary 1995, SISC
ransferred a 5% interest in its common stock and warrants in Trans Global to
DLB in exchange for DLB's 10% interest in another subsidiary of Consolidated.

At the time of the organization of Trans Global, Trans Global issued to SISC,
in consideration for the equity consideration issued by Consolidated :n
connection with the acguisitions of Holdings and RMI, 500 shares of Series A
5% Redeemable Cumulative Preferred Stock.

During 1995, SISC, DLB, Inc. and Mr. Joseph G. Sicinski, the stockholders of
Trans Global, entered into an agreement (the "Trans Global Agreement”) with
Concept Technologies Group, Inc. ("Concept") pursuant to which they would
transfer to Concept all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Trans
Global in exchange for a controlling equity interest in Concept.

Pursuant to the Trans Global Agreement, Concept issued to SISC in respect of
its Trans Global Common Stock, preferred stock and warrants, 850,000 shares of
Concept Common Stock, two-year warrants (the "Concept Warrants") to purchase
475,000 shares of Concept Common Stock, 23,750 shares of Concept's Series A
Participating Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A Preferred Stock"), which
are convertible into 1,900,000 shares of Concept Common Stock upon the filing
of an amendment to Concept's certificate of incorporation which increases its
capital stock, 23,750 shares of each of Concept's Series B and C Preferred
Steock, which are convertible into an aggregate of 2,375,000 shares of Concept
Common Stock if certain levels of income before income tax are met, and 25,000
shares of Concept's Series D 5% Redeemable Cumulative Preferred Stock ("Series
D pPreferred Stock"), which is not convertible and which is redeemable after
toree years for an aggregate of approximately $1.7 million. The Series D
Preferred Stock 1s alsc redeemable from the sale by Concept of its eguity
securities, including the sale of stock upon exercise of options and warrants.
The Concept Warrants become exercisable until the Warrants included in the
Un:Zs =ither expire or are exercised in full. The exercise price of the
~cnzept Warrants is 5:I.50 per share or the exercise price of the warrants
inz-uded in a proposed private placemen: by Concept, whichever is lower.

ant to the Trans Globa. Agreemen:, Concept issued to DL8 in respect of
rans Global stock and warrants, 50,000 shares of Concept Common Stock,
pt wWarrants to purchase 25,000 shares of Concept Common Stock, 1,250

i Ey
kg
1 67 8y

[ 1}
m«c

-

-
L3

es of Concept's Series A Preferred Stock, which are convertible into
00C shares of Common Stock, and 1,250 shares of each of Concept's Series B
= T Preferred Stock, which are convertible into in aggregate of 125,000

.ares of Concept Common Stock 1if certain levels of income before income taxes

ar
ars attained. Pursuant to the Trans Giobal Agreement, Concept issued to Mr.

cnsk: in respect of his Trans Globa. Stock, 100,000 shares of Concept
=mmon Stock

ne Trans Global Agreement provides SISC and DLE with certain registration
riznis with respect to their Concept warrants and the underlying common stock

§;? provides Mr Sicinski vith certain registration rights with respect to the
---.000 shares ! Comm> ‘tock issued to him pursuant to the Trans Global
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(17) Related Party Transactions (continued)

Agreement. Mr. Sicinski's shares are subject to a one-year lockup agreement,
subject to earlier release under certain conditions.

All of the Trans Global stock and warrants owned by SISC are held subject to
the right of Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, chairman of the board and chief executive
officer of the Company, to purchase 10% of SISC's equity position for 110% of
SISC's cost. In connection with the transaction contemplated by the Trans
Global Agreement, Mr. Schiller's option will be converted to an option to
purchase 10% of SISC's interest in the Concept equity securities at a price
equal tc 110% of S5ISC's cost.

Advances to a Company that was Subsequently Acguired:

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1954, the Company made advances to a
company that was acquired on September 30, 1994. Advances receivable from
this company at July 31, 1994 amounted to $347.

Advances to an Unconsolidated Subsidiary:

The Company has made advances to a 35% owned subsidiary from time to time in
various amounts. These advances have no fixed due dates or terms and 5145 of
such advances have been written-off. The outstanding balances owed to the
Company from this subsidiary was $427 and $160 at December 31, 1995 and 1994
and the greatest amount outstanding tc such subsidiary during the years ended
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993 was §427. Ms. Grazyna
E. Wnuk, the Company's secretary, owns a 31% interest in the subsidiary
receiving such advances,.

Loan Rece:vable from an Officer of a Subsidiary:

Juring the year ended December 31, 1995 a subsidiary of the Company loaned $45
o the chief executive officer of such subsidiary. The loan has no fixed due
fates or terms.

-2an Receivable from Sale of Common Stock Investments to an Officer:

-<ring 1995, the chief executive pfficer of the Company exercised an option to
turchase common stock investmen:is held by the Company at 110% of the book
"&.ue of such investments. The purchase of such investments was consummated
-7. a noncash transaction and such officer is to issue a note in favor of the
-ompany with interest at prevailing rates and maturing five years from the
Sate of the purchase. Total amounts outstanding under such receivables was
=72 at December 31, 1995. The gain realized by the Company on the sale of
Inese i1nvestments approximated 57.

cnsulting Arrangement with Former Bocard Member:

The Company enterecd “7il0 a consulting agreement with Irving Hertz (now
Jeceased), upon hi: esignation from the Board and as Chief Executive Officer

=: the Company. Ur. r thits agreement, all of the fringes Mr. Hertz had as
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(17) Related Party Transactions (continued)
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CEO, including a leased car, would continue to be provided by the Company .

The services to be performed, for which Mr. Hert: rac-i?ed a monch;y recainer,
were investment banking and financial consulting on various situations in
which the Company was interested. The Company paid $66,828 to Mr. Hert: under
this agreement during the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993. Upon Mr. Hert:z's
death, the Company settled all claims his estate had against the Company for
$175, during the fiscal year ended July 31, 1894. As of July 31, 1994, all
such amounts were paid in full. 1In addition, consulting fees were paid to
other individuals and firms that were not related parties at the time such
fees were paid and any such fees are not deemed to be material.

(18) Litigaticn

Although the Company is a party to certain legal proceedings which have
cccurred in the ordinary course of business, the Company does not believe such
proceedings to be of a material nature with the exception of the following:

Holding Company:

The Company has been named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed by a company it
was contemplating acquiring in January 1995 for alleged unauthorized use of
proprietary information specific to that line of business. Outside counsel
handling this case has advised the Company that it has meritorious defenses to
obtain a dismissal of the lawsuit.

Contract Engineering Services:

The Governmen:t Printing Office wrote & subsidiary of the Company asking to be
reimbursed a total of $296 for unauthor:zed timework on two programs. The
supsiciary has been in contact with the Department of Justice which has stated
tnat they were declining prosecution oI the subsidiary regarding this matter
Management pelieves these claims are without merit and intends CO contest
trnese claims vigorously if reasserted by the Government Printing Office and
pe.ieve that the ultimate dispositzion =f this matter will not have a material
a

cverse eZfect on the financial posit:on of the Company .

Tne United States Department of Labor "DOL") has filed a conplaint against
-cz Shop Technical Services, Inc. ("Jco Shop"), a company from which a
£.osidiary of the Company purchased cerzain assets and assumed certain
c--:gations, and its former principal sharehclder for civil violations of
£nI5A resulting from the failure of Jcb Shop to deposit employee cont:ributions
== Job Shop's 401(k) retirement plan. A~ similar complaint was filed by former
e=-loyees of Job Shop against Job Shop. its former principal shareholder and
ciners. At November 21, 15994, the amoun: due to the Job Shop 401(k) plan was
acrcroximately $2,000, which amoun: ma. nave increased since such date as a
T=s5.lt of interes: and penalties. Neither the Company nor RMI, which is the
suosidiary which acquired assets ond assumed certain obligations of Job Shop

© November 1994, has been named as a defendant in either of such actions.

€ DOL ha. raised th the Company the possibility that RMI may be liable

-th respect to Jo. ‘hop's ERISA liability as a successor corporation

Ll B
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(18) Litigation (continued)

or purchaser of plan assets, even though RMI did not®«ssume such obligations
and paid value for those assets which it did purchase. Although the Company
believes that RMI is not a successor corporation to Job Shop and is not
responsible for Job Shop's ERISA violations, the DOL may take a contrary
position. If the DOL takes such a position and prevails, it would have a
material adverse effect upon the operations of RMI and possibly the Company as

a whole.
Medical Information Services:

An action was commenced against a subsidiary of the Company by the filing of a
summons with notice in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of
New York. The action was commenced by Jacque W, Pate, Jr., Melvin Pierce,
Herbert A. Meisler, John Gavin, Elaine Zanfini, individually and derivatively
as shareholders of Onecard Health Systems Corporation and Onecard Corporation,
which corporations are collectively referred to as "Onecard". The named
defendants include, in addition to the subsidiary, officers and directors of
the subsidiary and the Company. A complaint was filed cn November 15, 1995.
The complaint makes broad claims respecting alleged misappropriation of
Onecard's trade secrets, corporate assets and corporate opportunities, breach

£ fiduciary relationship, unfair competition, fraud, breach of trust and
other similar allegations, apparently arising at the time of, or in connection
with the organization of the subsidiary in September 1992. The complaint
seeks 1njunctive relief and damages, including punitive damages of $130,000.
Management believes that the action 1s without merit, and it will vigorously
defend the action. Nevertheless, due tO uncertainties in the legal process,
it is at least reasonably possible that management's view of the outcome will
change in the near term and there exists the possibility that there could be a
mater.al adverse impact on the operations of the Company.

ae

ucic Visual Manufacturing and Services:

-nere 1s arn action pending against a subsidiary of the Company alleging claims
sgainst the subsidiary for unauthorized use of the Klipsch trademark. The
cmpany denies these allecations and asserts there has been no material breach
:I contract. The case is currently in the discovery phase and the amount of
ny liability, if any, cannot be estimated. Management intends to defend
“:gorously the claims alleged against the subsidiary. Nevertheless, due to
-ncértainties in the legal process, .t 1s at least reasonably possible that
~4nagement’'s view of the outcome will change in the near term and there exists
ne possibility that there could be & material adverse impact on the
crerations of the subsidiary.

[T}

-%] New Authcoritative Pronouncements

-ne fcllowing describes new authorita:ive pronouncements that are expected to
¢ applicable to the accounting of the Company's operatioiis:

m
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{15) New Authoritative Pronouncements (continued)

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of", in March of 1995. SFAS
121 established accounting standards for the impairment of long-lived assets,
cerctain identifiable intangibles, and goodwill related to those assets to be
held and used, and for long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles
to be disposed of. SFAS No. 121 is effective for financial statement issued
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1995. Adoption of SFAS No. 121
may have a material impact on the Company and require significant write-downs
of intangible assets

The FASB has alsc issued SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensations, " in October 1995. SFAS No. 123 uses a fair value based method
of accounting for stock options and similar equity instruments as contrasted
to the intrinsic valued based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting
Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees." The Company has not determined whether it will adopt SFAS No. 123
or continue to apply APB Opinion No. 25 for financial reporting purposes.

SFAS No. 123 will have to be adopted for financial note disclosure purposes in
any event. The accounting requirements of SFAS No. 123 are effective for
transactions entered into in fiscal years that begin after December 15, 1995;
the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 are effective for financial
stactements for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1995.

- e O e e o m om m E e e

(20) Acguisitions

'~) - On December 22, 1993, the Company, acquired for 600,000 shares valued at
<-.440 (chrough a 90% owned subsidiary’ Arc Acquisition Group, Inc., in a
Lusiness combination accounted for as a purchase. On the same date, the
Company also acquired for 250,000 shares valued at $600 (through a wholly
cwnec subsidiary! 80% of the outstand:ng voting common stock and 50.1% of the
cotstanding non voting stock of ARC Networks, Inc., in a business combination
SC accounted for as a purchase. The purchase price of these two

gulsitions exceeded the fair value of the net assets of ARC Acgquisition

oup, Inc. and ARC Networks, Inc. by 52,543, consisting of Goodwill of 5543

G
v aliy

ustomer Lists of $2,000 Geoodw>2.. and Cusctomer Lists will be amortized

© 20 years and 15 years, respec:t:vely, under the straight line method. For
=ZIZouniing purposes, the results of operations of ARC Acquisition and ARC
-22w0rks are included with the results of the Company from January 1, 1994

i 0

== - 0On June 16, 1994, a subsiZiary of the Company, Carte Medical Holdings
“-ME"), through a wholly-owned subsid:ary, CSM Acguisition Corp.
_m~Zgulsition Corporation®), acquired the assets and assumed liabilities of
~reative Socio-Medics Inc, (“CSM" pursuant to a plan and agreement of
Té-rganization dated as of April 13, 1994, as amended (the "Purchase
~zreement"), amorng the Company, Carte Medical Corp. ("Carte®), Acquisition
-=Tporation, CSM and Advanced Computer Techniques, Inc. ("ACT"), the parent of
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(20) Acgquisitions (continued)

CSM. The Company is the parent of SISC, which is the parent of CMH. 1In
connection with the purchase, (i) Acquisition Corporation purchased the assets
and assumed liabilities of CSM in exchange for 800,000 shares of the Company's
common stock and $500 which was advanced by Carte to Acquisition Corporation
from the proceeds of a loan made by SISC, (ii) CMH transferred the stock of
Acquisition Corporation te Carte, (iii) in consideration for the transfer of
the Acquisition Corporation stock, Carte is to issue to CMH an aggregate of
1,000,000 shares of common stock, of which 450,000 shares are issuable on or
about the date Carte receives the proceeds from an initial public offering,
and (iv) Acquisition Corporation changed its corporate name to Creative
Socio-Medics Corp. At the time of the execution of the Purchase Agreement,
SISC granted to former officers of ACT and CSM, options to purchase an
aggregate of 202,560 shares of Carte's common stock owned by SISC. The shares
of common stock owned by SISC were transferred to CMH subject to the options.
The cptions are exercisable at an exercise price of 5.174 per share during the
five-year period commencing on June 16, 1994, the date the acqguisition of CSM
was consummated. At the closing of the acquisition, the Company issued to
such individuals an aggregate of 40,000 shares of its common stock. The
purchase price of this acquisition included §3,851 for customer lists of CSM
which will be amortized over 1t years under the straight line method. For
accounting purposes, the results of operations of CSM are included with the

results of the Company from July 1, 1994 onward.

Imaging, Inc. and ics affiliated entities ("IMI, Inc.") in a business
combination accounted for as a purchase. The principal operations of IMI,
-nc. Are 1in the establishment and operation of outpatient diagnostic centers
croviding MRI services and other diagnostic modalities. The results of
cperations of IMI, Inc. are included in the accompanying combined financial
statements since the date of acquisition. The total cost of the acquisition
~as 31,872 which exceeded the fair value of net assets of IMI, Inc. By
Z.-.0ec. The excess purchase price, or goodwill, will be amortized by the
straight-line method over 20 years.

(z21) - As of September 30, 1994, the Company acgquired International Magnetic

Tne other intangibles, specifically restrictive covenants and customer lists,
“.-. be amorcized by the straight-line method over 3 years and 15 years,
rzcspectively.

Tne following summarizes the purchase price allocated to acqguired assets at

-

fiir alue
;ash 5 6,960
Subcrdinated Debt 19,863
stock (2,343,000) 2,920
liotes (Covenancs]) 800
anCcguisition Costs 1,329
Purchase Cost 55&.&72
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(20r Acquisitions (continued)

Allocated to: .
Cash § 2,350
Other Assets 421
Covenants-Not-to-Compete 3,303
Property, Plant and Equipment 10,903
Accounts Receivable 7,378
Managed Care Contracts - Customer Lists 5,656
Liabilities Assumed { 9,209)
Goodwill 11,065
Total $31,872

EEEEEE

The cash portion of the purchase price was subsequently refinanced through
DVI. The notes issued in connection with the acquisition of the centers
balloon primarily in S:E:lnbl: 1996, with notes in the principal amount of
$860 maturing in Sept r 1997. The notes issued to acquire the management
and radiology company, balloon and mature in September 1997 and 1993,
respectively. In connection with this acqguisition, the Company, through its
subsidiaries, borrowed an aggregate of approximately $7.1 million on a
secured, term-loan basis over 60 months pursuant to loan and security
agreements among the Company's subsidiaries and DVI Financial Services, Inc.
dba DVI Capital. For accounting purposes, the results of operations of IMI
are included with the results of the Company from October 1, 1994 onward.

(iv) - In November 1994, the Company acquired the assets of two businesses,
Job Shop Technical Services, Inc. ("Job Shop") and Computer Engineering
Services, Inc., ("CES"). Job Shop provides engineers, designers and technical

personnel on a temporary basis, which is similar to the business performed by
Avionics Research Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company. CES is engaged in
tne pucsiness of performing CAD (computer aided design) and CAM (computer aided
manufacturing) related services and the marketing and sale C"D/CAM software.

- Pursuant to an asset purchase agreement dated as of August 19, 1994
mong ITS Management Corp., a Delaware Corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary

I the Company ("ITS"), Job Shop and the sole stockholder of Job Shop, ITS
ired substantially all of the assets of Job Shop in excrange for 750,000

nares of the Company's common stock valued at $450, and the assumption of
terzain scneduled liabilicies. The prancapal liability assumed was a $S2
m.-..:on ceol:igation due to the Internal Revenue Service
Turzuant tC a settlement arrangement which Job Shop had negotiated. The
cnztial 5500 payment was made in November, 1994. The balance is due in 15
mcnthly installments of $100, commencing May, 1995,

(b - Pursuant to a plan and agreement of reorganization among CDS Acguisition

Ccrp. ("CDSY), a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, CES and the sole stockholder of CES, CDS acquired substantially all
cf the assets of CES in exchange for 750,000 shares of the Company's common
stock valued at $450, and the assumption of certain scheduled liabilities.
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(26) Acquisitions (continued)

Prior to the acguisition, the businesses of Job Shop and {ES were operated as
divisions of the same company, along with one other division which was not
acquired by the Company. For accounting purposes the results of operations of
ITS and CDS are included with the results of the Company from November 22,

1954 onward.

(v) =~ In May 1995, SIS Capital Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company ("SISC"), entered into an agreement among SISC, DLB, Inc. ("DLB"),
Joseph G. Sicinski and Concept Technologies Group, Inc. ("Concept"), pursuant
to which SISC, DLB and Mr. Sicinski transferred to Concept all of the issued
and outstanding common stock of Trans Global, in exchange for a controlling
interest in Concezpt. Concepts common stock and warrants are traded on the
NASDAQ Small Cap Market. Trans Global's common stock was owned by SISC
(91.6%), DLB (5.0%) and Mr. Sicinski (3.4%). DLB is owned by Ms. Carol
Schiller, wife of Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, the Company's chairman of the board,
president and chief executive officer. Mr. Schiller disclaims all beneficial
interest in the securities owned by DLB. Mr. Sicinski is president of Trans
Glecbal. Trans Global, which operates through two subsidiaries, ARC and RMI is
engaged in the business of providing engineers, designers and other technical
personnel to its clients, which include major companies in the aerospace,
electronics and computer industries. Concept owns and operates Klipsch
Loudspeaker business, and, through a subsidiary, is the developer and owner of
proprietary technologies with applications in environmental noise
cancellation, medical monitoring, defense and communications. Following the
consummation of the transaction, the business of Trans Global became Concept's
principal business.

The following pro forma unaudited results assume the above four acquisitions
nac occurred at the beginning of the indicated periods:
Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
Jecember 31, July 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993
&1 revenues £11C,761 $98,687 $101,939 $88,939
EmE=z=Ee EEEEEER EEsEEs=E EEEEEE
27 income (loss: ($§12.421) (§11.,948) (S B,662) S 632
EFEEEE EEEEEE EEEEE EEEEE
:ncome (loss) per share (§ C.51) (S 0.76) ($ 1.09) § 0.15
EErz=z== EEmEEE= EEEEEE EEEEEE

Tne pro forma information 1s not necessarily indicative of either the results
cf cperations that would have occurred had the acquisition been effective at
tne beginning of the indicated pericds or of the future results of operaticns.
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(21)- Sale of HlJority Intaru:t of Subsidilry

Effective January 1, 1954, the Company disposed of 61% if «its interest in

Universal International, Inc.,
subsidiary, SIS Capital Corp.; which owned 100% of Universal.
accounted for as a disposal of a portion of
considered a business segment.

business segment.

included in other income (expense).

respectively.

("Universal"”), through its wholly-owned

The sale was

a line of business that is not
Other subsidiaries continue to operate in the
The sale resulted in a loss of approximately $33 which 1is

The revenues, gross profits and net loss
of Universal at December 31, 1993 were approximately $160, $48 and ($S40),

being accounted for under the eguity method.

Subseguent to December 31, 1993, the investment in Universal is

Following is a summary of net assets and results of operations of Universal

International,

periods ended January 31,

Cash

Receivables - Net
Property,
Other Assets

Total Assers

Plant and Equipment - Net

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

hccrued Payroll
Loans Pavable

liez AsSsetrs

FEUE2NIUES
lzsts and Expenses

et [Loss)

Taxes

Period from
Augus: 1, 19
through
January 31,
1554

--------

93

-

January 31,
1594
- 2
45
20
B
75
41
105
166
{S 237)
For the
Year ended
July 31,
1993
s 611
740
(S 129)
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Inc. as of January 31, 1954 and July 31, 1993 and for the
1994 and July 31, 1993 and 1992:

July 31,
1993
s 6
59
24
28
117
44
97
170
(S 194)
For the
Year ended
July 31,
19982
5 727
79831
(s 66)
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(22) Disposal of a Portion of a Line of Business
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On July 31, 1991, the Company sold its 50.1% interest in.Trinity Holding Corp.
to one of the minority shareholders (Hugh Murphy) of the Trinity Holding Corp.
in exchange for one dollar and the waiver of significant emoluments granted by
the Company's Board in 1589. At the date, liabilities exceeded assets by
$823. The excess of net liabilities over the net investment in Trinity
Holding Corp. of $767 has been recorded as a gain on disposal of a segment.
During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, $562 in notes and loans receivable
from Trinity Holding Corp. were written off by the Company.

Following is a summary of net assets of Trinity Holding Corp. as of July 30,
1991:

Cash s 37
Receivables - Net 52
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 7
Other Assets 17
Total Assets 113
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses -1
Accrued Payroll Taxes 278
Notes Payable - Other 572
Net Assets (s B23)

{(23) Extraocrdinary ltem - Debt Restructuring

During the fiscal years ended July 31, 1993, certain creditors agreed to
forgive deb: totaling $153. The debt of $285 which was primarily owed to a
related party was included in additicnal paid-in capital at July 31, 1991.
The £146 forgiven in 1993, which was due to non-related entities, is reported
as an extraordinary item. In addition, in 1993, debt in the amount of S348
owed to the above entities, as well as others, was converted into Series A
creferrec stock at a price of $5.00 per share (69,711 shares).

-2) Unusual Item

T May 1993, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, SISC, completed
r. agreement with a major financial institution settling a $6 million lawsuit
cr damages filed against the institution and General Technologies Group Ltd.,
"GTG"), pursuant to a RICO action undertaken by Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, CEO of
ne Company, alleging ongoing fraud and conspiracy to defraud the Company in
connection with the Sequential Electronics Systems, Inc., ("SES"), transaction
< June 3, 1587. The agreement gives the Company clear title to all the
snares of SES and includes the purchase of certain net assets and the
cperations of GTG by S-Tech, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company. The purchase

UL T T
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(23} Unusual Item (continued)

by S-Tech, Inc. was completed June 30, 1953, and resulted -in the Company
acquiring net assets of §1,523 (representing appraised values). To the extent
that the Company recorded losses in prior periods through the write-down of
assets, the write-off of receivables, and other related expenses, in its prior

sale agreement with GTG (in excess of $§1,600), the Company has recorded a one
time gain on the acquisition. §-Tech, Inc. remains liable on a note to the

financial institution arising from the above purchase.

(24) Subseguent Events

Holding Company:

Regulation § Ofierings - Pursuant to an offering in January 1996 made under
Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933, the Company received net proceeds
of 5500 in conjunction with the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of common stock.
Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock - During the first quarter of 1996, the
Company issued 3,635,379 shares of common stock upon the conversion of 27,914
shares of series A preferred stock.

During January 1956, the Company

Contract Engineering Services:

-n. January 1956, a publicly held subsidiary of the Company sold 500,000 shares
cf its common stock pursuant to Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933 and
received net proceeds of §500. The impact of this transaction on the Company
w--. be an increase in minority interes:t on the balance sheet of approximately
£50C and a dilution of ownership of approximately 2%. Such dilution is not
expe

cted to be material in relationship to the financial statements as a

© March 1956, a publicly held subsidiary of the Company held its annual
me=iing of stockholders at which time, among other things, the authorized
-erred stock was increased from 100,000 shares to 2,000,000 shares and the
ocrized common stock was increased from 4,000,000 shares to 20,000,000
§. The Company is due to receive an additional 1,510,000 shares of the
¢ subsi:diary's stock pursuant to the reverse merger agreement discussed
-ootnote (18), (v), above and this will increase the Company's ownership by
cximately 25%. Had this stock been received during 1995, the minority
rest in the loss of consclidated subsidiaries would have decreased by
oximately 51,000 which would have increased the consolidated loss by
oximately S1,000.
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(in 000's except per share data)

(24) Subsequent Events (continued)

Medical Diagnostics:

In January 1996, a subsidiary of the Company obtained financing consisting of
a term loan of $2,000 and a revolver loan of $6,000. The majority of the
proceeds were used to pay current subordinated debt. 1In addition, other
current subordinaced debt was reclassified to long-term per the loan
agreements. The pro forma effect of this financing on the December 31, 1995
balance sheet would be as follows:

Current assets $26,965
Property and equipment, net 11,034
Other assets 29,416
Total assens $67,415
Current liabilities $31,404
Long-term liabilities 22,995
Total liabilities 54,399
Minority interest 2,087
Stockholders' equity 10,929

Total liabilities and
stockholders' eguity 567,415

In February 1996, a subsidiary of the Company loaned $300 to an officer of the
subsidiary. The principal is due in 1998 and requires interest only payments
at a rate ci 5.5%, payable annually.

Medical Information Services:

-~ February 1996 a subsidiary of the Company executed an agreement to purchase
ar. application software product known as SATC Software which processes retail
t-astic card transactions and merchant transactions for 5650 of which $325 was
caid in February 1996 with the balance due in three instal.ments in 1996. g
~Z3itionally, the subsidiary entered into a joint venture with a company in
=nich the joint venture partner will pay the remaining balance for the SATC
Stitware as its contribution to the joint venture. The joint venture
azreement has not been finalized and the subsidiary remains liable for the
remaining $325 in any event. The Company has also guaranteed the subsidiary's
repayment of such amount.

~ subsidiary of the Company intends tc enter into an agreement with a
consulting company pursuant to which the subsidiary would pay $25-559 per
month for management level services. The agreement will continue to the year
2000 and also provides for payment of a percentage of smart card and related
revenues generated by the subsidiary. Pursuant tc the agreement, the
subsidiary is to pay the consul:iing company $250 for prior services rendered.
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(24)- Subsequent Events (continued)

In 1996, a subsidiary of the Company signed a letter of inmtent with an
underwriter for the sale of its securities through an initial public offering.
Additionally, in January 1996, the subsidiary borrowed $500 from four
accredited investors. In connection with such loans, the subsidiary issued
irs 8% promissory notes due January 31, 1997, which are payable from the
proceeds of the subsidiary's initial public offering. The subsidiary also
agreed that if the initial public offering is completed prior to January 31,
1997, it would register, pursuant to the Securities Act and issue to the note
holders one unit for each $2.00 principal amount of notes. The unit to be
issued to the note holders will mirror the units to be issued in the initial

public offering.

In January 1996, a subsidiary of the Company issued 11,250 shares of common
stock to its vice president for services rendered by him. The fair value of

such shares will be treated as compensation in 1996.

In March 1996, a subsidiary's agreement with a receivable factor was modified
to allow borrowings up to B0% of eligible receivables to a maximum of $1,000.
In consideration, the subsidiary will pay the factor (i) an annual fee of $10
and (ii) a monthly fee of $10. 1If the subsidiary receives equity funds by the
way of an initial public offering or a private placement of art least $350, the
riginal borrowing availability will be reinstated and the subsidiary shall
pay the factor a $25 fee and issue it 25,000 shares of the subsidiary's common

stock.
(25) Commitments

Scriller has an employment agreement dated October 1, 1954 with the
ompany pursuant to which it employs him as chief executive officer through

emoer I., 199B at an annual salary of $250, subject to an annual cost of
rease or 5%, whichever .s greater. Mr., Schiller is also entitled to
zual to 10% of cthe Company's consclidated income before income taxes
% £ 2250. No bonus was payable for the year ended December 31, 1995.
ne Company also granted to Mr. Schiller a five-year option to acquire 10% of
ne Jompany's securities portfelio at 110% of the Company's cOst.

LALLM R ol = i B 4

[]

‘‘anoney nas an employmen: agreemen: dated October 1, 1994, and superseded
' an agreement dated March 21, 1995, with the Company pursuant co which it
Tr-oys him as chief financial officer through December 31, 1999. Mr. Mahoney
--- Tece.ve & base salary of $165, 5177, 5189, 5202 and $220 for the years
nzing December 31, 1995, 1996, 1997, .598 and 1999, respeccively.
==iziona.ly. Mr. Mahoney shall alsc receive incentive compensation equal to
s greater of one percent of the net pretax profits or net cash flow of the
-cmpany, plus the greater of one percen: of the net pretar profit or net cash
.ow oI IMI (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) . subject to a maximum
€- twice Mr. Mahoney's base salary for the respective year. Mr. Mahoney's
tonus for the year ended December 31, 1995 approximates $35.
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(26) Rustateman:s of Prior Ptrind Financial Statements

The years ended December 31, 1954 and July 31, 1954 and 1993 financial
statements have been restated, The following summarizes and describes impact

of the restatement.
Year Ended

Income (Loss) from Operations:
Prior to Restatement
Prior Period Adjustments:

Decrease in discount on shares
issued for stock options [1)

Reclass loss from discontinued
operations to operating
activity [2)

Reclass stock option expense
from unusual to selling,
general and administrative
expenses [3]

Decrease in discount on shares
issued in lieu of cash payment
for services rendered [4)

Decrease in discount on shares
issued for acquisitions [5]

Reclass goodwill write-off from
other expense to selling, general
and administrative expenses (6]

~5 rescated

Income (Expense):
tc Restatement
Period Adjustments:
Feclass stock option expense
irom unusual to selling,
general and administrative
expenses [3)
Reclass goodwill write-off from
cther expense to selling, general
and administrative expenses (6]

e |
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~nS restated

($ 5,965)

(3,540)

(510,464)
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(¢ 1,072)

($ 3,851)

(5,870)

($10,5686)

($ 1,253)

845

1993

{($ 1,403)

§ 1,942
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(26)- Restatements of Prior Period Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended

- - R R R

July 31,

Loss from Discontinued
Operations:

Prior to Restatement

Prior Period Adjustments:
Reclass loss from discontinued
operations to operating
activitcy [2)

As restated

Net Income (LOSS):
Prior to Restatement
Prior Period Adjustments:

Decrease in discount on
shares issued for stock
options [1]

Decrease in discount on shares
issued in lieu of cash payment
for services rendered [4)

Decrease in discount on shares
issued for acguisitions [5)

ks restated

Accumulated Deficit
Prior to Restatement
Prior Period Adjustcments:

Decrease in discount on
snares issued for stock
cptions (1)

Decrease in discount on shares
~ssued in lieu of cash payment
for services rendered [4]

Decrease in disccunt on shares
sssued for acquisitions (5]

ks restated

(§ 7,514)

(3,540)

(36)

(S32,428)

1523,044)

{S,870)

(36}

(529,288)

-
- -
- -

($ 4,902)

(5,870)

{510 772)

(518,932)

(5,870)

(524,802)

s 740

(514,030)

($14,030)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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_________________ e T L L

(26) Restatements cf Prior Period Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended

Additional Paid-in Capital,

Common Stock:
rior to Restatement $39,23583 $35,861 5§16, 752

Prior Period Adjustcments:
Decrease in discount on

shares issued for stock

opticns [1] 5,870 5,870 --
Decrease in discount on shares

issued in lieu of cash payment

for services rendered [4) 36 -- -

Decrease in discount on shares
issued for acquisitions [5] 338 -- --
As restated 545,587 541,731 516,752
EEETEEE EEEEEE EEEESE

1] - The Company originally used a 60% discount for valuing shares issued and
exercised pursuant to a Non Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors Stock
Plan and it was subsegquently determined that only a 20% discount should be
used resulting in an increase in noncash expenses of §3,540 for the year ended
December 31, 1994 and $5,870 for the year ended July 31, 1994.

{2] - The Company originally presented $562 of losses from the discontinuation
of a part of a line of business as a discontinued item and such losses are now
:ncluded in income (loss) from operations.

2] - The Company originally included $845 of noncash expenses from the
:ssuance and exercise of stock options pursuant to a Non Employee Directors,
“onsultants and Advisors Stock Plan as an unusual expense in other income and
expense. Such expense has been reclassified as an operating expense of $300
:cr the year ended December 31, 1994 and 5845 for the year ended July 31,
1894,

%] - The Company originally used a 50% discount for valuing shares issued in
sieu of cash payment for services rendered and it was subsequently determined
that only a 20% discount should be used resulting in an increase in noncash
expenses of $36 for the year ended December 31, 1994.

(2] - The Company originally used a 50% discount for valuing shares issued in
connection with the acquisition of a subsidiary and it was subseguently
determined that only a 20% discount should be used resulting in an increase in
noncash expeises of $33B for the year ended December 31, 1994,
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(26 Restatements of Prior Period Financial Statemeats (continued)

[6] - The Company originally included $285 of goodwill write-cffs in other
income and expense. Such expense has been reclassified as an operating

expense for the year ended December 31, 1954.

.....................................
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to tae requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1534, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CONSOLIDATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP, LTD.

Date: April 10, 19596 /S/

Lewis S. Schiller
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the regquirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf cof the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/S/ President and Director April 10, 1996
------------------ -- (Principal Executive

Lewis S§. Schiller Officer)

/S/ Chief Financial Officer April 10, 1996
----------------- e (Principal Financial and

George W. Mahoney Accounting Officer)

/S8/ Director April 10, 1996
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‘ Consolidated Technology ‘roup, Ltd. and Subsidiari

December 31, 1985
EX£11.1 Calculation of Earnings per Share

----------------------- e e R RS R e e e e e e e

-

Net Loss (511,360,000}

Loss per Share:

Loss per share - Note 1 $(0.51)

Loss per Share - assuming full
dilution - Note 2 $(0.33)

Note 1:

Computed by dividing the net loss for the period by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding (22,423,035 for the year ended December
31, 1995). No stock options, warrants or preferred convertible stock are
assumed to be exercised because they are anti-dilutive for the periods. The
weighted average number of common shares outstanding is calculated by
weighting common shares issued during the period by the actual number of days
that such shares are outstanding for the period.

Note 2:

(i) hAssumes that the 6,000,000 common shares issued pursuant to the exercise
cf stock options were outstanding as of the beginning of the year.

) Assumes that a warrant to purchase 1,000,000 common shares at $0.75 per
share was exercised at the beginning of the year, and that all proceeds from
such exercise were used to purchase treasury stock at a price egual to the
averade market price of the Company's common shares for the respective period
az guoted on the NASD.

--1) Assumes that at the beginning of the year, the 66,596 remaining shares
I preferred convertible stock were converted to common shares at the
ccnversion rate of 130.20833 shares of common for each share of convertible
creferred stock.




Consalidntad Technology  2up,-Ltd
Ex 21 1 List of Subsidiar.es of the Rngiltrlnt

. Company
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Consolidated Technology Group Ltd.

SIS Capital Corp.

The Trinity Group Inc.

Carte Medical Holdings

Carte Medical Corp.

Creative Socio-Medics

IMI Acguisition Corp.

International Magnetic Imaging

MD Corp.

MRI-Net

IMI Acquisition of Pine Island Corpeoration
IMI Ltd. Partner Acg. of Pine Island, Inc.

IMI Acgquisition of North Miami Beach Corporation

IMI Ltd. Partner Acqg. of North Miami, Inc.
IMI Acquisition of Boca Raton Corporation
IMI Ltd. Partner Acg. of Boca Ratcn, Inc.
IMI Acquisition of South Dade Corporation
IMI Ltd. Partner Acg. of South Dade, Inc.
IMI Acquisition of Oakland Park Corporation
IMI Ltd. Partner Acg. of Oakland, Inc.

IMI Acquisition of Orlando Corporation

IMI Lcd. Parctner Acg. of Orlando, Inc.

PODC Acquisition Corporation

PODC Ltd. Parctner Acq. Corporation

IMI Acquisition of Puerto Rico Incorporated
IMI Acquisition of Arlington Corp.

IMI Acquisition of Kansas Corporation

MD Acquisition Corporation

MD Ltd. Partner Acq. Corporation

TeleVend, 1nc.

ARC Networks Corp.

Trans Global Services, Inc.

Pesource Management International, Inc.

ARC Acquisition Group, Inc.
~vionics Research Corp.

~vi1cnics Research Corporation of
SZ5 Holdings Corg.

guential Electronic Systems, Inc.

Tec Inc.

-"ﬁusrry Lighting, Inc.

:T Holdings, Inc

COS Acquisition Corp.

:35 Inc.

:2 Technology, Inc.

iL Imaging International, Inc.

Universal International, Inc.

Universal International of Orlando, Inc,
WWE Technology, 1Inc.

Audio Animation, Inc.

Prime Access, Inc.

TGS Services Corp.

Concept Technologies sup, Iaic.

Florida

it
bt

—— e

State of

New Yark
Delawvare
Delaware
Delawvare
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida

Incorporation

R T

Puerto Rico

Virginia
Kansas

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
New York
Delaware
Delaware
New York
New York
Florida
Delawvare
Delawaire
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delawvare
Florida

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delawvare
Delaware




UNITED STATES
SEQURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 205489

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

The Quarter Ended March 31, 1956
Commission File Number 0-4186

CONSOLIDATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

13-1948169

New York
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
160 Broadway, New York, NY 10038
(Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive offices)
Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (212) 233-4500

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months, (or for such shorter period that the
Registrant was reqguired to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 50 days.

Yes _X No

Number of common shares outstanding as of May B, 1996: 41,909,640
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Consolidated Technology roup, Ltd.
Andex

part I: - Financial Information:

Item 1. Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets - March 31, 199¢
and December 31, 198585,

Consolidated Statements of Operations - Three Months Ended
March 31, 1996 and 1995,

Consolidated Statement of Sharehcolders' Equity - Three Months
Ended March 31, 1996.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Three Months
Ended March 31, 1956 and 1995.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of the
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Part II1:
Part II - Other Information:
Item €. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K
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Consolidated Technology roup Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consclidated Balance Sheets
{dollars in 000's) .

Assetrs:

Current assets:

Cash and cash eguivalents
Receivables, net of allowances
Inventories

Loans receivable

Prepaid expenses and other
current assets

Excess of accumulated costs over
related billings

Investments in common stock

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net

ther assets:
Capitalized software development costs
Goodwill, net
Covenant not to compete, net
Customer lists, net
Deferred offering costs
Receivables, long-term
Receivables, related parties
rademark, net
Investments in common stock, long-term
Other Assets

Total other assets

Teczal Assers

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2

$€8,528

* December 31,

1995

$§ 1,636
19, 216
3,701
396

436

1,002
20

- -

26,407

11,034

502
11,881
2,168
11,684

219
544
383
405

- ==




Consolidated Technology .roup Ltd. and Subsidiarie.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(dollars in 000's)

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued interest
Income taxes payable
Interim billings in excess of costs
and estimated profits
Notes payable, related parties
Current portion cf long-term debt
Current portion of subordinated debt
Current portion of capitalized
lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt

Capitalized lease obligations
Subordinated debt

Total long-term liabilities
Minority interest

Shareholders' Egquity:

Preferred stock

hdditional paid-in capital,
preferred stock

Common stock (50,000,000 shares
authorized, 35,290,664 and 26,655,071
shares issued and outstanding as of
March 31, 1996 and December 31, 1995,
respectively)

Additional paid-in capital, common stock

nccumulated deficit

Unrealized gain (loss) on exchange translation

Net unrealized gain on long-term
investments in common stock

Total shareholders' equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

3

March 31,
1996

-

$10,212
5,064
392

344

-- ===

- -

568,528

$11,095
2,332
2B4

269

1,701
250
5,080
13,354

266

267
51,020
(40,648)

(17)

566,312






Consolicdated Technology roup Ltd. and Subsidiarie.

Consolidated Statement of Operations
‘(dollars in 000's except per share data)

Revenues

Direct Costs

Gross Profit
Selling, General and Administrative

Income {loss) from operations

Other Income (Expense):

Interest Expense
Ocher Income
Gain (Loss) from Security Sales

Total Other Expense- Net

Loss Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest
Income Taxes

Minority Interest in (Gain) Loss of Subsidiaries
Net Loss

Loss per Common Share

Welghted Average Number
ol Common Shares

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

4

Three Months Ended

March 31,

1996 1995
$26,513 $28,410
20,699 23,327
5,814 5,083
5,747 6,396
67 (1,313)
(963) (984)
164 78
37 (120)
(762) (1,026)
(695) (2,339)
(76) (44)
292 (5)
(s 479) (§ 2,388)
EEEEEE EomEEEe
(s0.01) (50.13)
EEEEERE aEEEEER
33,671,873 18,766,149

EEsEEEEEES




Consolidated Technology . .oup Ltd.-and-Subsidiaries

Congo.idated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the

Three Months Ended March 31, 1996
{dollars in 000's)

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 6%
Series A 77,713 shares authorized:

Beginning balance
Conversion of Series A to common stock

Ending balance

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, $3.50 and $.10
Series B & E 8,000 shares authcrized each:

Beginning balance
Ending balance
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, $8.00

subordinated Series F, 6,000 shares authorized:

Beginning balance

Ending balance

Total preferred stock - par

Additional paid-in capital,

preferred stock:

Beginning balance

Conversion of Series A to common stock

Ending balance

Common stock, $0.01 par value,
50,000,000 shares authorized:

Beginning balance

Issuance for offerings
Conversion of Series A preferred

EnZ:ng balance

héc:tional paid-in capital, common stock:

Eecianing balance
Issuance for offerings
Conversion of Series A preferred

Ending balance

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

5

66,596

(27,921)

262
EEREsEssEs
262

2,700
EEEEEEEESE
2,700

41,637

26,655,071
5,000,000
3,635,593

35,290,664

Amounts
: 67
(28)

$ g
EEEEEE

$ 1
s 1
s 2
EEEEES
$ 2
s 42
s 266
(111)

S 155
EEEEEE

S 267

50

36

[ 153

$51,020
450
104
$51,574

{continued)




Consolidated Technology Jroup Ltd..and Subgidiarie.

Consolidated Statements of Sharehclders' Equity for the

" Three Months Ended March 31, 1996
(dollars in 000's)

Accumulated cdeficit:
Beginning balance
Net loss

Ending balance

Unrealized exchange translation:
Beginning balance

Unrealized gain on exchange translation
Ending balance
Net unrealized gain (loss) on long-

term investments in common stock:
Beginning balance
Net unrealized investment security gains

Ending balance

Total shareholders' egquity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

-----------------

($40,648)
(479)
($41,127)
($ 17)
40

s 23

§11,226

{concluded)




Consolidated Technology .roup Led: and-Subsgidiaries
Consolijated Statement of Cash Flows
(dollars in 000's) :

-

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Write-off goodwill
Loss on disposal of assets
Minority interest in loss of

consolidated subsidiaries
Bad debr expense
Option exercise expense
Noncash expenses paid with the issuance of stock
(Gain) loss on marketable securities
Change in current assets and current liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in current assets:
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Excess of accumulated costs over
related billings
Increase (Decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued interest
Income taxes payable
Interim billings in excess of costs
and estimated profits

Total adjustcments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
l-ncrease) decrease in other assers

Zapital expenditures

nvestments in common stock

Prcceeds from sale of marketable securities
Capitalized software development costs
Payments for loans made

Collections for repayment of loans made

Net cash used in investing activities

Three Months Ended

March 31,
1596 1995
(S 479) (s 2,388)
1,626 1,591
192

99 --
(292) --
238 232
- 740
- 67
(37) 120
(2,191) 137
65 (11)
(374) 314
(108) --
(BB3) 6B6
2,732 712
108 3
75 -
(385) (655)
BES 3,936
3B6 1,548
105 105
(1,176) (174)
(325) --
128 165
(1) (63)
{1,011) {122)
926 72
(1,354) (12)
(continued)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Technology roup Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(dollars in 000's)

-

Three Months Ended

March 31,
1996 1995
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Deferred offering cCOStSs (114) (15)
Net payments to factor (1,179) -
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 9,001 --
Repayment of long-term debt (1,046) (690)
Repayment of subordinated debt (6,333) (656)
Payments on capital leases (326) (278)
Issuance of common stock 500 --
Subsidiary's issuance of common stock 375 --
Exercise of stock optious -- 725
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 878 (914)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Eguivalents (90) 622
Cash and Cash Eguivalents at
Beginning of Period 1,636 1,727
Cash and Cash Equivalents at
End of Period § 1,546 § 2,349
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash
Flow Information:
Cash Paid for:
Interest $ BSS5 $ 9B1
EmEEEE N
Income Taxes s A 5 i
_-mEERE EnmEER
(concluded)

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:

During the three month period ended March 31, 1995:
(1) - Acquired egquipment under capital lease obligations with a net present
value of $39.
(2) - Issued stock options and received exercise proceeds of $725 and
incurred noncash deferred consulting fees of $1,235 and noncash
consulting fee expenses of 5740,

See notes to consolidate” wnancial statements.



Consclidatec¢ Technology ..oup, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Nptes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dollars in 000's)

- R R R R e R R e e R R e e
----------

(1) In the opinion of the Company, the accompanying unaudited fznangial
statements containu all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring
accruals) necessary to present fairly the financial position of the Company as
cf March 31, 1996 and December 31, 1995 and the results of its operations and
changes in cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 1996 and 1995,

(2) The accounting peolicies followed by the Company are set forth in Note 1 to
the Company's financial statements in the December 31, 1995 Form 10-K.

(3) The results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 1996 and
1995 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the ful:

year.

(4) Loss Per Share - Loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for
the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. For
purposes of computing weighted average number of common shares outstanding the
Company has common stock equivalents consisting of stock options and warrants
and Series "A" Preferred Convertible Stock. The Series "A" Preferred Stock
was deemed to be a common stock eguivalent when issued. The common stock
equivalents are assumed converted to common stock, when dilutive. During
periods of operations in which losses were incurred, common stock eguivalents
were excluded from the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

(5) Industry Segments:

The Company currently classifies its operations into eight business
segments: (1) Contract Engineering Services consists of subsidiaries that
provide engineers, designers and technical personnel on a temporary basis
pursuant to contracts with major corporations; (ii) Medical Diagnostics
consists ol a subsidiary that performs magnetic resonance imaging and other
medical dlagnostic services; (iii) Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical
Products Manufacturing consists of subsidiaries that manufacture and sell
Froducts such as devices that measure distance and velocity, instrumentation
devices, debit card vending machines and industrial lighting products; (iv)
Mecical Information Services consists of subsidiaries that provide medical
~nicrmation database services, health care industry related software packages
anz the CarteSmart medical identification cards and related software program;

Telecommunications consists of a subsidiary that, among other things,

~nftalls celephonic network systems and buys and resells local telephone
=rsice, (vi) Three Dimensional Products and Services COnsists of subsidiaries
- provide three dimensional imaging services that are ured in a variety of
plizations, such as proto-type building and reverse engineering; (vii) Audio
ual Manufacturing and Services consists of a subsidiary that manufactures

sells a protessional line of loudspeakers, and (viii) Business Consulting
Services consists of subsidiaries thart provide a variety of financial and
business related services. Corporate and Other consists of the coperating
activities of the holding company entities. Intersegment sales and sales
cutside the United States are not material. Information concerning the
Company's business segments is as follows:

i
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Corsolidated Technology <roup, -Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dollars in 000's)

(5) Industry Segments (continued):
Three Months Ended

March 31,
Segments: 1956 1995
Revenues:
Contract Engineering Services $13,471 $17,800
Medical Diagnostics 8,114 7,027
Electro-Mechanical #ad Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 649 1,171
Medical Information Services 2,561 1,427
Telecommunications 742 390
Three Dimensicnal Products and Services 298 589
Audio Visual Fanufacturing and Services 671 --
Business Consulting Services 7 6
Total Revenues $26,515 $28,410

EEEFEEE EEEEEE
Gross Profit:
Contract Engineering Services § 834 § 612
Medical Diagnostics 3,841 3,393
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical :

Products Manufacturing 94 363
Medical Information Services 662 369
Telecommunications 40 57
Three Dimensional Products and Services 200 283
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 137 --
Business Consulting Services 6 6
Total Gross Profit S 5,B14 S 5,083
Income (Loss) from Operations:

Contract Engineering Services (s 254) i 294)
Medical Diagnostics 1,883 1,496
Zlectro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing (169) (4)
Medical Information Services 202 (436)
Telecommunications {2B0) (214)
Three Dimensional Products and Services (450} (415)
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services (143) e
Business Consulting Services (9) (6)
Corporate and other (713) (1,440)
Total Income (Loss) from Operations - 67 (§ 1,313)

10




Consolidated Technology w.oupr-Ltd- and -Subsidiaries - .
Nntes to Consolidated Financial Statements
|

(dollars in 000's)

R SRR e S S S A S S e, e e ...
- -

{(5) Industry Seqments (continued):
Three Months Ended

March 31,

Segments 1996 1995
Net Income (Loss) :

Contract Engineering Services (s 324) § (574)
Medical Diagnostics 1,196 833
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing (171) (4)
Medical Information Services ase (467)
Telecommunications (301) (222)
Three Dimensional Products and Services (218) (416)
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services (158) -
Business Consulting Services (9) (8)
Corporate and other (582) (1,530)
Total Net Income (Loss) (§ 479) (§ 2,388)

EEEEEw EmEmasn

Depreciation and Amortization:

Contract Engineering Services $ 114 $§ 128
Medical Diagnostics 1,242 1,283
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 16 8
Medical Information Services 109 132
Telecommunications 8 B
Tnree Dimensional Products and Services 90 59
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 41 -
Business Consulting Services 1 1
Corporate and other 5 2
Total Depreciation and Amortization $ 1,626 $ 1,591

Capital Expenditures:

Contract Engineering Services ] 19 S 11
MeZical Diagnostics R ) ] 47
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing - <
Medical Information Services 20 4
Telecommunicaticns ~- -
“hree Dimensional Products and Services -- 90
#ucio Visual Manufacturing and Services 12 =
Eusiness Consulting Services -- -
Corporate and other L 18
Total Capital Expenditures $ 1,176 1 174

11



Consolidated Technology Jroup, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
.Nopes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dollars in 000's)

(5) Industry Segments (continued):

At March 31,

Segments: 1996 1995
Identifiable Assets:

Contract Engineering Services $ 7,421 $10,287
Medical Diagnostics 42,362 39,989
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 3,716 4,352
Medical Information Services 7,545 5,929
Telecommunications 1,257 1,094
Three Dimensional Products and Services 1,114 2,330
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 1,731 -
Business Consulting Services 257 261
Corporate and other 3,125 2,279
Total Identifiable Assets $68,528 $66,521

ErEEEE EEEEEE

(6) Equity:

Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock - During the three months ended March
31, 1996, the Company issued 3,635,593 shares of common stock upon the
conversion of 27,921 shares of series A preferred stock.

Regulation § Offerings - Pursuant to an offering in January 1996 made under

Regulation § of the Securities Act of 1933, the Company received net proceeds
of $500 in conjunction with the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of common stock.

{7) Reverse Merger:

On May €, 1995 SIS Capital Corp. ("SISC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, transferred all of its eguity ownership in Trans Global Services,

inz. ("Trans Global") to Concept Technologies Group, Inc. ("Concept”),
pursuant to an agreement dated as of March 31, 1995, among SISC, DLB, Inc.
"OLB"), Joseph G. Sicinski and Concept in exchange for a controlling interest

:r. Concept. Concept's common stock and warrants are traced on the Nasdag
smallCap Market. Trans Global's common stock was owned by SISC (91.6%), DLB

=.0%) and Mr. Sicinski (3.4%). DLE is owned by Ms. Carol Schiller, wife of
“r. Lewls S. Schiller, the Company's chairman of the board, president and
cnief executive officer. Mr. Schiller disclaims all beneficial interest in
the securities owned by DLB. The acquisition by Concept of the Trans Global
stock in exchange for Concept's capital stock is referred to as the "Trans
Giocbal Transaction”.

Pursuant to the Trans Global Transaction:

(1) - Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shares of Trans Global
common stock held by SISC (475,000 shares) and DLB (25,000 shares) were

12




Consolidated Technology wroup, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dellars in 000's) .

(7) Reverse Merger (continued):

exchanged for Series B Common Stock Purchase Warrants {"Serieg B Warrants")
to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shares of Common Stock until May 5, 1997

(ii) - Concept issued to SISC 850,000 shares of Common Stock, Series B
Warrants to purchase 475,000 shares of Common Stock at §$3.50 per share, 23,750
shares of Series A Preferred Stock, which will be converted into 1,900,000
shares of Common Stock upon the f£iling of the Certificate of Amendment, 23,750
shares of each of Series B and C Preferred Stock, which are convertible into
an aggregate of 2,375,000 shares of Common Stock if certain levels of income
before income tax are met, and 25,000 shares of Concept's Series D Preferred
Stock, which is not convertible and which has a redemption price of
approximately $1,700. SISC has deferred taking the physical delivery of
400,000 of the shares of Common Stock issuable in order to provide Concept
with flexibility in issuing shares of Common Stock.

(1ii) - Concept issued to DLB in respect of its Trans Global stock and
warrants, 50,000 shares of Common Stock, Series B Warrants to purchase 25,000
shares of Common Stock, 1,250 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, which are
convertible into 100,000 shares of Common Stock upon the filing of the
Certificate of Amendment, and 1,250 shares of each of Series B and C Preferred
Stock, which are convertible into an aggregate of 125,000 shares of Common
Stock if certain levels of income before income taxes are attained.

(av) - Concept issued to Mr. Sicinski, 100,000 shares of Common Stock.

As a result of the Trans Global Transaczion, SISC owned, at the closing,
approximately 32.2% of the outstanding Common Stock, and 59.3% of the voting
rights on all matters, including the election of directors, except where the
holders of Common Stock are required by law to vote as a single class. Upon
the Z:linc of the Certificate of Amendment, based on outstanding Common Stock
as of the closing date, SISC would own 59.3% of the outstanding Common Stock.

{(E+ Pro Forma Results:

-ns following pro forma unaudited results assume that the reverse merger in

Iicze (7] had occurred at the beginning of the indicated periods:
Three Months Ended
March 31,
1989¢ 1995
=t revenues § 26,512 § 29,000
y EEESTEES EEEEEEE
Ne: income (loss) (s 479) ~ (1,987)
EsssEaEm EEEEEE T
Income (loss) per share (s 0.01) & (0.11)

13




Consolidatec Technology .roup, .Ltd. and.Subsidiarie.
Notes to Consolidated Fimancial Statements

{(dollars in 000's)

(B) Pro Forma Results (continued):

The pro forma information is not necessarily indicactive of either the results
of operations that would have occurred had the acquisition been effective at
the beginning of the indicated periods or of the future results of operations.

(3) Subseguent Events

Regulation S Offerings:

Pursuant to an offering in April 1996 made under Regulation S of the
Securities Act of 1533, the Company received net proceeds of $250 in

conjunction with the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of common stock.
Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock:

From the period April 1, 1996 through May B, 1996, the Company issued
approximately 1,418,576 shares of common stock upon the conversion of 23,650

shares of series A preferred stock.
Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors Stock Options:

On August 20, 1993, the Company authorized a stock option plan for
Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors to provide compensation for
services rendered to the Company in lieu of cash paymentz. Pursuant to the
plan during April 1996, 200,000 shares were issued for no cash consideration,

resulting in $45 of consulting costs computed as follows:

Shares 200,000
Value of stock at date of grant $0.28125
Full value of stock 56
20% discount {11)
Discounted value of stock 45

Exercise proceeds -

-------

Total consulting costs 45

EEECEES

S5ale of Common Stock Investments to an Officer:

During April 1996, the chief executive officer of the Company exercised an
CPtion to purchase common Stock investments held by cthe Company at 110% of the
book value of such investments. The purchase of such investments was
consummated in a noncash transaction and such officer is to issue a note in
tavor of the Company without interest and payable within five years from the
date of the purchase. Total receivables outstanding under such sale
approximates $445 of which $72 relates to such exercises that occurred during
the year ended December 31, 1995.

14



Consolidated Technology wsoup, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in 000's)

{9) Subseguent Events {(continued):

Restated Employment Agreement:

During May 1996, the chief executive officer's .("CEO") employment contract was
restated, effective as of January 1996, and supersedes the contract dated
October 1, 1994. Per the terms of the amended contract the CEO shall receive
a salary of $250 per year through the year 2000, the expiration date of the
contract. The annual compensation may be increased from time to time by the
Board of Director's of the Company and commencing January 1, 1996 and on each
January 1 thereafter during the term of the contract, the CEO shall receive an
increase in annual compensation equal to the greater of (A) 5% of his salary
in effect prior to the increase or (B) the cost of living increase as
determined per the Consumers Price Index as published by the Bureau of Labor
Statistics of the United States Department of Labor. 1In addition, the CEO is
entitled to a bonus equal to 10% of the amount by which the greater of (A) the
Company's consolidated income before taxes, determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles or (B) the Company's consolidated net
cash flow exceeds $350. Net cash flow is calculated as consolidated net
income, plus depreciation, amortization and other noncash items of expense,
minus payments of principal amounts of indebtedness, all determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Additional benefits
to be received by the CEO include: (a) four weeks paid vacation; (b)
disability insurance providing for the payment to the CEO of a minimum of 60%
of his salary; (c) life insurance with a face value of $2,000, payable to the
CEQ's designated beneficiary; (d) health, vision and dental insurance: and (e)
an automobile to be provided to the CEC by the Company. Furthermore, the
restated employment agreement confirms the grant to the CEO of option to
purchase 10% of any equity interest now held by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. The option shall be exercisable during the 5 year period
commencing on the later of the date of this agreement or the date the Company
acquires the securities. The exercise price of the option shall be equal tc
210% of the Company's cost of csuch securities as determined i accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Payment of the option exercise

rice shall be made by the CEO within § years from the date of the exercise,
wiZhout interest.
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Item 2. Marnagement's Di .ussion and Analysis of Fi. _ncial Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

FINANCIAL CONDITION

LIQUIDITY:

As of December 31, 1995, it was determined that the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern was dependent upon the success of the Company's
subsidiary's marketing efforts and their efforts to obtain sufficient funding
to enable them to continue operations. Management believes that the Company
has made progress in achieving these goals during the quarter based on the

following:
Improved Operating Results:

The Company has 2 significant reduction in loss for the 1996 guarter compared
to 1995 in six of the eight segments and also shous a significant reduction in
corporate and other expenses. On an overall basis, the net loss for the
quarter was $1,909 less than in the prior comparable period.

Debt Refinancing:

In January 1996, the Company refinanced a significant portion of the current
subordinated debt that was to be paid in 1996. Such financing consisted of a
term loan of $2,000, a revolver loan of $6,000 and the extension of
approximately $7,600 of subordinated balloon payments from a 1996 due date to
a 2001 due date. At the time of the refinancing, the effect was a reduction
of current debt of approximately $8,363.

Improved Working Capital Condition:

As of December 31, 1995, the Company had a working capital deficit of $13,360.
As of March 31, 1996, this working capital deficit has been reduced to $3,180,
in large part to the aforementioned debt refinancing. The Company's continued
ability to reduce the working capital deficit relies primarily on the success
of continuing efforts to increase the profitability of the underlying
subsidiaries and a proposed additional refinancing of current debt which would
result in a shift $4,000 of current debt, due in September 1996, to a
iong-term maturity in the Medical Diagnostics segment. As further explained
in the following "Sources of Cash" discussion, restrictions exist with regards
=0 the Company's use of the Medical Diagnostics segment's cash.

R
"

cposed Equity Offerings:

ne Company currently has filed a registration statement for the sale of
curities of a subsidiary in the medical services segment. Such subsidiary
ceived a loan of $500 during the gquarter with respect to a proposed offering
hich is payable in January of 1997 or earlier at the completion of the
fering. Additionally, a subsidiary operating in the contract engineering
Tvices segment (which is already publicly held), has received a letter of
ntent to raise addicional capital. No assurances can be given, however, that
uch offerings will be ultimately consummated.

Fwse])
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Item 2. Management's Dis..ssion-and-Analysis of Finaucial Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

FINANCIAL CONDITION:

LIQUIDITY (continued):
CAPITAL RESOURCES:

Sources of Cash:

The Company's principal working capital consists of cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents were 51,546 at March 31, 1996 compared to $1,636 at
December 31, 1995. During the three months ended March 31, 1996, the
Company's operations generated $386 of cash from operationg of which the
medical diagnostics segment company, International Magnetic Imaging, ("IMI")
generated approximately $275 from operations while the remaining segments
generated approximately $111 from operations. Pursuant to an IMI financing
agreement with a creditor, restrictions exist on the distributions of IMI
funds whereby IMI may not make payments out of the ordinary course of IMI
cperations and specifically, not to the parent company, (Consolidated), or any
subsidiary or affiliate. The other segments are thereby required to operate
on their own cash flows and as of March 31, 1996 the most significant impact
from these restrictions is on the Three Dimensional Products and Services
segment which is currently unable to operate without cash infusions from the
parent company, (Consolidated). It is imperative that this segment obtain
alternative sources of funding (i.e. equity offerings, creditor financing or
increased volume), in order tco continue as an operating segwent. The
remaining segments were relatively unaffected by the restrictions on IMI's
cash since they operated substantially with their own cash flows. Other
significant sources of cash includes proceeds from the issuance of long-term
debt of $9,001, proceeds from the issuance of stock of $875, collections on
repayments of notes receivable of $926 and proceeds from the sale of
markecable securities of $12B,

Uses of Cash:

Uses of cash includes the repayment of long-term and subordinated debt of
£7.379, capital expenditures of $1,176, payments on capital leases of $326,
advances on notes receivables of $1,011, purchases of investments of $325 and
net repayments to factors of §1,179. Other net sources and uses of cash
amounted to $10.

Changes in Other Working Capital Assets and Liabilities:

~ne< other significant changes in working capital includes an increase in
actounts receivable of $2,19]1 (primarily fr-m increased revenues of the
mecical diagnostics segment) and an increase in accounts payable, accrued
expenses and accrued payroll and related expenses of approximately $1,B849
‘Frimarily from an increase in payroll and payroll related obligations of the
ccrniract engineering services segment) .
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Item 2. Management's Di. .ussion and Analysis of Pin.acial Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

FINANCIAL CONDITION:

CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued):
Effect of Loan Defaults:

The Company is in default on loans approximating $1,000 as of March 31, 1996.
Such defaults have not had, and are not expected to have a significant impact

on the operations of the related segments. The creditors have not called such
loans and are working under extended repayment terms.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

Consolidated operating profits increased by $1,380 from an operating loss of
$1,313 for the 1995 quarter to operating income of $67 for the 1996 quarter.
This improvement in operating results was achieved by an increase in overall
gross margins of $731 and a reduction in operating costs of $649. Such
advances in profitability were achieved in spite of a §1,897 decrease in
revenues. The decrease in revenues is attributed to the contract engineering
services segment which on January 1, 1996 lost a contract with one of its
significant customers. By the end of the gquarter this segment had recovered
approximately 60% of such lost revenues with new customers. This segments
decline in revenues was partially offset by revenues in the audio visual
manufacturing and services segment which was not a part of the Company's
operations in the 1995 quarter. On an overall basis, the consoclidated net
loss for the 1996 gquarter compared to 1995 decreased by $1,909 or B0%.

The percentage of relative contribution to revenues, gross profit, and selling
general and administrative expenses by industry segment is shown in the
following tables. Changes within the individual indust:sy segments themselves
is discussed further within the respective industry segment discussions.
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Item 2. Management!s Dis. .ssion -and -Analysis -of ¥ina.cial Condition and
Results of Operations (deollars in 000's)

L]

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

March 31,

Segments 1996 1985
Revenues:

Contract Engineering Services sS0% 62%
Medical Diagnostics 0% 25%
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 2% 4%
Medical Information Services 10% 5%
Telecommunications 3% 1%
Three Dimensional Products and Services 1% 2%
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 3% --
Business Consulting Services 1% 1%

R L e ap——

. -

Three Months Ended

March 31,

Segments 1996 1995
Gross Profit:

Contract Engineering Services 14% 12%
Medical Diagnostics 66% 66%
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 2% 7%
Medical Information Services 11% 7%
Telecommunications 1% 1%
Three Dimensional Products and Services 3% 6%
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 2% -
Business Consulting Services 1% 1%

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Secments 1996 1995
S€.-.ing, General and Administrative Expenses:
Cenzract Engineering Services 19% 14%
Mezical Diagnostics 34% 29%
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 5% 6%
Med:cal Information Services g% 13%
Telecommunications 6% 4%
Three Dimensional Products and Services 11% 10%
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 5% .e
Bus:iness Consulting Services 1y 1%
Corporate and Other 11% 23%



Item 2. Management's Di assion and Analysis of Fii .cial Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

Discussion of Operations by Segment:
(References to 1996 and 1995 correspond to the three month periods then ended)

Contract Engineering Services - This segment is engaged in the business of
providing engineers, designers and technical personnel on a temporary basis to
major corporations. Comparing 1996 to 1995, revenues decreased 24% while
gross margins increased 36%. The decrease in revenues is attributed to the
loss of a contract on January 1, 1996, from one of the segment's significant
customers. By the end of the quarter, the segment had recovered approximately
60% of the lost revenue. The increase in the gross margin is due to the fact
Chat the remaining customers, as well as the newly acquired customers,
generated higher margins than the significant customer that was lost.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 20%. This increase
primarily resulted from $250 in accrued penalties on late payroll tax
withholding cbligations and $80 of noncash expenses associated with the
issuance of stock for consulting services. Other income and expense items
decreased 75% as a result of lower interest expense from more favorable
financing terms than those that existed in the prior period. Management
believes that with this segment's current selling, general and administrative
structure, it can improve its operating resgults through revenue growth.
However, such growth is inherently dependent upon its ability to obtain
adeguate funding and accordingly, no assurance can be given about the ultimate

profitability of this segment.

Medical Diagnostics - This segment is engaged in the business of performing
MRI and other diagnostic modality procedures in the health industry.

Comparing 1996 to 1995 revenues and gross margins increased 16% anc 13%,
respectively. The increase in revenues is due to increases in scan procedure
volume which was partially offset by decreasing reimbursement rates.

Selling, general and administrative expenses remained relatively level,
increasing only 3%. Other income and expense items remained relatively level
and net income increased by 44% as a result of maintaining level operating
costs while revenues were increasing. Typically, this segment.has its
greatest revenue activity in the first guarter and management anticipates that
revenues and gross margin in the remaining quarters of 1996 will be moderately
iese while operating expenses will remain relatively level, which is
ccnsistent with the past performance of this segment.

-ectro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical Products Manufacturing - This segment
7s1sts of three companies, Seguential Electronic Systems, ("Sequential®),
-ch manufacctures optical encoders, encoded motors and limit programmers,
-~ech, which manufactures debit card vending machines and various avionics
nstrumentation devices and Televend which markets telephone debit cards and
certain products manufactured by S-Tech. Comparing 1996 and 1995, revenues
arn- gross profit decreased 44% and 74%, respectively. The significant
aecrease in revenues and gross margins 1s actributed to the government
shutdown that effected the 1996 quarter which resulted in ctche segment not
being able to ship orders to defense department customers. Gross margins went
from 30% of revenues in 1995 to 15% of revenues in 1996 which was primarily a
result of decreased volume from the government shutdown that occurred in the
second half of 1995 which impacted shipments in 1996, while certain inherent
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Item 2. Management's Dis .ssion and Analysis of Fina..cial Condition and
Rgsults of Operations (dollars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

fixed costs were still incurred. Selling, general and administrative expenses
decreased 28% which was the result of planned cutbacks in such costs. Net
losses increased from $4 for 1995 to §171 for 1996, which again is primarily
actributed to the decrease to government sector sales. Management has placed
more emphasis on sales to the private sector through the marketing of the
debit card vending machines and the telemarketing efforts of Televend.
Management anticipates that revenues and profitability will improve in the
remaining quarters of 1996 if the proper financing is found, but is currently
unable to estimate the amount of such improvement.

Medical Information Services - This segment is engaged in developing,

marketing and supporting computer scofcware designed to enable health service

as well as financial related organizations to provide a range of services in a
network computing environment. This segment has developed proprietary network
technology utilizing smart cards in financial network systems. Comparing 199¢

to 1895, revenues and gross margins increased 79% and 80%, respectively, while
selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 43%. During the prior
period this segment had relied primarily on revenues of previously existing
customers and software programs and services. During 1996, the segment has
increased its revenues and gross margins through contracts with new customers
using the new technologies that it has spent significant amounts of money in

the past developing. These positive developments resulted in income from |
operations of 5202 in 1996 compared to operating losses of $467 in 1995, |
These gains in cperating profitability were partially offset by an increase in
interest expense of 583 which is due to additional debt, of which $500 was
incurred during 199%6. Although no assurances can be made that profitable ‘
operations will continue in this segment, management currently estimactes that

this segment will continue to outperform the prior years operating results.

Telecommunications - This segment is engaged in the business of marketing a
wide range of telecommunications services including the design and
:mplementation of telecommunications programs in addition to reselling local
-ine service. Comparing 1996 to 1995, revenues increased 90% while gross
margins decreased 30%. During 1996, this segment's revenues consisted of a
greater proportion of network installations which generate lower margins than
the resellin: of phone services. Selling, general and administrative expenses
remained relatively level while net losses increased 580. The

€lecommunications segment operates in a highly competitive industry and
management believes that in order for this secment to become profitable, it
--- have to distinguish itself from other telecommunications service
companies. Additionally, this segmen: needs to significantly increase its
“ijiume in order tO cover its operating costs. This segment currently has a
cacklog of approximately $4,000, and management estimates thz- revenues will
ircrease throughout the remainder of the year, and if operating costs are
maintalined at the current level, this segment could breakeven during the

fourth Quarter.

q 1w

Three Dimensional Products and Services - This segment is engaged in the
business of developing and marketing products and services in the three
dimensional imaging and digitizing technology which the segment categorizes in
taree primary market groups: 1) surfacer imaging products, 2) CAD/CAM software
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Item 2. Management's Di..-ussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

products and services and 3) laser scanning products. Comparing 1996 to 199s,
revenues and gross margins decreased 49% and 30%, respectively. The primary
reason for such decreases is due to the closure of one of the companies
operating in this segment which produced revenues and gross margins in 1995 of
$185 and $35, respectively. The decision to close such operations was based
on the fact that such companies operations did not align with the planned
future for this segment and was not producing margins at a level sufficient to
cover its operating costs. Selling, general 2nd administrative expenses
remained relatively level, however, the 1996 expenses includes $192 in noncash
expense for the write-off of goodwill that could not be supported by the
segment's current cash flow under generally accepted accounting principles.
Excluding the goodwill write-off, ongoing expenses decreased approximately
$221 because of planned expense cut backs as well as a decrease in product
development costs. On an overall basis, the net loss for 1996 was $218 which
is an improvement of $198 from 1995. Management currently anticipates that
revenues and operating profits will significantly improve for this segment if
the proper financing can be obtained which would allow this segment to acquire
a Eurcpean partner to market and expand its existing product lines. However,
no assurances can be made that such financing will be obtained and the
ultimate profitability of this segment is significantly dependent on the
success of such f£inancing.

Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services - This segment is engaged in the
business cf manufacturing and marketing a professional line of loudspeakers.
This segment was acquired during the second quarter of 1995 and therefore
there 1s no comparable period. During 1996 this segment generated 5671 in
revenues of which 5481 were from domestic sales and 5190 were from European
and Far East sales. Gross margins were $137 or 20% of revenues compared to
0% for the time period from acguisition in the second quarter of 1995 through
—ecember 3., 1825. This increase 1n gross margin percentage is due primarily
¢ increasec sales volume which reduced the idle capacity related to the
manufacturing process. This segment continually evaluates and improves its
rroduct line ancd management believes that if this segment is able to find an
appropriate financing package, it will be able to significantly increase its
revenues and overall profictability during 1996.

2siness Consul:iing Services operations were not significant for 1996 or 1995
~S management anticipates that consulting revenues and related expenses will
ot be a s:gnil:cant portion of the Company's future operations in the near

-crporate and Other selling, general and administrative expenses for 1996
ccmpared to 1995 decreased 50%. Such decrease is due primarily to noncash
expense from the exercise of stock options for payment of consulting services
~nich amounted to $740 in 1995 Included :n selling, general and
acministrative expenses was approximately S80 in a bonus paid to the Company's
-nief Financial Officer as a part of renegotiating the subordinated debt of
tne Medical Diagnostics segment. Corporate and other selling, general and
acministrative expense, other than that related to the exercise of stock
Jptions remained relatively level and it is currently anticipated that such
costs will remain level throughout 1996, However, in the event that the
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Item 2. Management's Dis .8sion and Analysis of -Pinw..cial Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

Company negotiates additional acgquisitions, such costs would increase

accordingly. .
Discussion of Other Significant Financial Line Items

Interest Expense for 1996 remained relatively level compared to 1595. The
Company's debt financing activity during 1996 was primarily refinancing
activity which effectively extended current debt to long-term and relatively
the same interest rates and therefore there was not a significant impact on

the level of interest expense.

Gains and (Losses) on Investment Securities - During 1996 the Company's
investment purchasing and sales activity was not significant while in 1995 che
Company incurred losses on investments of $120 which consisted primarily of
the recognition of investments that were determined to have a permanent
decline in market value and as such, the decline was recognized in that
period. Security sales vary from period to period based on, among other
things, market activity and cash needs, and management cannot estimate the

amount of future security sales gains or losses, if any, that will be
generated from such transactions.

Impact of Inflation

The Company is subject to normal inflationary trends and anticipates that any
increased costs would be passed on to its customers.

23




PART II...OTHER-JINFORM ION .. -
"Item ¢. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(aj Exhibits

1. EX-10.1 Restated Employment Agreement Dated January 1996 between the
Company and Mr. Lewis S. Schiller.
EX-11.1 Calculation of earnings per share.

e
Financial Data Schedule

3. EX-27
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